Cabinet

Date & time
Tuesday, 31 May
2022 at 2.00 pm

Place
Council Chamber,
Woodhatch Place, 11
Cockshot Hill, Reigate,
Surrey, RH2 8EF

Contact
Vicky Hibbert or Huma
Younis
Tel 020 8541 9229 or
07866899016
vicky.hibbert@surreycc.gov.uk or
huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk

Chief Executive
Joanna Killian

We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

Cabinet Members: Natalie Bramhall, Clare Curran, Kevin Deanus, Matt Furniss, Marisa Heath,
Sinead Mooney, Mark Nuti, Tim Oliver, Becky Rush and Denise Turner-Stewart
Deputy Cabinet Members: Maureen Attewell, Steve Bax, Jordan Beech and Rebecca Paul

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language please
either call 020 8541 9122 or write to Democratic Services, Surrey
County Council, Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey,
RH2 8EF or email vicky.hibbert@surreycc.gov.uk or
huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Vicky Hibbert or Huma
Younis on 020 8541 9229 or 07866899016.
Note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site
- at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.
The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council.
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic
Services at the meeting.

1

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To note any apologies for absence.

2

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 26 APRIL 2022
To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record of the
meeting.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or
as soon as possible thereafter:
(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting
NOTES:


Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest



As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a
spouse or civil partner)



Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

4

PROCEDURAL MATTERS

a

Members' Questions
The deadline for Member’s questions is 12pm four working days before
the meeting (25 May 2022).

b

Public Questions
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (24
May 2022).

c

Petitions
The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no
petitions have been received.

d

Representations received on reports to be considered in private
To consider any representations received in relation why part of the
meeting relating to a report circulated in Part 2 of the agenda should be
open to the public.
2

(Pages 1
- 12)

5

REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES , TASK GROUPS, LOCAL
COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL

(Pages
13 - 14)

To consider any reports from Select Committees, Task Groups, Local
Committees and any other Committees of the Council.
Cabinet is asked to consider:
A. Report on the Care Leavers Service (Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning and Culture Select Committee).

6

LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT BOARD DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST
CABINET MEETING

(Pages
15 - 22)

To note any delegated decisions taken by the Leader, Deputy Leader,
Cabinet Members, Strategic Investment Board and Committees in
Common Sub-Committee since the last meeting of the Cabinet.

7

THE SURREY TRANSPORT PLAN (FOURTH EDITION) - ADOPTION

(Pages
23 - 114)

The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet on the outcomes of the
statutory public consultation process and subsequent additional
engagement to support the new Surrey Transport Plan, to be referred to
as the fourth Local Transport Plan (LTP4). To seek approval to adopt and
publish the plan, and to retain the Member Reference Group to steer
further development of the Plan and refine policies to help deliver the plan.
The final decision on the Local Transport Plan 4 is to be made by Council
in accordance with the authority’s legislation.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities,
Environment and Highways Select Committee)

8

MINERALS AND WASTE DEVELOPMENT SCHEME
The purpose of this report is to seek agreement of Cabinet to an extension
to the timetable in which the Minerals and Waste Local Plan (MWLP) is to
be prepared. The extension proposed will necessarily involve material
amendments to the Minerals and Waste Development Scheme (MWDS)
previously approved in July 2021.

(Pages
115 136)

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities,
Environment and Highways Select Committee)

9

SURREY INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN - PHASE 2 SCHEMES
This report recommends the approval of a second phase of schemes to be
implemented, highlights additional schemes requiring further development
and provides a brief update on the status in the first phase which were
approved by Cabinet in October 2021.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities,
Environment and Highways Select Committee)

3

(Pages
137 158)

10

WAN & WI-FI SERVICE: DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STEP-CHANGE
Cabinet is asked to approve the use of the South East Grid (SEG) Network
Services Framework as a route to market to procure new WAN and Wi-Fi
services, and to approve the capital investment of £8.23m to provide
gigabit capable connectivity to all Council sites.

(Pages
159 166)

NB: There is a Part 2 report at Item 13.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)

11

2021/22 OUTTURN FINANCIAL REPORT
This report sets out Surrey County Council’s 2021/22 financial
performance for revenue and capital, including the year end Treasury
Management and debt outturn position.

(Pages
167 186)

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)

12

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Act.

P ART T WO - IN PRI VAT E
13

WAN & WI-FI SERVICE: DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STEP-CHANGE
This Part 2 report contains information which is exempt from Access to
Information requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the
authority holding that information).

(Pages
187 192)

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)

14

PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS
To consider whether the item considered under Part 2 of the agenda
should be made available to the Press and public.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: Friday, 20 May 2022

4

QUESTIONS, PETITIONS AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS
The Cabinet will consider questions submitted by Members of the Council, members of
the public who are electors of the Surrey County Council area and petitions containing
100 or more signatures relating to a matter within its terms of reference, in line with the
procedures set out in Surrey County Council’s Constitution.
Please note:
1. Members of the public can submit one written question to the meeting. Questions
should relate to general policy and not to detail. Questions are asked and
answered in public and so cannot relate to “confidential” or “exempt” matters (for
example, personal or financial details of an individual – for further advice please
contact the committee manager listed on the front page of this agenda).
2. The number of public questions which can be asked at a meeting may not exceed
six. Questions which are received after the first six will be held over to the following
meeting or dealt with in writing at the Chairman’s discretion.
3. Questions will be taken in the order in which they are received.
4. Questions will be asked and answered without discussion. The Chairman or
Cabinet Members may decline to answer a question, provide a written reply or
nominate another Member to answer the question.
5. Following the initial reply, one supplementary question may be asked by the
questioner. The Chairman or Cabinet Members may decline to answer a
supplementary question.
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or
mobile devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the
public parts of the meeting. To support this, Surrey County Council has wifi available for
visitors – please ask at reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please
liaise with the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that
those attending the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is
subject to no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or
Induction Loop systems, or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may
ask for mobile devices to be switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities
outlined above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent
interruptions and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 2
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET
HELD ON 26 APRIL 2022 AT 2.00 PM
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT
HILL, REIGATE, SURREY ,RH2 8EF.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.
Members:
* = Present

*Tim Oliver (Chairman)
*Natalie Bramhall
*Clare Curran
*Matt Furniss
*Mark Nuti
*Denise Turner-Stewart
*Sinead Mooney
*Marisa Heath
*Becky Rush
*Kevin Deanus
Deputy Cabinet Members:
*Maureen Attewell
*Rebecca Paul
*Steve Bax
*Jordan Beech
Members in attendance:
Catherine Baart, Local Member for Earlswood and Reigate South
Jonathan Essex, Local Member for Redhill East and Green Party Group
Leader
Lance Spencer, Local Member for Goldsworth East and Horsell Village
Nick Darby, Local Member for The Dittons, Residents' Association and
Independent Group Leader
Chris Townsend, Local Member for Ashtead and Vice Chairman of the
Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee
PART ONE
IN PUBLIC
65/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 1]
There were none.
66/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 29 MARCH 2022 [Item 2]
These were agreed as a correct record of the meeting.
67/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.
PROCEDURAL MATTERS [Item 4]

604

Page 1

2

2

68/22 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS [Item 4a]
There were eight member questions. The questions and responses were
published as a supplement to the agenda.
Jonathan Essex asked what the council was planning to do in light of the
government planning to take away charging for recycling and if the council
had received any government funding for pilot schemes to deal with fly
tipping. The Cabinet Member for Environment confirmed that the council had
not received any funding for improvements to fly tipping. To take construction
waste would also require a change in legislation and this waste was very
different from DIY waste. The councils aim is to increase recycling where it
can.
With regards to her first question Catherine Baart stated that large expanses
of verges and particularly rural verges were not suitable for the Blue Hearts
campaign. Within the extension period, it was queried what the council was
doing differently in comparison to last year with district and boroughs in
regards to verge cutting. The Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure
explained that the amount of cutting with district and boroughs had been
reduced with the district and boroughs being encouraged to mow after the
wildflower season. Whether the district and boroughs comply with the cutting
is their choice but the council was looking at options to extend the contract for
one year.
With regards to her third question, Catherine Baart queried if there was an
opportunity to put on a commercial bus to Woodhatch which non staff could
use. The Leader explained that the priority was to establish transport for those
that wanted it from the two stations but if there is an option to make this a
commercial service then that would be explored. With regards to her final
question, it was queried when the service would expect to hit the statutory
target with Education Health and Care Plans. The Cabinet Member for
Education and Learning stated that improving the outcomes and experiences
for children and families was one of our highest priorities and strategies
around increasing inclusiveness of mainstream education had helped to meet
the needs of the majority of children and had improved the experiences of
EHCP assessments. There was a programme to build capacity and capability
within the service and with our partners.
With regards to his first question, Lance Spencer queried what the average
time for a school appeal to take place was and whether the panel could just
consist of members. The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning said
that since the beginning of the year eight panels had been organised. Three
had been cancelled and five had taken place. The cancellations was due to
member availability and the new proposals for a panel including officers would
make the panel process more efficient and fluid. The proposals were about
ensuring that delays are minimised and the impact on families is reduced
because it clearly caused distress and frustration. Changing the panels would
also enable remote meetings whereby more members could attend.
With regards to his second question, Lance Spencer asked if there were any
plans to get greater engagement with residents on the overall Surrey
Transport plan over the next 12 months as engagement seemed to be low.
The Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure explained that a
representative sample had been taken but that other consultations such as
605

Page 2

the greener futures consultation, which referenced transport elements would
be transferred across. Further engagement and consultation would be taking
place as we go through with the communities where specific initiatives are
progressed. With regards to his final question, Lance Spencer queried if there
were still plans in place to have a parallel carbon budget in place for 20232024. The Cabinet Member for Environment confirmed that this was the
intention and would be managed by the Director for Environment and Carbon
Economics Programme Manager. The Cabinet Member would provide the
member with an update via email.
69/22 PUBLIC QUESTIONS [Item 4b]
There were three public questions. The questions and responses were
published as a supplement to the agenda.
Malcom Robertson thanked the Cabinet Member for the original response to
his question. He went onto ask how much gas oil had been used by the
anaerobic digestor and incinerator since they first commenced operation and
how much waste has been handled by each plant since the beginning. The
Cabinet Member for Property and Waste explained that she would have to
find out how much gas oil had been used with the anaerobic digestor and
gasifier and how much waste has gone through both. The Cabinet Member
would contact the questioner with a written response.
Paul Kennedy queried what was being done to make the EHCP review less
stressful for parents and schools. The Cabinet Member for Education and
Learning stated that the council was prioritising and focusing on the EHCP
process. Capacity and capability was being built into the system and work
was being undertaken with partners to make sure that assessments are made
in a timely fashion and in an appropriate way. The council was working with
Family Voice Surrey on improving interactions with parents and
communications and engagement.
70/22 PETITIONS [Item 4c]
There were none.
71/22 REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED ON REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN
PRIVATE [Item 4d]
There were none.
72/22 REPORTS FROM SELECT COMMITTEES , TASK GROUPS, LOCAL
COMMITTEES AND OTHER COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL [Item 5]
The report was introduced by the Vice-Chairman of the Children, Families,
Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee who explained that the
recommendations of the Select Committee had cross party support. The ViceChairman was concerned that recommendation 1d, ‘that there be no change
to the appeals panel membership’ had been ignored by the Cabinet. Results
from the public consultation were also in support for keeping the panel
membership with members. The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning
explained that the panel process would include officers going forward as there
had been delays in holding panel meetings due to member availability. The
priority of the appeals process was to ensure efficiency for families and
606

Page 3

2

2

including officers would ensure this. The Leader explained that there was no
expectation that the second stage of the appeals panel would be filled with
just officers. The aim was to speed up the appeals process and intention was
to ensure that councillors remain a key component of appeal hearings and
this change was not proposing to withdraw councillors from the appeals
process.
RESOLVED:
That the report from the Select Committee regarding the Home to School
travel assistance policy be noted. The response from the Cabinet was
published as a supplement to the agenda.
73/22 LEADER / DEPUTY LEADER / CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT BOARD/COMMITTEES IN COMMON SUB-COMMITTEE
DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING [Item 6]
There were seven decisions for noting.
RESOLVED:
That the decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting be noted.
74/22 CABINET MEMBER OF THE MONTH [Item 7]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Families.
The following key points were made:










Explained that she had political responsibility for the leadership,
strategy and effectiveness of the local authorities children's services
and was responsible for ensuring that the council addresses the needs
of all children and young people, including the most disadvantaged
and vulnerable.
An inspection took place of the Youth Offending Service (YOS) by HM
Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) in November. The final report
resulted in a “good” grading and the service has gone from
“inadequate” to “good” since the previous inspection in 2019.
Ofsted inspectors rated the council as good in their recent report. This
means that the Council was now out of a statutory intervention. This
means that oversight by the Department for Education and by Ofsted
had changed to reflect this, and a letter from the Minister of State to
confirm that status has been received. The government now had
confidence in Surrey that the council can continue on its own
improvement journey. In their report Ofsted mentioned the strong and
effective and productive multi agency and multidisciplinary work being
undertaken.
There were six key recommendations for priority areas of improvement
in Ofsted’s report. The council must continue unrelented focus on the
quality of frontline social work practice.
Recruitment and retention of staff was a real challenge, not just for
Surrey but for all authorities across the country.
The Mindworks Surrey Alliance is just finishing its first year of
operation. This has focussed on managing the competing demands of
mobilising a new service, reducing legacy waiting lists, dealing with the
607

Page 4



impact of the pandemic and developing the partnership to realise the
ambitions set out in the Surrey Children and Young People’s
Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health (EWMH) Strategy. While
some progress has definitely been made and things are in a better
place, it was recognised there is still more to be done to deliver a
timely and effective service to all those children and young people who
need it.
Thanks was given to all the staff who work with children and young
people in Surrey including those who work in the wider children's
systems, be that in schools and nurseries, health, police, youth work
and foster care.

Concerns were raised by the Residents' Association and Independent Group
Leader and Green Party Group Leader that a Surrey children’s care home
had been closed following emergency intervention and members had not
been briefed on this. The Leader explained that this was an operational
matter which was important but that this was not the forum for this matter to
be discussed. The Vice-Chairman of the Select Committee explained that a
session on the matter had been organised with the Select Committee.
RESOLVED:
That the Cabinet Member of the Month report be noted.
75/22 A DEVOLUTION DEAL FOR SURREY [Item 8]
The report was introduced by the Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling up
who explained that in February a levelling up paper was welcomed from
government. A deal would devolve more powers to local government in
Surrey from Whitehall so that we could better deliver on our no one left behind
ambition. Securing devolution of additional powers through a county deal for
Surrey not only brings greater powers, but also opportunities for flexibility to
both the council and partners. Since publication of the levelling up white
paper, the council has continued to engage with local partners to explore the
opportunities that a devolution deal presents for Surrey. A Surrey Delivery
Board has been established as a key stakeholder group of all tiers of local
government which will be used in the development and delivery of a county
deal. Following the meeting the council would be writing to ministers and
department officials requesting they engage with the council at the earliest
opportunity so that Surrey can benefit from the right county deal as soon as
possible.
The Leader explained that the expectation was that the white paper becomes
a bill announced in the Queens speech. Speaking on the item, the Residents'
Association and Independent Group Leader stated that it was important that
the proposals are carefully considered with members.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet supports the approach set out to develop a Devolution
Deal for Surrey, to accelerate and better enable work to tackle
inequalities in Surrey.

608

Page 5

2

2

2. That Cabinet reaffirms the Council’s commitment to ensuring No One
is Left Behind and note the strong alignment to the Government’s
Levelling Up agenda.
3. That Cabinet endorses the approach and plan for further engagement
with local partners and key stakeholders to support development of a
devolution proposal for Surrey.
4. That Cabinet supports the intention to engage with the Surrey Delivery
Board as a key stakeholder group in developing and shaping a
comprehensive devolution deal for the benefit of Surrey’s residents,
communities, and businesses.
5. That Cabinet delegates authority to the Executive Director for
Partnerships, Prosperity, and Growth to lead engagement with the
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on the
devolution proposal following consideration by Cabinet, and to take
other necessary steps in consultation with the Leader of the Council
and the Deputy Cabinet Member for Levelling Up.
Reasons for Decisions:
The Government’s Levelling Up White Paper presents a rare opportunity for
the council to pursue a devolution deal for Surrey that will bring new powers,
freedoms and flexibilities, better enabling the council to deliver for residents
against its organisational priorities and work towards its ambition of No One
Left Behind.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment
and Highways Select Committee)
76/22 SURREY'S GREENER FUTURES GRANT PROGRAMMES [Item 9]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Environment who
explained that the report was asking Cabinet to approve the receipt of funding
into the Council’s capital pipeline from Government net zero carbon grant
funding programmes, specifically the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme
(PSDS3) and the Sustainable Warmth Programme (which includes the Green
Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD3) and Home Upgrade Grant
(HUG1)). Cabinet was also asked to note the use of match funding of up to
£1.367m, in relation to the PSDS3 grant to replace fossil fuel boilers with heat
pumps. Referring to Annex 2 and specifically Keswick care home, the Cabinet
Member stated that all the listed buildings would be assessed to ensure
teams were not working in silo. The member reference group and Select
Committee would be kept updated on progress on this work.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet approves the receipt of funding into the Council’s capital
pipeline from Government net zero carbon grant funding programmes,
specifically the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme (PSDS3) and
the Sustainable Warmth Programme (which includes the Green

609

Page 6

Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (GHGLAD3) and Home
Upgrade Grant (HUG1))

2. That Cabinet notes the use of match funding from the approved
Corporate Capital Maintenance Programme, subject to the Capital
Programme Panel (CPP) approving business cases for individual
sites.
3. That Cabinet approves the request to competitively procure the
Sustainable Warmth Programme and PSDS3 services under separate
contracts, in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and
Contracting Standing Orders.

4. That Cabinet approves the receipt of future funding schemes for the
purposes of delivery of the Greener Futures ambition, including future
tranches of the PSDS schemes and Sustainable Warmth programmes
as well as, but not limited to, the schemes included in Annex 1.
Receipt of funding will be subject to Capital Programme Panel
approval.
Reasons for Decisions:
The recommendations in this report will enable the Council to:


Draw down Government funding of £13.15m. This includes £2.652m
from PSDS3 to decarbonise buildings in the SCC estate and schools
and £10.5m from the Sustainable Warmth Programme, which includes
£8.3m for GHLAD3 and £2.2m for HUG1, which will be used to
decarbonise homes of residents on low incomes.



Be as agile as possible to maximise the attraction of future external
grant funding sources.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Communities, Environment
and Highways Select Committee)
77/22 SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING PROGRAMME - BATCH 1
DEVELOPMENT [Item 10]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Adults and Health who
explained that Cabinet were being asked to approve £24m of capital funding
for the design and construction of three purpose-built Supported Independent
Living (SIL) schemes in Byfleet, Horley and Cobham. The schemes will
deliver high-quality, specialist residential accommodation for working age
adults with learning disabilities and/or autism to enable these residents to lead
more independent lives. Since July 2019 there were 1075 people with a
learning disability and/ or autism living in residential care but this has reduced
to 922 due to the councils transformative agenda. A reduction of 14%.
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste commented that all
accommodation had been designed to be adapted for residents with 60% of
the new homes being delivered ready for immediate or future occupation by
wheelchair users or residents with complex care needs. A fabric first approach
had been applied to the buildings. The designers were orientating the
610

Page 7

2

2

buildings to make the most of natural daylight, maximise energy generated
from solar panels and minimise artificial lighting. These schemes would be
designed to deliver energy efficient buildings which will result in lower fuel bills
for the residents and meet the Council's operational net zero carbon target.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet approves capital funding of £24m for the design and
construction of the SIL Batch 1 accommodation schemes at the former
Manor School (Byfleet), the former Horley Library (Horley) and
Coveham Hostel (Cobham). The recommended funding of £24m
includes £2.1m premium, being a result of achieving Net-Zero Carbon
in respect of the specification for Operational Net-Zero Carbon.
2. That Cabinet approves procurement of an appropriate construction
contractor partner for the delivery of all associated services required,
in accordance with the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing
Orders.
3. That Cabinet agrees that in regards to the procurement of the
construction contractor, the Executive Director of Resources and the
Director of Land and Property are authorised to award such contracts,
within the +/- 5% budgetary tolerance level.
Reasons for Decisions:
Approving the recommendations in this report will:
a) Support the Council to achieve its strategic ambition of reducing the
number of people with a learning disability and/or autism requiring
support in a traditional residential care home funded by the Council
from 1,075 by 40-50%.
b) Enable residents with learning disabilities and/or autism, who meet the
Council’s eligibility criteria for adult social care funding, to have their
own accommodation and improve their independence and wellbeing.
c) Support Surrey residents with more complex needs to remain in
county, rather than in specialist placements outside of the county.
d) Make an essential contribution towards the Council’s strategic
objective to tackle health inequality, in line with the 2030 Community
Vision.
e) Provide purpose-built accommodation at a level of cost proportionate
to other delivery options such as buying and converting (or
commissioning conversion) stock from the market, therefore
demonstrating value for money.
f) Support the Council’s Greener Futures agenda and Net-Zero Carbon
ambitions by using innovative technologies and smart build in the
schemes design.
g) Address fuel poverty issues, energy efficient homes will reduce
heating costs for vulnerable tenants who pay their own utility bills.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)

611

Page 8

78/22 HOME TO SCHOOL/COLLEGE TRAVEL ASSISTANCE POLICY REFRESH
[Item 11]
The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Education and
Learning who explained that Cabinet were being asked for approval to
implement a refreshed Surrey County Council Home to School/College Travel
Assistance Policy following the conclusion of a 28 working day public
consultation between February and March 2022. All Councils were required
periodically to review and consult on their home to school travel
arrangements. Proactive public engagement and consultation had taken place
with parents, carers, schools and colleges and other stakeholders. A copy of
the consultation document was mailed to all current home to school travel
assistance service users inviting them to respond and four virtual public
engagement events were held as well as a FaceBook Live session with
Family Voice Surrey. The Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture
Select Committee heard in public evidence from expert witnesses in the
Council on the proposals and the consultation responses. The Cabinet
Member talked through in detail each of the decisions Cabinet was being
asked to take.
The Leader explained that the proposals had been considered by Cabinet a
number of times and thanked the Cabinet Member and officers for a fair and
balanced policy. The Vice-Chairman of the Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning and Culture Select Committee stressed the need for the policy
changes to be communicated well with parents and schools. There was a
short discussion around the change to appeals panels. The Leader confirmed
that members would not be removed from the appeals process.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the impacts and mitigations set out in the Equality
Impact Assessment (Annex B)
2. That Cabinet notes the outcomes of the engagement with residents
and the 28 working day public consultation (Annex C)
3. That Cabinet approves changes to the Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy having considered the above documents (set out in
paragraphs 11-51)
4. That Cabinet approves the revised Home to School/College Travel
Assistance policy (Annex D)
5. That Cabinet agrees the proposal to produce an enhanced Post 16
Policy Statement and agrees that the Cabinet Member has delegated
authority to approve the statement.
Reasons for Decisions:
The H2S TA policy sets out the way in which the Council discharges its
statutory and discretionary powers and responsibilities in relation to school
and college transport assistance available for pupils aged up to 25 years of
age, both with and without additional needs. While Surrey County Council will
continue to support those who most need help, the Council must manage
increasing costs and demand within the overall resources available. The
recommendations set out in this report will increase the options for children
and young people who qualify for H2S TA, encourage people to use

612

Page 9

2

2

environmentally friendly travel and support independent travel as a means of
preparing young people for adulthood.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning and Culture Select Committee)
79/22 2021/22 MONTH 11 (FEBRUARY) FINANCIAL REPORT [Item 12]
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources
introduced the report explaining that at Month 11 the Council was forecasting
a full year £0.6m forecast surplus against the revenue budget. Despite the
forecast of a balanced outturn, it was still the expectation that Directorates
continue to make efforts to manage spends within their budget envelopes,
particularly where actions will impact on the deliverability of the 2022/23
budget. It was explained that the council was receiving £13m of funding from
Surrey Heartlands CCG which would be transferred to reserves. £9m of this
funding is a contribution towards the c.£12m of additional Adult Social Care
care package expenditure that the Council has incurred in 2021/22 driven by
the Covid-19 pandemic. The Leader explained that this money was owed to
the council from the CCG. The remaining £4m from Surrey Heartlands CCG is
part-match funding for the Council’s £8m increased investment in Mental
Health services for 2022/23.
RESOLVED:
1. That Cabinet notes the Council’s forecast revenue and capital budget
positions.
2. That Cabinet approves that £13m of funding from Surrey Heartlands
Clinical Commissioning Group is transferred to reserves as set out in
paragraphs 15 to 17.
Reasons for Decisions:
This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget
monitoring report to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions.
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)
80/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 13]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Act.
81/22 SUPPORTED INDEPENDENT LIVING PROGRAMME - BATCH 1
DEVELOPMENT [Item 14]
The Cabinet Member for Property and Waste introduced the Part 2 report
which contained information which was exempt from Access to Information
requirements by virtue of Paragraph 3: information relating to the financial or

613

Page 10

business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).
RESOLVED:
See Exempt Minute [E-13-22]
Reasons for Decisions:
See Exempt Minute [E-13-22]
(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Resources and
Performance Select Committee)
82/22 PUBLICITY FOR PART 2 ITEMS [Item 15]
It was agreed that non-exempt information may be made available to the
press and public, where appropriate.
Meeting closed at 15:41
_________________________
Chairman

614

Page 11

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 5
CHILDREN, FAMILIES, LIFELONG LEARNING AND CULTURE SELECT
COMMITTEE
Item under consideration: CARE LEAVERS SERVICE
Date considered: 7 APRIL 2022
Introduction
1.

On Monday, 4 April 2022, the Committee met with care leavers to
discuss their needs and the support they receive. Feedback was mixed,
with most care leavers highlighting quality, timely support as well as
times where they could have been better supported.

2.

On Thursday, 7 April 2022, the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and
Culture Select Committee took evidence from the Cabinet Member for
Children and Families and senior officers regarding the Care Leavers
service, in response to an Ofsted monitoring visit in September 2021.
Questioning focused on the needs of, and support available to, care
leavers and the pressures on the Service, in particular:









unaccompanied asylum-seeking looked after children and care
leavers, including numbers, specific needs and support and funding;
supported and independent accommodation, including the suitability
of accommodation, procurement, capital investment, collaboration
with partners and the transitions from care and between
accommodation types;
the cost of living, including the impact of rising energy prices;
support for young people at risk of, or experiencing, homelessness,
include those who are not care leavers;
personal advisors, including their caseloads and capacity to support
care leavers promptly and effectively, workforce stability and duty
arrangements;
pathway planning; and
the emotional wellbeing and mental health needs of, and support
for, care leavers.

3. A Member asked whether, in the context of the drive for net zero carbon
emissions, the publication of the Government’s Energy Security Strategy
and rising energy and living costs, the council maintained a register of the
energy efficiency of care leavers’ accommodation and whether, where
care leavers were placed in less-energy-efficient accommodation, they
could be supported with meeting costs. The Committee heard that there
were not any minimum requirements in respect of individual properties but
in support of social value commitments, some accommodation providers
had begun to issue ‘smart meters’ to young people, although it was
acknowledged by witnesses that this did not address the issue entirely;
and also that if a service user did experience financial hardship, they could
raise it with their personal advisor and may receive additional support.

Page 13

5

5

4. In response, the Member asked how much it cost to heat care leavers’
homes and if that was not known, that the council collect the available
data; however, the Committee was told that the relevant teams were not
adequately resourced or suitably structured to prioritise that work, although
it was accepted that the energy efficiency of accommodation would need
to be given consideration in the future by the Greener Futures teams.
Recommendation
The Select Committee makes the following recommendation:
That the Corporate Parenting Service work with the Council’s Greener Futures
Team to understand the energy efficiency of current care leavers
accommodation and opportunities for its improvement, and seek to place care
leavers in energy efficient accommodation wherever possible going forward.
Liz Bowes
Chairman of the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture Select
Committee
Background papers
Item 5, Children, Families, Lifelong Learning and Culture Select Committee, 7
April 2022.

Page 14

Item 6

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF:

N/A

LEAD OFFICER:

JOANNA KILLIAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT:

LEADER/DEPUTY LEADER/CABINET MEMBER/ STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT BOARD AND COMMITTEE-IN-COMMON
DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING

6

SUMMARY OF ISSUE:
To note the delegated decisions taken since the last meeting of the Cabinet.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommended that the Cabinet note the decisions taken by Cabinet Members
since the last meeting as set out in Annex 1.
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS:
To inform the Cabinet of decisions taken by Cabinet Members, Strategic Investment
Board and the Committee in Common subcommittee under delegated authority.
DETAILS:
1.

The Leader has delegated responsibility for certain executive functions to the
Deputy Leader and individual Cabinet Members and reserved some functions
to himself. These are set out in Table 2 in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.

2.

The Leader has also delegated authority to the Strategic Investment Board to
approve property investment acquisitions, property investment management
expenditure, property investment disposals and the provision of finance to its
wholly owned property company, Halsey Garton Property Ltd.

3.

Delegated decisions are scheduled to be taken on a monthly basis and will be
reported to the next available Cabinet meeting for information.

4.

Annex 1 lists the details of decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting.

Contact Officer:
Huma Younis, Committee Manager, huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk
Annexes:
Annex 1 – Delegated Decisions taken
Sources/background papers:
None

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1
CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS
26 APRIL 2022
CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND LEARNING DECISIONS
1. PETITION: PRESERVE THE FUTURE OF ST PETER AND ST PAUL C OF E INFANT
SCHOOL IN CHALDON
(i)

Details

The Cabinet Member for Education & Learning accepted the following petition. The lead
petitioner was not present at the meeting to present the petition. The Cabinet Member
response to the petition as set out below was published as a supplement to the agenda.
We the undersigned petition Surrey County Council to fulfil their duty to preserve the future
of our school by supporting the expansion to accommodate Primary Education to Key Stage
2 (7-11 year olds).
Justification:
St Peter and St Paul is a Church of England school located at the heart of the village of
Chaldon village in the Surrey Hills. Historically, the school has developed a strong reputation
of high quality education, care and community spirit that we believe to be unique amongst a
wider community hugely dominated by Trust schools.
In 2021 the school co-operated with a request from Surrey County Council to accept. bulge
year, which has resulted in more members of the community recognising the strengths of our
school.
As a church school we enjoy a special sense of belonging welcoming all cultures and
religious denominations into our school and our Christian ethos provides a rich backdrop in
which all our children flourish.
As parents and carers we feel very strongly that our school is the best environment for our
children to continue their educational journey until their transition into secondary school.
We have learnt to trust in staff team that cares passionately about the school and we are
confident that they can offer the best possible opportunity for through Primary Education in
the area.
We therefore request that Surrey County Council honour the "Change in Age Range
Consultation" that was agreed in October 2021 and needs to now be reflected in the physical
expansion of the school.
Cabinet Member Response:
The change in age range at St Peter and St Paul Church of England School will be
implemented for September 2022. The school are admitting Year 3 pupils from September
2022 and internal alterations to the existing building will provide the additional space for
pupils.
Some planning and highway matters were raised as part of the planning application
originally submitted in June 2021. Since then, supplementary information to the original
planning application has recently been submitted to address the concerns. Subject to

Page 17

6

planning permission being granted the physical expansion of the school will take place with a
target date for completion of September 2023.

6

2. PROPOSAL TO EXPAND MANOR MEAD SCHOOL & CHANGE SCHOOL
DESIGNATION FROM A SINGLE DESIGNATION OF SEVERE LEARNING
DIFFICULTIES (SLD) TO A DUAL DESIGNATION OF SEVERE LEARNING
DIFFICULTIES (SLD) AND AUTISTIC SPECTRUM DISORDER (ASD)
(i)

Details of Decision:

The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning determined the statutory notices thereby
bringing into effect the formal commencement of the proposal to:
1. Expand Manor Mead School onto a satellite site at Church Road, Virginia Water,
increasing the number of places from 83 to 143.
2. Change school designation from a single designation of Severe Learning Difficulties
(SLD) to a dual designation of Severe Learning Difficulties (SLD) and Autistic
Spectrum Disorder (ASD).
This was approved without modification.
ii) Reason for decision:
The proposed permanent expansion of Manor Mead School supports Surrey’s ambition to
ensure sufficient maintained special school placement availability for primary age autistic
pupils and those with communication and Interaction needs and severe learning difficulties.
The Cabinet Member for Education and Learning‘s approvals and recommendations
completes the statutory process in accordance with the DfE guidance “Making significant
changes (‘Prescribed Alterations’) to Maintained Schools”.
(Cabinet Member for Education & Learning – 26 April 2022)
LEADER DECISIONS
3. PETITION: BRING SURREY CHOICES BACK INTO SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
i) Details of petition:
The Leader considered a petition from Unison requesting that Surrey Choices be brought
back in house. The full petition text and formal response were published as a supplement to
the agenda.
Mr Barney Wakefield presented the petition and stated his case and asked several
questions:1. Why were terms and conditions not the same as the Council’s?
2. Was it considered that the consultation was adequate for the closure of hubs?
3. Was it fair to expect Surrey Choices to be a first class provider when the council were
implementing a £3m budget cut?
4. Should the Council take a more active role in Surrey Choices?
5. What action is the Council taking to lobby central government about social care
funding?

Page 18

The Leader stated that there was a mixed picture over the last five years regarding
performance of Surrey Choices. There had been a change in the business model which had
not happened at the speed one would have wanted and this was consulted on at the time.
The reduction in funding was to match the change in the model, which saw a shift to
providing care in the community, a large reduction in overheads rather than the money spent
on front line delivery services. There was a broader issue around recruitment and retention
for the Council and work was ongoing to look at allowances and this would be discussed
with Unions and partners on how this could be collectively progressed. Surrey Choices as
an arm’s length organisation had its own business model and set their own terms and
conditions but maybe there needed to be a conversation including the Legal Team about
whether an arm’s length organisation was the correct way to go.
The Leader also explained that the council were working very hard explaining to government
the impact of changes to social care funding. With regard to council taking an active role in
Surrey Choices he explained that the Cabinet Member was Chair of Surrey Choices until
recently and he would routinely meet with Surrey Choices every six months.
The Leader, in listening to officers advice, was encouraged that things were improving. The
focus needed to be on individuals and the team being rewarded for their role.
Decision:
The published response to the petition still stood but the Leader suggested that there be a
further review of the current structure within the next few months.
(Decision taken by the Leader of the Council – 26 April 2022)
CABINET MEMBER FOR PROPERTY AND WASTE DECISIONS
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS
i) Details of decision
There were very many questions submitted in relation to the Priory School petition and under
Standing Order 86 the first six questions submitted were taken at the meeting. These
questions and the responses to them were published as a supplement to the agenda. Other
questions submitted would receive a written response.
5. PETITION: RECONSIDER THE DECISION TO RELOCATE PRIORY SCHOOL,
REIGATE TO WOODHATCH PLACE
i) Details of petition
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste considered a petition requesting the council
reconsider its decision to move Priory School to Woodhatch Place. The full petition text and
formal response were published as a supplement to the agenda.
Dr Sophia Mitchell presented the petition and highlighted three main concerns:
6. The detrimental impact of travelling on a dangerous A road and the resultant air
pollution on both pupils and residents
7. Other detrimental impacts on residents around Woodhatch including parking,
congestion, pollution and decreased economic productivity
8. The effect of increased carbon emissions that goes against council policy.

Page 19

6

She went on to speak about the current site of the school and stated that she wanted to work
constructively with the council to keep the school on its present site.

6

Catherine Baart spoke as the divisional Member and raised several issues that had not
already been raised. She stated the impact on daily lives of the community around the site
that this decision would bring and asked for more transparency on the reasons for moving
the school to this site, specifically:1. Why were the site appraisals not available to the public now and why did they have
to wait until the planning committee? This gave the impression that the council were
withholding information.
2. Although the site appraisal had already been done the council were still collecting
data around traffic etcetera and asked how this further information collected would be
fed into the site appraisal?
3. The Angel junction did not have a pedestrian crossing and would be some years
before it did have one so therefore had the extra funding needed for infrastructure to
be put in place for this move been taken into account?
4. Had there been serious discussions with the DfE about extending Holmesdale
School and the two feeder schools to turn them into primary schools? If so, those
discussions should be made known to aid transparency.
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste sympathised with residents that the school could
not stay on its present site. She explained that communications regarding expansion of
schools came under the remit of the Education Team and not property. Site appraisal and
traffic assessments would accompany the planning application. It was confirmed by the
Contracts Manager that the site appraisal could not be released early and before statutory
consultees for planning purposes. The information needed to be as up to date as possible
for the planning decision and therefore it was likely to change.
The Cabinet Member for Property & Waste confirmed that statutory consultation would take
place from 9th May and that residents would be invited to submit their concerns as part of
that consultation. This would be followed by submission of the planning papers for
committee decision in June.
(Decision taken by the Cabinet Member for Property and Waste – 26 April 2022)
CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE DECISIONS
6. PETITION: ACCESS FOR ALL - BOOKHAM STATION
i) Details of petition:
Mr Andrew Matthews presented his petition to the Cabinet Member.
Clare Curran spoke as the divisional Member and concluded that she would continue to
work with officers and Mr Matthews regarding access at Bookham Station.
The Cabinet Member for Transport & Infrastructure confirmed the response to the petition as
published.

Page 20

7. NATIONAL BUS STRATEGY - ENHANCED BUS PARTNERSHIP FOR SURREY
i) Details of decision
1.

2.

That the draft Enhanced Partnership Plan and draft Enhanced Partnership
Scheme be submitted to the Department for Transport for their review,
inclusive of delivery priorities was agreed.
That once Department for Transport feedback has been received, a report be
taken to Cabinet proposing that the Council enter into an Enhanced
Partnership with bus operators, inclusive of governance arrangements was
agreed.

ii) Reason for decision:
Responding to the challenge set by Government, the Council issued a formal notice of intent
to introduce an EP building on our existing and strong partnership working with bus
operators. Doing so has secured continued access to Bus Recovery Grant funding that
compensates for Covid depressed patronage, whilst enabling the Council to be bid for future
Government funding using the BSIP.
The next step is to approve our draft EP Plan and draft EP Scheme, submitting both to the
DfT for their review. The draft EP Plan and draft EP Scheme combined aim to grow bus
patronage by improving bus services and infrastructure, whilst enhancing bus user
experience.
Government’s aspirations align closely with the Council’s own aims and objectives as set out
in Enabling a Greener Future, our Climate Change Delivery Plan and the emerging new
Surrey Transport Plan. A core feature of the latter is to prioritise public transport in the
hierarchy of modes, whilst delivering a reduction in carbon and other emissions from the
transport sector.
8. SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL RESPONSE TO SURREY'S 2050 PLACE AMBITION
CONSULTATION
i) Details of decision:
That the consultation response attached at Annex 1 to the submitted report be approved.
ii) Reason for decision:
Surrey’s 2050 Place Ambition presents a collective, long-term ambition and priorities for
Surrey local authorities to support and manage growth in a way that helps address the
challenges associated with climate change, the existing and future infrastructure deficit,
whilst enabling Surrey’s economy to grow sustainably and improving the overall quality of
the environment and well-being of residents. It provides a framework to align spatial plans,
programmes, and infrastructure priorities, enable cross-boundary solutions to meet
development needs and for partners to work together on delivery to achieve ‘good growth’.
Over the next 15 to 20 years, the scale and pattern of spatial growth across Surrey will be
determined through borough and district local plans and will largely take place through
regeneration and/or redevelopment in towns, urban extensions and a number of new
communities. SCC is a vital partner in managing and influencing how that planned growth is
delivered.

Page 21

6

The consultation response supports the Place Ambition and suggests several revisions to
promote delivery on all the priority areas of the Council’s Organisation Strategy and its
Community Vision.
(Decisions taken by the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure – 26 April 2022)

6
STRATEGIC INVESTMENT BOARD
17 MAY 2022
PROPERTY DISPOSAL IN GUILDFORD
This Part 2 report contains information which is exempt from Access to Information
requirements by virtue of paragraph 3 – Information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including commercially sensitive information to the bidding
companies).
RESOLVED:
1. That the Strategic Investment Board note and record the decision taken to approve
disposal of the asset.

Page 22

Item 7
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF
CABINET
MEMBER:

MATT FURNISS – CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT &
INFRASTRUCTURE

LEAD OFFICER:

KATIE STEWART – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR ENVIRONMENT,
TRANSPORT, AND INFRASTRUCTURE

SUBJECT:

THE SURREY TRANSPORT PLAN (FOURTH EDITION) – ADOPTION

ORGANISATION
GROWING A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY SO EVERYONE CAN BENEFIT,
STRATEGY PRIORITY
ENABLING A GREENER FUTURE, EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES AND
AREA:
TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITY

Purpose of the Report:
The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet on the outcomes of the statutory public
consultation process and subsequent additional engagement to support the new Surrey
Transport Plan, to be referred to as the fourth Local Transport Plan (LTP4). To seek
approval to adopt and publish the plan, and to retain the Member Reference Group to steer
further development of the Plan and refine policies to help deliver the plan. The final decision
on the Local Transport Plan 4 is to be made by Council in accordance with the authority’s
legislation.
The Transport Plan sets out the Council’s transformational and ambitious roadmap to deliver
the required carbon reduction targets set out in the Climate Change Delivery Plan, for the
transport sector, whilst supporting the county’s communities and economy to thrive and
ensure no one is left behind. The Transport Plan is therefore a significant contributor to the
Council’s contribution to the delivery of the county’s net zero carbon target by 2050.
Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1. Notes the efforts that have gone into extending the engagement with communities
and partners over the new Surrey Transport Plan including analysis and feedback
received from the statutory public consultation and subsequent additional targeted
engagement.
2. Notes how delivering the Surrey Transport Plan associated policies, strategies and
measures will support the Climate Change Delivery Plan.
3. Notes the capital investment required to deliver the plan as set out in the 2022/23
budget and beyond in line with the Medium-Term Financial Plan.
4. Recommends the approval of the Surrey Transport Plan, to County Council on 12
July 2022 including launch of new related Surrey website pages on the 13 July 2022.
5. Recommends to Council that authority be delegated to the Executive Director, for
Environment, Transport & Infrastructure, in discussion with the Cabinet Member for
Transport & Infrastructure for any final changes that may be necessary to allow
publication of the plan on 13 July 2022 and any key changes thereafter to comply
with new government policy.

Page 23

7

6. Thanks the Members of the Greener Futures Reference Group for their work in
developing the Plan thus far.
Reason for Recommendations:

7

The recommendations will enable the new Surrey Transport Plan (LTP4) to be adopted
thereby enabling new policies and measures to develop and deliver safe, cleaner, greener
ways of travelling and accessing services and opportunities in the future. This will help to
deliver significant reduction in carbon emissions from the transport sector to deliver net zero
carbon by 2050, as set out in the Climate Change Strategy agreed by Cabinet in May 2020,
and the Climate Change Delivery Programme agreed by Cabinet in October 2021.
The Plan provides a step change in how transport services and its infrastructure are
planned, delivered, maintained, and used. This will need the Council, partner organisations,
businesses, and all of Surrey’s residents to work together to make changes in when, where,
and how they choose to travel, including the adoption of digital opportunities.
The plan sets out a framework to develop these new policies, strategies, and measures to
establish and embed active and sustainable travel behaviours and promote the uptake of
technology such as electric and hydrogen powered vehicles, to meet the challenge of
achieving the county’s target of net zero carbon by 2050. The plan also supports the
importance of ensuring that our transport policies and networks enable a prosperous
economy and healthier, better, connected communities, ensuring that no one is left behind.
Executive Summary:
Background
1. As the Local Transport Authority, the Council has a statutory duty under the
Transport Act 2000, as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008, to produce a Local
Transport Plan (LTP) and to keep that plan under review. A LTP contains the
objectives, policies and measures intended to improve transport in an area,
contributing to wider social, economic, and environmental benefits. The current
Surrey Transport Plan Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) was produced in 2011.
2. The current LTP3 is ‘out of date’ as it does not reflect current best practice, is not
aligned with current policy, including the county’s Climate Change Strategy, and does
not fully reflect the four strategic priorities articulated through the 2030 Community
Vision.
3. Critically, the current LTP3 was focused on enabling the predominance of the private
car and the policies and strategies contained within it does not enable the Council to
embrace the opportunities for a paradigm shift in travel behaviors brought about by
the global COVID-19 pandemic, which has seen a fundamental shift in the way that
people and businesses interact with the places in which they live and work.
4. For these reasons, the Transport Plan has been updated to establish a new, bolder,
and fundamentally different kind of Transport Plan from those that which the county
has previously adopted which is fully aligned to the council’s four strategic priority
objectives and focused on reducing carbon emissions from transport.

Page 24

Strategic Context
5. Higher than national average car ownership and daily traffic flows in Surrey
contributes 41% of Surrey’s carbon emissions, and of those transport emissions, it is
estimated that 68% is from private cars and taxis. These levels of transport
emissions cannot continue if we are to meet our carbon targets.
6. The (LTP4) sets out an ambitious travel hierarchy to encourage more residents &
businesses to leave their cars at home and choose to walk, cycle, take public
transport or convert to zero emission vehicles. This will help to reduce harmful
emissions that contribute to global warming and affect the health of people & wildlife
in Surrey.
7. The Council’s commitment to a Greener Future and organisational net zero carbon
emissions is covered by the Council’s approved Climate Change Strategy and
Delivery Programme. The Transport Plan allows the Council to plan, deliver and
maintain transport services across the county to deliver against net zero carbon.
8. The Plan includes measures to address poor air quality and associated respiratory
illnesses, by rebalancing local streets for people rather than vehicles, to reduce
unnecessary car journeys and provide communities and residents with new and
improved public, shared and active travel alternatives. Allowing residents to benefit
from cleaner air, improved quality of life, and more opportunities to improve their
physical and mental wellbeing, through walking or cycling to access greener, cleaner,
places.
9.

The Plan will enable transport to support the economic regeneration that the Council
is working with other partners to deliver following the significant effects of the global
pandemic. The Plan is fully aligned with and critical to the delivery of the Council’s
four strategic priorities for the next five years and beyond. It will allow the Council to
rethink transport across Surrey and look to meet future challenges, whilst enhancing
Surrey’s local environment, economy, and quality of life for residents.

Updating the Surrey Transport Plan (LTP4)
10. The new Surrey Transport Plan has been developed based on an extensive evidence
base, compiled by reviewing relevant policies and data sources, and the consultation
draft version has been amended to take account of any relevant or insightful
feedback received from the statutory consultation process.
Delivery Programme
11. A delivery programme is being developed to identify a clear pathway to achieve the
four main outcome objectives, but many of the measures proposed in the plan are
contained within the Surrey Infrastructure Plan Categories 1, 2, 3 (pipeline), and 4
(transport schemes delivered by other partners). Some measures will also be
delivered under the Greener Futures Communities Agenda through the Climate
Change Delivery Plan: To empower individuals, businesses, and communities to
reduce emissions in their own homes, communities and workplaces and s upport the
creation of local and sustainable options to travel, work and buy goods and services
sustainably.

Page 25

7

12. Schemes identified in Phases 1 and 2 of the Surrey Infrastructure Plan, as approved
by Cabinet, will contribute to reducing carbon from transport for the short, medium,
and longer term. Pipelines schemes identified from the Surrey Infrastructure Plan will
be prioritised on those schemes that contribute the most to reducing carbon
emissions.

7

13. The current capital programme includes some schemes and sustainable transport
measures that clearly support outcome objectives such as the county-wide roll out of
electric vehicle charging points and a development of programme of Local Cycling &
Walking Implementation Plans (LCWIPs) for each borough and district, which are
already underway using funding from the feasibility budget.
14. The new Behaviour Change programme includes the (Better Points) sustainable
travel rewards app, personal travel planner (Mobilityways), cycle journey planner
(cyclestreets) and campaigns to support active travel by promoting active travel
benefits for residents and businesses.
15. In addition, the Council is working with partners in response to the Government’s new
National Bus Strategy, Buses Back Better, despite the recent and hugely
disappointing decision from Government not to fund the Council's Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) now, significant funding is being invested by the Council to
improve public transport. There will be future opportunities to use the BSIP to bid for
Government funding through an Enhanced Partnership being developed with bus
operators in Surrey.
16. As appropriate, the emerging delivery programmes will link to other relevant wider
strategic programmes such as the Digital Infrastructure Strategy and the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.
Governance and Monitoring
17. Strong Governance will be vital to achieve the level of reductions in carbon emissions
from transport. The Greener Futures Board comprised of Leaders representing
businesses, residents, public sector, and climate experts will oversee progress of the
transport elements within the Climate Change Delivery Plan. Recommendations
made by the Board will be considered when decisions are made through Surrey’s
local authorities governance processes. A network of partners will be fostered to
enable them to provide feedback on the progress of action across Surrey and build
momentum to support delivery, including transport services and infrastructure
delivered by the Transport Plan.
18. Progress against Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy will be reported on an annual
basis which ensures that the Delivery Plan supports the level of change needed to
achieve the 2030 and 2050 net-zero carbon targets.
Consultation:
19. The draft Transport Plan received Cabinet approval in June 2021 to undertake formal
consultation, which is a statutory obligation as defined under the Local Transport Act
2008.
20. The Statutory Consultation was open from 1pm on Monday 5 July until midnight on
Sunday 31 October 2021, using the Commonplace digital platform, an interactive
website to allow respondents to provide their comments and suggestions on the

Page 26

measures proposed in the plan. The nature of commonplace allowed respondents to
focus in on the area of the plan they were most interested in.
21. The Statutory consultation contacted over 250 stakeholders and partners including
County Members, Borough and Districts Councils, Parish and Town Councils,
Government Departments such as Department of Transport, Transport for the South
East, Coast to Capital & EM3 LEPs, transport operators, businesses organisations,
disability organisations, walking and cycling groups, transport user groups,
environmental bodies, adjoining authorities, community groups, health providers,
rural interest groups, the police, utility companies, ETI staff and others who have
previously registered an interest in the Surrey Transport Plan.
22. The Transport Plan is part of the wider Greener Futures engagement strategy and
the communications plan included various forms of social media to publicise the
consultation including:








11-week weekly social media campaign July – October reached 1.4 million
people.
5 day boosted social media posts during last week of consultation – reached an
additional 23,000 people and 2,500 people clicked on links.
2 x press releases issued to all Surrey media and trade press.
Article in SCC’S Resident newsletter and dedicated website article.
Also featured in SCC Climate Change newsletter.
Communications toolkit shared with all District and Borough Council and Partner
comms contacts for sharing on their channels.
Surrey Matters article was the 4th most read in the October issue.

23. The plan was socialised through comprehensive engagement with stakeholders
and partners (including Boroughs and Districts) as well as residents and through two
community led stakeholder workshops with East Surrey’s People’s Assembly and
Surrey’s Climate Change Commission which attracted around 150 participants.
Wider public engagement was gained from a greener futures newsletter, meetings,
speaking events and presence at wider events such as the Empowering
Communities Roadshow and Farnham Sustainability Festival and at the COP26
Green Zone event in Farnham, broadcast live to the Summit in Glasgow.
Initial Analysis
24. Overall, the commonplace site received 8,355 visitors and 1,437 contributions. There
was a total of 549 confirmed respondents across the Commonplace survey. Given
the wide-ranging issues included with the Transport Plan the commonplace platform
allowed respondents to focus in on the area of the report they were most interested
in, and therefore each section has a varied response rate ranging from 80 to 346 It is
therefore important to acknowledge that some areas of feedback are more
representative than others.
25. During the period that the commonplace page was live the Council also received
emails from statutory consultees and paper copies as requested by residents. These
responses have been included in the computer-aided thematic analysis. All forms
from this engagement were self-selecting, and therefore findings from these
elements should be understood as indicative of residents’ views rather than
representative of all residents.

Page 27

7

26. Comprehensive analysis of the responses and feedback received from the
consultation is contained in Annex 1 - Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report
attached to this report.

7

27. In summary, most respondents lived in surrey and were car drivers. Of those who
gave their demographic details, two groups were underrepresented: females and
younger people. Respondents were more likely to be male, with 42% of respondents
identifying as such compared to 28% female. Many respondents (59%) were 45 and
older. This is above the general demographics for Surrey where 46% of the
population are above 45. Any conclusions form the initial consultation are based on
the views of an older male demographic, due to the smaller sample sizes of younger
people and females, so not representative.
28. Active travel and public transport measures were generally well supported and
although many respondents understood the need to change travel habits there was
more resistance when they felt their own personal behaviour was being targeted.
29. The response rate was disappointing despite widespread communication and
engagement. The feedback suggests that some respondents found navigating the
plan to difficult to understand. Benchmarking against other Local Authorities
indicated others had also received similar response rates.
30. Given the disparity in representatives from key socio and demographic groups, the
Cabinet Member for Transport & Infrastructure requested additional targeted
engagement with those under-represented groups to ensure a more representative
view from communities across Surrey on the Transport Plan.
Additional Engagement
31. Temple Consultancy were commissioned to better understand those resident views
which were not captured in the original consultation, with a particular focus on more
hard-to-reach groups such as younger people, women, and people with disabilities.
32. Given the relaxation in lockdown rules, a multi-method approach was used to
increase geographic coverage across the county and to gain feedback from
underrepresented groups, many of whom are digitally disconnected, it was important
to not rely fully on a single online survey. Therefore, a range of research methods
were used throughout the engagement programme. Methods included, an online
survey (756 respondents), market stalls (215 respondents), further education events
(71 respondents), stakeholder interviews (42), postal surveys (58 returned) and
neighbourhood games. The in-person market stalls and further education events also
included interactive voting exercises (620 participants), along with children’s playmodels of high and low carbon high streets.
33. In addition, the Council sponsored the Farnham Campus of the University of
Creative Arts Student Art Competition to discuss “How will people live, work & travel
10 years from now that is sustainable?” To provide a different and innovative
approach to capturing views on the subject and for younger people to interact and
express their views on climate change and other issues contained within the
Transport Plan.
Additional Engagement Analysis
34. The original aim of undertaking a wider consultation exercise has been achieved. A
total of 1,762 people took part, many from a wider geographic and more
representative demographic background than was represented in the original online

Page 28

exercise. Many were also new to engaging with the Council and others have
requested feedback and/or ongoing involvement.
35. Comprehensive analysis of the responses and feedback received from the
consultation is contained in Annex 2 - Surrey LTP4 Additional Engagement
Report attached to this report.
Key Findings
i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.
x.

The majority (82%) of respondents identified as being either “very worried” or
“worried” about climate change. About one third of respondents consider
themselves “very worried”.
Overall, the research indicates strong support for the proposed transport
hierarchy. Just over 80% of respondents agreed or agreed somewhat with the
hierarchy, while fewer than one in ten disagreed. Responses varied between
age & gender.
Across Surrey, support for the hierarchy was high, with the least supportive
local authority, Tandridge, still showing 73% of participants agreeing or
agreeing somewhat. The highest level of support was in Surrey Heath at 92%.
The online survey revealed that the most common reason for not supporting
the transport hierarchy was poor quality or expensive public transport.
Although over two thirds of all age cohorts agreed or agreed somewhat with
the hierarchy, there is some variation in the level of support across age
groups. Younger people (18 to 29) are particularly supportive, with over 90%
of participants supporting the hierarchy. The least supportive cohort was the
45 to 59-year-old group, with only 69% of participants supporting it.
The effectiveness of actions in reducing carbon were contrasted in participant
comments regarding the current practicality of undertaking lower carbon
journeys. For example, participants expressed safety concerns around cycling
and cost barriers to public transport.
Participants’ top three choices in terms of whether action was possible either
sometimes or often were:
a)
To shop, eat, etc. locally.
b)
Collect deliveries from local hubs; and
c)
Replace driving by walking.
Conversely, participants’ bottom three choices were:
a)
Work more from home.
b)
Share cars; and
c)
Replace driving by cycling.
Public Transport & Active Travel measures were well supported as
alternatives to the car for short trips. With walking favoured over cycling as the
preferred alternative.
Young people responses to the survey and art competition highlighted real
concerns around Climate Change, Transport, Living & Mental Health issues.
Views differed between digital surveys and more socially interactive methods
of engagement, especially across the different age ranges & gender.

Engagement Summary
36. In total, over 2,300 separate participants have responded to the consultation, with
additional records of informal engagement through the common place platform,
Greener Futures engagement and associated comments at the market stalls and
further education and social media comments.

Page 29

7

37. The additional engagement provided a wider geographic and more representative
demographic background than was represented in the original online exercise. Many
were also new to engaging with the Council and others have requested feedback
and/or ongoing involvement.
38. The research results show, as expected, that views on the LTP4 vary by age,
gender, and location. People’s personal circumstances also greatly affect their views
and should be considered in the development and implementation of any strategy.

7

39. The innovative research reveals high levels of support for tackling climate change
across the wide range of participants. There is also support for the transport
hierarchy but with a range of caveats and issued raised. The additional engagement
has demonstrated the general public’s awareness that reducing carbon will require a
mix of both popular and unpopular policies, although inevitably there is a tendency to
favour the former. There is an insistence that car use can only be reduced after
public transport, walking, and cycling provisions are improved. If the community is
going to accept any change in travel patterns, messaging should focus on
improvements to public transport, walking and cycling infrastructure rather than
emphasising reductions in car use.
40. The consultation also highlighted that many people do not have a clear
understanding of either the current transport situation in Surrey, such as the volume
of short journeys, or the reality and facts around climate change. Similarly,
participants frequently misunderstood the role and capabilities of national and local
government bodies, often overestimating their influence.
41. Participant support was particularly strong for improving bus provision as a feasible
alternative to cars for some journeys. However, the bus system is inaccessible for
some due to personal circumstances, the incompatibility of geography and service
networks, and cost. Understanding the needs of potential customers, not assuming
“one size fits all”, and accepting that only a proportion of the community will ever shift
behaviour were clear themes.
42. The lack of effective infrastructure for walking, cycling, public transport, and use of
EVs was a consistent message, as was concern about safety across all modes.
43. Another common theme was of the need for collaboration across the public sector
with the private sector, the voluntary sector, residents, and other stakeholders. There
was a clearly expressed view that resolving climate change and changing travel
patterns requires a multi-faceted as well as multi-organisational approach. Links to
planning, health, education, and providers of transport services were all raised.
44. The consultation itself has raised awareness of the LTP4 and the rationale for
tackling climate change. It has started an important dialogue on the key issues raised
in the plan, as well as providing a substantial level of support for its proposed actions.
There is a clear desire amongst participants for dialogue around these various
themes to continue.
Risk Management and Implications:
45. There is a risk to the Council in not having a relevant, coherent, and up-to-date
Surrey Transport Plan. Firstly, there is a statutory requirement to have a local Plan.
Secondly, without an up-to-date plan, the Council would not be able to attract
investment from Central Government and other third-party funding sources to secure
investment for our transport priorities. Thirdly, not being able to compete with other

Page 30

local authorities for development and investment would limit economic growth
potential. This might negatively impact resident’s future quality of life, Surrey’s
economic performance and our ability to fully achieve the 2030 Surrey Vision and Net
Zero carbon by 2050 or earlier.
46. The Council also needs to be able to articulate and positively influence Government
in transport services, infrastructure and how it is delivered, this is set out in the Bus
Back Better strategy. Lacking a clear vision and absence of agreed priorities in
sustainable transport within the Delivery Programme would negatively impact the
Council’s ability to engage with and inform the debate on transport policy, which is
critical given the need to meet net zero carbon targets, and boost recovery from the
impacts of the global pandemic.
47. There are risks around the ambitions set out in the Surrey Transport Plan and the
Climate Change Delivery Plan, approved by Cabinet 26 October 2021, which cannot
be fully realised without a significant and sustained increase in funding and key policy
changes at national level, including introducing planning policies consistent with netzero targets and policies which make low carbon transport cheaper for consumers.
Surrey will continue to highlight this through a strong lobbying strategy together with
key partners and stakeholders.
48. There is also a risk that target emission reductions may not be fully achieved due to
the number, scale, and complexity of actions to be delivered over the next 5 to 10
years. Many actions are reliant on residents, businesses and others making low
carbon transport choices. These risks are being addressed in part by increasing the
resource we must enable effective behaviour change, scrutiny from the Greener
Futures Reference Group, and regular monitoring of the transport related items set
out in the Climate Change Delivery Plan via the Greener Futures Board. In addition,
we will continue to lobby the Government to make the national policy changes that
are necessary to ensure residents are able to make sustainable travel choices.
49. Climate science already suggests that we need to make cuts in the order of over
40% by the end of the Climate Change Delivery Plan period to avoid an average
global temperature rise of 1.5 degrees and that global warming is happening at a
faster rate than originally thought. There is a further risk that new scientific evidence
suggests even greater urgency is required.
Financial and Value for Money Implications:
50. Delivering the Surrey Transport Plan will involve significant financial investment
which will continue beyond the current Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)
period towards 2032. The objectives of the Surrey Transport Plan are reflected in the
recently approved capital programme, which includes investment through the Surrey
Infrastructure Plan (£116m), cycling and walking improvements (£12m), electric
vehicle charging infrastructure (£5m) and local improvement schemes.
51. The capital programme also includes support for the introduction of ultra-low and
zero emission buses (£49m) supported by other measures such as bus priority, a
higher quality passenger waiting environment, better passenger information and
service enhancements. Packaged together, these will help build patronage back to
pre-covid levels and beyond as part of our Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP),
recently submitted to the Department of Transport, as approved by Cabinet 26
October 2021. Despite Government's decision not to fund the Surrey’s Bus Service
Improvement Plan now, the Council's own significant investment, the work planned to

Page 31

7

be developed through the Enhanced Partnership and the opportunity to bid for future
Government funding means the Council is well positioned to deliver a range of public
transport enhancements that support the aims and objectives of the Surrey Transport
Plan.

7

52. Other potential funding opportunities will continue to be explored including
government grants, working with key partners, linkages with the Greener Futures
Finance Strategy and exploring income generation to secure the necessary
investment to achieve zero carbon for the transport sector. In addition to the recently
approved Transformation funding for complementary delivery programmes such as
the Behaviour Change programme to support residents and businesses to adopt
more sustainable travel habits.
Section 151 Officer Commentary:
53. Although significant progress has been made to improve the Council’s financial
position, the medium-term financial outlook beyond 2022/23 remains uncertain. With
no clarity on central government funding in the medium term, our working assumption
is that financial resources will continue to be constrained, as they have been for most
of the past decade. This places an onus on the Council to continue to consider
issues of financial sustainability as a priority to ensure stable provision of services in
the medium term.
54. The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy supports the delivery of the Surrey
Transport Plan through the approved capital programme and other budgets. The
Council will also need to continue working with public and private sector partners to
secure the necessary investment required to achieve these objectives. As such the
Section 151 Officer supports the recommendations.
Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer:
55. There are no legal implications raised in the report at this stage which proposes a
recommendation to approve and adopt the Transport Plan in accordance with the
statutory process.
56. The Surrey Transport Plan continues to be a statutory requirement of the Transport
Act 2000 as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008. To fulfil its legal obligations,
the County Council must produce a Local Transport Plan which must be
implemented, kept under review, and altered if considered appropriate to do so.
Equalities and Diversity:
57. Equal access to places and services using Surrey’s transport infrastructure networks
and services is a critical enabler of the Council’s service objectives around
supporting residents and staff with different protected characteristics.
58. Once funding is known and a delivery programme is confirmed, where required,
Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) will be completed for specific elements of the
Surrey Transport Plan and any potential negative impact addressed or mitigated. The
EIA will be updated focusing on the specific actions and interventions in the delivery
programme. This will then focus on local impacts on people with protected
characteristics.

Page 32

Other Implications:
59. The potential implications for the following council priorities and policy areas have
been considered. Where the impact is potentially significant a summary of the issues
is set out in detail below.
Area assessed:
Corporate Parenting/Looked After
Children
Safeguarding responsibilities for
vulnerable children and adults
Environmental sustainability
Compliance against net-zero
emissions target and future climate
compatibility/resilience
Public Health

Direct Implications:
No significant implications arising
from this report at this stage.
No significant implications arising
from this report at this stage.
See below.
See below
See below.

Environmental Sustainability Implications:
60. The Statutory consultation material enabled consultees to respond on the
Environmental Sustainability Assessment (ESA) which was included in the Integrated
Sustainability Appraisal (ISA). The ISA aimed to ensure early integration of
sustainability considerations into the development of the new Surrey Transport Plan.
Ensuring that any potential significant effects arising from the new plan are identified,
assessed, mitigation and communicated to plan-makers.
61. The ISA includes the following:






Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA),
Health Impact Assessment (HIA),
Community Safety Assessment (CSA) and
Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA).
Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA)

62. A compatibility test was produced to ensure that the draft vision and objectives of the
plan is as closely aligned with the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) objectives
the test helps to identify potential synergies and inconsistencies, as well as assisting
in refining the elements of the LTP4 and identifying alternatives.
63. The test concluded that no areas of potential conflict have been identified in any of
the examined elements of the plan, though it should be noted that the nature of the
plan may result in development of transport infrastructure. This type of development
will have clear implications for the spatial and environmental context in which it takes
place, and the plan needs to clarify how potential impacts can be addressed, across
the full range of sustainability (economy, environment, and society). This clarity
should be provided as part of further development of the plan and its Delivery
Programme as appropriate.
64. There will be range of positive sustainability outcomes arising from the schemes and
measures brought forward by the Council and partners in delivering the Council’s
Climate Change Strategy and new Surrey Transport Plan. In terms of the need to
travel, this will focus on the principles of avoid and or reducing the need to travel,
shifting journeys to alternative modes and improve the energy efficiency of vehicles

Page 33

7

and transport networks. The requirements for an Environmental Sustainability
Appraisal will be considered as each scheme or intervention is developed.
Compliance Against Net-Zero Emissions Target And Future Climate
Compatibility/Resilience:

7

64. The Plan sets out the Council’s transformational and ambitious roadmap to deliver
the required carbon reduction targets set out in the Climate Change Delivery Plan, for
the transport sector, whilst supporting the county’s communities and economy to
thrive. The Plan is therefore a significant contributor to the Council’s contribution to
the delivery of the county’s net zero carbon target of 2050. As the delivery
programme develops and subsequent decisions on targeted investment, calculations
on carbon reductions achieved through measures or schemes will be made to
contribute towards the organisation’s net-zero ambitions.
Public Health Implications:
65. There will be range of positive public health outcomes arising from the schemes and
interventions brought forward by the Council and partners in delivering the new
Transport Plan. This will include carbon reduction, cleaner air, promoting active travel
measures, improving digital connectivity to access key services. The public health
implications will be considered as each scheme or measures is developed.
66. The Planning for Place policy area sets out a new framework that supports the
Councils Health & Wellbeing Strategy to encourage a shift towards a wider range of
transport options that can help support a healthier and more environmentally
sustainable transport for system for Surrey to rebalance health inequalities and
improve mental health. Given the current draft status of the new transport plan there
are no direct public health implications because of this report.
What Happens Next:
67. Following agreement of the recommendations, the actions below will be undertaken:


The Surrey Transport Plan will be presented to County Council on 12 July 2022 to seek
the adoption of the Transport Plan and approve the publication of the plan on the
county council’s website from 13 July 2022.



Approval for any final changes necessary to allow publication of the plan on 13 July
2022 will be delegated to the Executive Director, for Environment, Transport &
Infrastructure, in discussion with the Cabinet Member for Transport & Infrastructure.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report Author:
Steve Howard, Transport Strategy Manager, 07794 251988
Consulted:
Community, Environment and Highways Select Committee considered the New Surrey
Transport Plan for Surrey on 25 June 2021
Greener Futures Reference Group considered the New Surrey Transport Plan for Surrey on:
-

6 August 2021

Page 34

-

15 November 2021
11 April 2022

A range of key stakeholders, including residents, Surrey’s borough and district councils, key
business stakeholders, Coast to Capital and Enterprise M3 Local Enterprise Partnerships,
neighbouring councils, and relevant transport bodies including Transport for the South East
and Highways England, Health Service Provides, Network Rail, Southwestern Railways,
SUSTRANS.
Annexes:
Annex 1 - Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report
Annex 2 - Additional Engagement Report
Sources/background papers:
Cabinet Paper 26 October 2021 Surrey’s Greener Futures Climate Change Delivery Plan
(CCDP)
Cabinet Paper 26 October 2021 National Bus Strategy – Bus Back Better - A Bus Service
Improvement Plan for Surrey (BSIP)
Cabinet Paper 26 October 2021 Surrey Infrastructure Plan – Phase 1 Schemes
Cabinet Paper 29 June 2021 - The Surrey Transport Plan (Fourth Edition)
Digital Infrastructure Strategy (2021) Digital Infrastructure Strategy 2021 (surreycc.gov.uk)
Surrey Infrastructure Plan (2021) Surrey Infrastructure Prioritisation 2020 (surreycc.gov.uk)
Climate Change Strategy (2020) Climate Change Strategy 2020 (surreycc.gov.uk)
Health & Well-being Strategy (2020) Surrey Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020
(surreycc.gov.uk)

Page 35

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1

SURREY TRANSPORT PLAN
CONSULTATION REPORT
7

CONTENTS
Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................................................2
Vision and Objectives ..........................................................................................................................................................2
Principles and policy areas .................................................................................................................................................2
Measures to improve journeys .........................................................................................................................................2
Impact Strategies .................................................................................................................................................................2
Measures to avoid or reduce journeys ............................................................................................................................2
Measures to shift more journeys to sustainable forms of travel ................................................................................3
Introduction...............................................................................................................................................................................4
Contex t And Considerations ...................................................................................................................................................4
Demographics............................................................................................................................................................................5
Our Vision & Objectives ...........................................................................................................................................................6
Principles and policy areas ......................................................................................................................................................8
Measures to improve journeys ..............................................................................................................................................8
Impact Strategies ................................................................................................................................................................... 10
Measures to avoid or reduce journeys .............................................................................................................................. 13
Measures to shift more journeys to sustainable forms of travel .................................................................................. 15
Recommendations and Next Steps..................................................................................................................................... 18

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 37

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
GENERALLY, 70% RESPONDENTS TO THE SURREY TRANSPORT PLAN CONSULTATIO N FELT THAT THE DRAFT
PLAN WILL BE AT LEAST SOMEWHAT EFFECTIVE. Measures that support travel by foot and bike were generally
seen as the most important in achieving the impact strategies. Criticism arose over the plan being too
complicated and not having enough concrete targets. Across the board measures that looked to change driver
behaviour received less support.

7

VI SI O N AND O BJECTI VES
There was a varied view of the visions and objectives . Half of respondents feel positive about the level of
ambition within the vision, while almost a quarter (23%) disagree. Half of respondents see rapidly reducing
carbon emission as the priority. Just under a quarter (24%) of respondents feel the vision and objectives will not
address the challenges and opportunities Surrey faces, while 70% believe the measures will be at least somewhat
effectively.
PRI NCI PLES AND PO LI C Y AREAS
Just over a half of respondents (52%) support the Avoid-Shift-Improve principles, while just over a quarter
disagree (27%). Around 1 in 5 remained neutral on the subject. Similarly, just under a quarter feel it will be
ineffective at meeting net zero targets, while 70% believe it will have some effect. This is reflective of the support
seen for the vision and objectives.
MEASURES TO I MPRO VE JO URNEYS
Efficient Network Management measures were seen as key to reaching net zero targets with 70% feeling that
they will have some effect on reaching the net-zero targets. Over a quarter of respondents felt the most effective
measure to manage the road network more efficiently would be the creation of a data driven network
management and a ‘vision zero’ approach to road safety. More respondents felt the promoting zero emission
vehicle measures would be effective (75%) than the behaviour change measures (71%).
I MPACT STRATEGI ES
Respondents generally favoured measure supporting more travel by foot or bike. Half of respondents feel
positive about the impact strategies, while 13% feel negative. A large proportion (37%) did not have strong
feelings either way. Respondents overwhelmingly (44%) chose ‘Travel more on foot or bike’ as the most effective
measure in Impact strategy 1. Similarly, respondents chose access to easy using non -car modes and amenities
within walking/ cycling distance as the most effective measure in Impact Strategy 2 a t 47%.
Respondents were in less agreement about which measure would be most successful at providing well connected communities, with integrated public transport being selected by 34% of respondents, while local
centres providing services that can be acces sed by foot or bike receiving 27%, and services accessible to all
receiving 25%.‘Travel to local centres on foot and bike and rebalanced traffic calmed roads’ (39%) was seen as
the top measure to support Impact Strategy 4. This was followed by ensuring tra ffic flows smoothly at 18%.
MEASURES TO AVO I D O R REDUCE JO URNEYS
Measures to avoid or reduce journeys was a divisive topic with just under half (43%) feeling positively about the
ideas to reduce or avoid journeys, with 25% negative. Respondents felt digital connectivity measures would be
most effective (67%) at reducing journeys, with the ‘Planning for Place’ measures close behind. Behavioural
change measures were least popular with 38% of respondents thinking they would not be effective.
Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 38

The establishment of 20-minute neighbourhoods (43%) were seen as the most likely way to encourage
respondents to reduce or avoid journeys by car, while new developments designed to promote sustainable
travel options came second at 22%. In the short-term walking and cycling schemes were the most popular (35%)
to achieve this goal, with making land use changes to increase the range of activities available close behind at
29%.
MEASURES TO SHI FT MO RE JO URNEYS TO SUSTAI NABLE FO RMS O F TRAVEL
There was a real indication of support for the sustainable travel hierarchy with 60% of respondents feeling
positively about the idea. However, 26% still felt active travel measures would have no effect in encouraging
walking or cycling, with 72% thinking it would be effective.
The main barriers to walking and cycling were fast traffic making cycling unsafe (19%), poorly maintained cycle
and footpaths (18%) and cycleways that aren’t joined up (17%). 69% of respondents felt public and shared
transport measures would be effective. Improved, integrated and simplified services were considered the most
effective measure to encourage public transport use with 49% agreeing with this. Improved journey time
reliability came second at 19%. Demand management for cars was seen as one of the least effective measures
for encouraging less car use with 36% of respondents disagreeing with this. However, measures effecting the
negative impacts of good vehicles and encouraging goods vehicles to operate more sustainably were seen more
positively with only 19% of respondents thinking they would be ineffective. Again, the behaviour change
measures received less support, with only 12% thinking they would be very effective.

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 39

7

INTRODUCTION
TRANSPORT ACCOUNTS FOR 46% OF SURREY'S CARBON EMISSIONS. The Surrey Transport Plan is an
opportunity to help tackle the global climate challenge whilst creating clear local benefits for Surrey's
communities, environments, and economy. The draft plan sets out our vision for a carbon net-zero transport
system by 2050 and the big ideas that will help us get there. It is the transport roadmap to tackle climate change
by reducing carbon emissions and reinvigorating our local places and communities, helping us to deliver
our Community Vision for 2030 and our Health & Wellbeing Strategy.

7

The plan has been developed from an extensive evidence base, compiled by reviewing local policies, strategies,
and datasets to get to the heart of the challenges facing Surrey and identify the key opportunities for transport
across the county. Once adopted, the plan will form Surrey County Council's primary transport policy, directing
future thinking, investment, and developments in transport.
In order to gain resident feedback on the draft Local Transport Plan a consultation took place from July to
November 2021. This consultation was primarily undertaken through an online survey with some further insight
being provided through direct emails. This report brings together the findings from both of these data sources
and provides recommendations for next steps.

CONTEXT AND CONSIDERATIONS
On the 5 th of July the Surrey Transport Plan Commonplace was launched. This provided both access to the full
documentation and a summary for each of the sections to allow respondents to access as much detail as they
felt necessary to respond accurately. Overall, the commonplace site received 8333 visitors and 1437
contributions.
There was a total of 414 confirmed respondents across the Commonplace survey. A further 84 responses were
received but not confirmed. Following best practice these responses have not been included in the analysis,
however, can be provided separately if requested. The nature of commonplace also allowed respondents to
focus in on the area of the report they were most interest in, and therefore each section has a varied response
rate ranging from 80 to 346 It is therefore important to acknowledge that some areas of feedback are more
comprehensive than others.
During the period that the commonplace page was live the Council also received emails from statutory
consultees. These responses have been included in the computer-aided thematic analysis which was undertaken
of all free text responses.
It is important to note that all forms of enga gement have been self-selecting, and therefore all findings should
be understood as indicative of residents’ views rather than representative of all residents.
It is also notable that during this period a series of in person engagement events were held. Attendees were
encouraged to complete the commonplace Survey and any feedback from these meetings were shared directly
with the design team and therefore has not been included in this report.

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 40

DEMOGRAPHICS
THE MAJORITY OF RESPONDENTS LIVED IN SURREY AND WERE CAR DRIVERS. Of those who gave their
demographic details two groups were underrepresented: females and younger people.
The Surrey Transport Plan commonplace received 1437 responses in total. A large percentage of respondents
drive private vehicles, with 50% selecting this choice (figure 2). However, cyclists were also common with 10%
of contributors usually using a bicycle, and 7% primar ily pedestrians.

What is your connection to Surrey?
(n=1437)
Unknown

7

What is your primary method of
transportation?
(n= 1437)

18%

I live here

Unknown

75%

I shop here

29%

Private Car

I work here

27%

Cycle

I visit for leisure/sport…

18%

I commute through here

12%

I do a school run here

I study here

10%

Foot

7%

Train

5%
2%

Commerical Vehicle

1%

2%

Private Car Passenger

1%

1%

E-bike or E-scooter

1%

5%

I make…

50%

Bus

9%

I own a business here

24%

0%

50%

100%

Figure 1: Connection to Surrey

0%

50%

100%

Figure 2: Primary Method of Travel

Respondents were more likely to be male, with 42% of respondents identifying as such compared to 28% female
(figure 3). The majority of respondents (59%) were 45 and older (figure 4). This is above the general
demographics for Surrey where 46% of the population are above 45. It should therefore be noted that this report
provides more evidence on the views of an older male demographic. Due to the smaller sample sizes of younger
people and females, more res earch would need to be conducted into these groups to ensure robust conclusions.

Which of these age groups do you
belong to?
(n = 1437)

How do you self-identify your
gender?
(n=1437)

25%
40%

42%

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

1% 5%

10%

23%

16% 20% 18%
5%

28%

Unkown
Figure 3: Gender

Male

Female

Prefer not to say
Figure 4: Age Band

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 41

0% 1%

OUR VISION & OBJECTIVES
GENERAL SENTIMENT ON THE LEVEL OF AMBITION IS POSITIVE (50%) WHILE A FURTHER 28% DO NOT FEEL
STRONGLY EITHER WAY. However almost a quarter (23%) disagree, which is a common finding throughout the
consultation.

How do you feel about the level of ambition within our Vision statement?
(n=338)

7

100%

50%

34%

28%

16%

11%

12%

Negative

Somewhat Negative

0%
Neutral

Somewhat Positive

Positive

Figure 5: Ambition within Vision Statement

Of those who disagreed with the level of ambition and chose to expand their reasoning in the comments, there
was a split between whose who felt it did not go far enough (8% of comments) and those who considered it
going too far (4% of comments).
“I want to know why SCC are
pursuing a net carbon zero
agenda. The 'vision' appears to be
collection of woke ideas and
phrases that take no
consideration of how ordinary
people live their lives…”

“Good approach but
stronger ambition
needed.

“The climate and environmental
crisis is URGENT, the draft Plan
suggests that its going to be a
gradual, easy route to
decarbonisation - I doubt it is and
this Plan doesn't give me
confidence we'll get there!”

Half of respondents see rapidly reducing carbon emission as the most important priority, with wellbeing and
quality of life coming second at 23% (figure 6). This suggests respondents in general were willing to forgo certain
personal benefits to achieve climate change goals.

What is the most important priority of the Plan's 4 objectives?
(n=299)
Rapidly reduce carbon emissions

50%

Excellent wellbeing and quality of life

23%

Business and people to prosper sustainably

15%

Well-connected communities

12%
0%

50%

Figure 6: Prioritisation of the plans 4 objective

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 42

100%

Just under a quarter of respondents feel the vision and objectives will not address the challenges and
opportunities Surrey faces, while 70% believe the measures will be at least somewhat effectively (figure 7). This
is reflected in those who agreed with the level of ambition in the plan.

Thinking about the Vision and Objectives, how effectively do you think they
address the challenges and opportunities currently facing Surrey? (n=308)
100%

7

54%
50%
24%

16%

6%
0%
I don't know

Not at all effectively

Somewhat effectively

Very effectively

Figure 7: Effectiveness of Vision and Objectives

Over 1 in 10 who left further comments on the vision and objectives found the wording either too complicated
or vague. There was an appetite for more precise and simple objectives, providing an opportunity to improve
future communication when consulting on individual schemes that support the plan.

‘It is unnecessarily long,
complicated and repetitive.
Strategies should be
concise, to the point and
implementable.’

‘Something simple saying
how you intend to improve
cycle lanes, reduce traffic
speed, put in more electric
vehicle charging points
would have been much
more useful.’

“Less vague unambitious
statements. Set real targets
to reduce traffic and
improve active travel.”

There was also a strong desire from respondents for more references to active travel, public transport, and the
bus network in the vision and objectives (figure 8). Respondents viewed these as the most likely way to achieve
the goals laid out.

Is there anything further you would like to add or would like to see included in
the draft Plan's vision and objectives?
(n=260)
Active Transport

18%

Public Transport

17%

Buses

12%

Less complicated and vague language

11%

Objectives do not go far enough

8%
0%

50%

Figure 8: Additions to the vision and objectives

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 43

100%

PRINCIPLES AND POLICY AREAS
JUST OVER A HALF OF RESPONDENTS (52%) SUPPORT THE AVOID-SHIFT-IMPRO VE PRINCIPLES, WHILE JUST
OVER A QUARTER DISAGREE (27%). AROUND 1 IN 5 REMAINED NEUTRAL ON THE SUBJECT. This indicates
that the majority of respondents were not strongly opposed to the principles on which the transport plan is built
upon. However, just under a quarter feel it will be ineffective at meeting net zero targets, while 70% believe it
will have some effect. This is reflective of the support seen for the vision and objectives .

How do you feel about the AvoidShift-Improve principles?
(n= 189)

7

How effective do you think the AvoidShift-Improve principles will be in
meeting our objectives to reduce
carbon towards net zero by 2050?
(n= 188)

100%

100%

50%

56%

30%

17%

22%

20%

50%

10%
23%

0%

14%
6%
0%

I don't
know
Figure 9: Feeling towards Avoid-Shift-Improve Principle

Not at all Somewhat
effective effective

Very
effective

Figure 10: Effectiveness of Avoid-Shift-Improve principle

MEASURES TO IMPROVE JOURNEYS
70% FEEL THAT EFFICI ENT
NETWORK
MANAGE ME N T
MEASURES WILL HAVE SOME
EFFECT ON REACHING THE
NET-ZERO TARGETS (FIGURE
11). Figure 12 shows that over
a quarter of respondents felt
the most effective measure to
manage the road network more
efficiently would be the
creation of a ‘data driven
network management’ (29%)
and ‘a vision zero approach to
road safety’ (26%).

How effective do you think the Efficient Network
Management measures will be in meeting our
objectives to reduce carbon towards net zero by
2050?
(n=136)
100%
57%
50%

23%

13%

7%

0%
I don't know

Not at all
effective

Somewhat
effective

Very effective

Figure 11: Effectiveness of the Efficient Network Management Measures

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 44

The most effective measure to manage the road network more efficiently
would be...? (n= 129)
Data driven network management

29%

A 'Vision Zero' approach to road safety

26%

Network maintenance

15%

Targetted capacity improvements

13%

Futureproofing our network for new technology,

9%

More enforcemen

9%

7

0%

50%

100%

Figure 12: Most Effective Measure

Figures 13 and 14 show that more respondents felt the promoting zero emission vehicle measures would be
effective (75%) than the behaviour change measures (71%). This suggests respondents are more likely to support
the broad efforts for Surrey to move to low emission vehicles than plans to change their personal behaviour.

How effective do you think the Promoting
Zero Emissions Vehicles measures will be
in meeting our objectives to reduce
carbon towards net zero by 2050?
(n= 140)

How effective do you think the
Behaviour Change measures will be
in improving journeys to reduce
carbon towards net zero by 2050?
(n=138)
100%

100%

63%

60%
50%

50%

25%

21%

8%

4%
0%

15%

4%
0%

I don't
know

Not at all Somewhat
Very
effective effective effective

Figure 13: Effectiveness of Behaviour Change Measures

I don't know Not at all
effective

Somewhat
effective

Very
effective

Figure 14: Effectiveness of Promoting Zero Emission Vehicles measures

The main barrier to reducing individual car ownership, as shown in figure 15, was understood to be due to the
convenience that comes with having a personal vehicle (36%), the perceived lower cost of petrol engine vehicles
compared to EVs or public transport (18%), and the cultural and societal expectations to own a vehicle (14%).

Thinking about EV car clubs and their potential to play a significant role in
increasing electric vehicle usage, what do you think the barriers are to reducing
individual car ownership in the future and why? (n=120)
Convenience

36%

Price

18%

Cultural Expectations

14%

Infrastructure

8%

Availability

6%
0%

50%

Figure 15: Barriers are to reducing individual car ownership in the future

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 45

100%

Respondents would like to see more emphasis on public transport to improve efficiency and sustainability of
journeys reflecting a larger trend of support for such measures (figure 16). There was also criticism on the
emphasis on EVs before electricity generation is decarbonised (10%), while an equal number wished to see
charging infrastructure improved.

Is there anything further you would like to add or would like to see included in
the draft Plan to improve the efficiency/sustainability of journeys? (n=103)
Public Transport

7

14%

Improved charging infrastructure

10%

Less emphasis on EVs

10%

Stricter penalties for emitters and enforcement

7%

Incentives to transition

6%
0%

50%

100%

Figure 16: Additions to improve efficiency/sustainability of journeys

IMPACT STRATEGIES
HALF OF RESPONDENTS FEEL POSITIVE ABOUT THE IMPACT STRATEGIES, WHILE 13% FEEL NEGATIVE. A
LARGE PROPORTION (37%) DID NOT HAVE STRONG FEELINGS EITHER WAY. Across all 4 strategies active
travel was seen as a very important component to achieving the goals. The low number of negative views
indicates the impact strategies are the least controversial aspect of the plan.

100%

How do you feel about the four impact strategies ability to meet our objectives
to reduce carbon towards net zero by 2050? (n=131)

50%

37%

32%
18%

7%

6%

Negative

Somewhat Negative

0%
Neutral

Somewhat Positive

Positive

Figure 17: Impact strategies ability to meet our objectives to reduce carbon towards net zero by 2050

Respondents overwhelmingly (44%) chose ‘Travel more on foot or bike’ as the most effective measure in
achieving impact strategy 1 (figure 18). Similarly, respondents chose easy access to use non-car modes and
amenities within walking/ cycling distance as the most effective measure in impact strategy 2 at 47% (figure 19).
This provides support for the establishment of 20-minute neighbourhoods.

% of respondents picking each measure from Impact Strategy 1 that they felt would
be most successful in reducing carbon emissions. (n=111)
Travel more on foot and by bike

44%

Use more digital services

16%

Travel more by public or shared transport

14%

Traffic flows more smoothly

13%

More vehicles are smaller and electric vehicles

9%

Receive e-cargo or EV deliveries

4%
0%

50%

Figure 18: Most successful measure Impact Strategy 1

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 46

100%

% of respondents picking the measure from Impact Strategy 2 that they felt would
be most successful in supporting Surrey's growth ambitions and enable business
and people to prosper sustainably. (n=110)
Access is easy using non car modes and amenities
available within walking/cycling distance, 2.

47%

Centres with local services, green spaces and low traffic
streets, low traffic streetsoffers Less traffic

20%

Businesses benefit from excellent digital connections
which support advanced online working

11%

7

Business and delivery journey times are more reliable as
the network flows more smoothly

6%

EVs and access to EV car clubs provide operating cost
savings compared to petrol and diesel vehicles

5%

Many employees are healthier due to increased walking
and cycling activity

5%

Businesses have access to a wider range of employees
and customers as it is easier to reach their sites

4%

New transport connections have opened up new land for
housing and economic development

3%
0%

50%

100%

Figure 19: Most successful measure Impact Strategy 2

Respondents were in less agreement about which measure would be most successful at providing well connected communities, with integrated public transport being selected by 34% of respondents, while local
centres providing services that can be accessed by foot or bike receiving 27%, and services accessible to all
receiving 25% (figure 20).

% of respondents ranking measures they felt would be most important to
successfully provide well-connected communities that encourage social mobility
and ensure no-one is left behind (n=110)
Integrated public transport services serve residents and
open up further services and opportunities

34%

Local centres provide a wide range of services and can
be easily accessed at low cost on foot or by bike,

27%

The services are accessible to all

25%

Residents have access to more services and
opportunities online at low or no cost,

14%
0%

50%

100%

Figure 20: Most successful measure well-connected communities

‘Travel to local centres on foot and bike and rebalanced traffic calmed roads’ (39%) was seen as the top measure
to support impact strategy 4 (figure 21). This was followed by ensuring ‘traffic flows more smoothly’ at 18%.
These are compatible with the answers given to achieving the other impact strategies.

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 47

% of respondents selecting their top measures from Impact Strategy 4 that they
think will be most successful in creating thriving communities with clean air,
excellent health, wellbeing and quality of life. (n=111)
Travel to local centres on foot and bike and rebalanced
traffic calmed roads

39%

Traffic flows more smoothly

7

18%

Physical and mental health has improved in the community
due to improved air quality, greater access to leisure
opportunities and increased walking and cycling activity

11%

Travel more by public or shared transport accessed by
Mobility Hubs and using a MaaS app

11%

An increasing number of vehicles are smaller and electric
vehicles

7%

Access to leisure opportunities and green space has
improved with improved options for travelling on foot, by
bike or by public or shared transport

7%

Receive deliveries that arrive by e-cargo bike or electric
van for their last leg

5%

Noise levels and visual and other disruption have also
reduced with reduced traffic levels

2%

Use digital services and opportunities more

1%
0%

50%

100%

Figure 21: Most successful measure Impact Strategy 4

Figure 22 shows that when asked if they would like to include anything additional to the impact strategies
respondents largely echoed previous answers, wanting a greater emphasis on active transport (13%) and
infrastructure improvements (12%).

Is there anything further you would like to add or would like to see included in
the draft Plan's Impact Strategies? (n=67)
Active Transport

13%

Infrastructure

12%

Air Quality

10%

Disapproval of Impact Strategies

7%

Overambitious

7%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Figure 22: Addition to impact strategies

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 48

90%

100%

MEASURES TO AVOID OR REDUCE JOURN EYS
JUST UNDER HALF (43%) FELT POSITIVELY ABOUT THE IDEAS TO REDUCE OR AVOID JOURNEYS, WITH 25%
NEGATIVE.

Do you think our ideas to reduce or avoid journeys are ambitious enough to
achieve our net zero carbon objective? (n=200)
100%

7
50%

34%

28%

16%

9%

15%

0%
Negative

Somewhat Negative

Neutral

Somewhat Positive

Positive

Figure 23: Ambitiousness of reduce or avoid journeys ideas to achieve our net zero carbon objective

Respondents felt digital connectivity measures would be most effective (67%) at reducing journeys, with the
‘Planning for Place’ measures close behind (figure 24). Behavioural change measures were least popular with
38% of respondents thinking they would ineffective.

How effective would the each type of measures be to encourage you to avoid
or reduce some journeys?
Planning for Place measures (n=180)

Digital connectivity measures (n=177)

Behavioural Change measures (n=177)
100%

49% 46% 46%

50%

38%
30% 29%

18% 21%
2%

4%

13%

2%

0%
I don't Know

Not at all effective

Somewhat Effective

Very Effective

Figure 24: Effectiveness of each measure type on reduction or avoiding journeys

The establishment of 20-minute neighbourhoods (43%) were viewed as the most likely way to encourage
respondents to reduce or avoid journeys by car, while new developments designed to promote sustainable
travel options came second at 22%. This is supportive of a preparedness to shift to walking and cycling were
possible seen throughout consultation. Of places to implement a 20-minute neighbourhood Guildford (7%) was
most popular.

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 49

Which measures is most likely to encourage you to reduce or avoid some
journeys by car in the future (n=166)
Established 20-minute neighbourhoods

43%

New developments designed to promote sustainable
travel options
Extensive rollout of fibre broadband and 5G mobile
coverage

22%
19%

Expanded behaviour change information and incentives

6%

Streets defined by the streets family guide

5%

Raised awareness and provision of online opportunities
and services

4%

7

0%

50%

100%

Figure 25: Measure prioritisation to avoid or reduce car journeys

Can you think of a suitable place, area or town where a 20-minute neighbourhood
could be introduced? (n=123)
100%
50%

2%

2%

2%

2%

2%

Epsom

Howard

Staines

Farnham

Woking

2%

2%

6%

6%

7%

0%
Walton Weybridge Haslemere Horsley

Guildford

Figure 26: Locations for 20-minute Neighbourhoods

In the short-term walking and cycling schemes were the most popular (35%) to achieve the goal of reducing car
journeys, while making land use changes to increase the range of activities available was close behind at 29%
(figure 27). Again, this is indicative of a more general desire to see more walking and cycling measures with 19%
wanting to see more active travel measures included in the plan, along with improved infrastructure to support
this. This was coupled with improved public transport at 10% (figure 28).

Which short term measure would most
improve your area (n=165)
Implementing walking and
cycling schemes that are
forecast to be well used

Is there anything further you would
like to add or would like to see
included in the draft Plan to reduce
or avoid the need to travel? (n=152)

35%

Making land use changes to
increase the range of
activities available

29%

Introducing 20mph zones
and traffic management as a
default

17%

Making public realm
improvements (e.g. parklets,
pedestrian priority)

13%

Establishing mobility hubs

6%
0%

50%

Figure 27: Prioritisation of short-term measures

Active Transport

19%

Cycling infrastuture

18%

Public Transport

10%

20 Minute
Neighbourhoods

8%

Footpaths

7%

20mph zones

6%

Behavioural Change
measures

6%
0%

100%

50%

100%

Figure 28: additions for reducing or avoiding the need to travel

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 50

MEASURES TO SHIFT MO RE JOURNEYS TO SUSTA INABLE FORMS OF TRAVEL
WITH 60% OF RESPONDENTS FEELING POSITIVELY ABOUT THE IDEA OF A SUSTAINABLE TRAVEL
HIERARCHY, AND 18% NEGATIVE IT WAS THE MOST POPULAR OF THE METHODS (FIGURE 29). This was
coupled with strong support for more active travel measures.

How do you feel about the idea of a sustainable travel hierarchy to support
more journeys to be undertaken by foot or bicycle? (n=291)
100%

7
37%

50%
9%

9%

Negative

Somewhat Negative

22%

23%

Neutral

Somewhat Positive

0%
Positive

Figure 29: Sentiment toward travel hierarchy

While 26% still felt active travel measures would have
no effect in encouraging walking or cycling, 72%
thought it would be effective providing strong support
for the measures (figure 30). When asked what the
main barriers to walking and cycling were there was a
strong response rate at 948 comments. Fast traffic
making cycling unsafe (19%), poorly maintained cycle
and footpaths (18%) and cycleways that aren’t joined
up (17%) were given as the main obstacles (figure 31).
Limiting traffic speed and i mproving infrastructure and
maintenance are therefore viewed as the best measure
to remove barriers to active transport.

How effective would the Active Travel
measures be in encouraging you to
walk or cycle more for local journeys?
(n=252)
100%
48%

50%

26%

24%

2%
0%
I don't
know

Not at all Somewhat
Very
effective effective effective

Figure 30: Effectiveness of Active Travel Measures

Of those that answered that other (9%) causes were a barrier to active travel a quarter said it was due to health
or age limitations, while others said it was due to safety concerns. Any future plans will have to ensure those
who rely on private vehicles to remain mobile due to reasons of health or disability are not excluded from
accessing services due to the promotion of active travel.

Which, if any, of the following are currently barriers to you walking or cycling
more for some local journeys? (n=948)
Fast traffic unsafe for cycling

19%

Poorly maintained cycle/footpaths

18%

Cycleways that aren't joined up

17%

Footpaths too close to traffic

12%

Lack of safe, secure cycle parking

11%

Other

9%

No facilities at destinations

7%

Poor air quality

5%

Insufficient signage

3%
0%

50%

Figure 31: Barriers to walking or cycling for local journeys

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 51

100%

7

Of the measures to encourage
public and shared transport, 69%
of respondents felt they would
be
effective
(figure
32).
‘Improved,
integrated
and
simplified
services’
were
considered the priority measure
to achieve this at 49%, while
‘improved
journey
time
reliability’ came second at 19%
(figure 33). Plans for public
transport should therefor e
prioritise joining up services and
ensuring information on how to
access them is simple, followed
by improving service provision
and reliability.

How effective would the Public and Shared Public
Transport measures be in encouraging you to use
buses, trains and shared transport more for local
journeys? (n=253)
100%

54%
50%
28%

15%
3%
0%

I don't know

Not at all
effective

Somewhat
effective

Very effective

Figure 32: Effectiveness of Public and shared public transport measures

What is the most effective measure that would encourage you to use
Public and Shared Public Transport more for local journeys? (n=240)
Improved, integrated and simplified services

49%

Improved journey time reliability

19%

Simplified ticketing and fares

13%

Improved accessibility and safety

9%

Expanded shared transport provision

8%

A Mobility as a Service (MaaS) framework (e.g. an
app)

2%

Mobility hubs

1%
0%

50%

100%

Figure 33: Prioritisation of measures to encourage use of public transport

Managing the demand for cars was seen as one of the least effective measures for encouraging less car use with
36% of respondents disagreeing with this (figure 34). However, measures effecting the negative impacts of good
vehicles and encouraging goods vehicles to operate more sustainably were seen more positively with only 19%
of respondents thinking they would be ineffective (figure 35). This is indicative of respondents in general
supporting efforts to be more environmentally friendly but less supportive when these measures directly impact
their behaviours. Similarly, behaviour change measures received less support, with only 12% thinking they
would be very effective (figure 34).

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 52

How effective do you think the different measures will be in encouraging you to
use your car less in the future for some local journeys?
Demand Management for Cars measures (n=258)

Behaviour Change measures (n=251)

100%

51%
50%

36%

8%

41%

7

29%
15%

8%

12%

0%
I don't Know

Not at all effective

Somewhat Effective

Very Effective

Figure 34: Effectiveness of different measures on decreasing car use

How effective would these be in reducing the negative impacts of goods
vehicles and encouraging goods vehicles to operate more sustainably? (n=251)
100%

49%

50%

15%

19%

I don't know

Not at all effective

17%

0%
Somewhat effective

Very effective

Figure 35: Effectiveness of measures on reducing impact of goods vehicles

The most popular measures to add to encourage sustainable travel were improved public transport (37%),
cycling (22%) and stricter rules for parking (9%). This included preventing cars blocking footpaths and cycle lanes
as well as preventing idling during the school run.

Is there anything further you would like to add or would like to see included in
the draft Plan to encourage more journeys by sustainable forms of travel?
(n= 228)
Public Transport

37%

Cycling

22%

Parking

9%

EVs

5%

Active Transport

5%

Infrastructure

5%
0%

50%

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 53

100%

RECOMMENDATIONS AND NEXT STEPS
The Surrey Transport Plan drew strong reactions from respondents as could be expected due to the breadth of
the plan. Whilst there is general acceptance across the whole sample that changes will need to be made, there
are divisions over how these should be implemented or the effectiveness of Surrey-only measures. There was
broad spectrum support for creating an easier environment for walking and cycling, as well as little resistance
for improving public transport. The main point of contention focussed on measures to limit the number of car
journeys being made.

7

GEN ERAL SUPPORT FOR THE PL AN WAS V ERY PROMISIN G BUT FUTURE EFFORTS
SHOUL D BE FOCUSSED O N WIN N IN G OV ER THE ROUGHL Y 2 5 % WHO ARE HESITAN T.
Across all areas of the plan there was around a quarter of respondents felt hesitant or negative.
These will likely be the contingent who will be most resistant should the plan be implemented
so work will need to be done to engage and understand this groups concerns.
EN SURE FUTURE COMMUN ICATION IS MORE CON CISE AN D CON TAIN S CL EAR
TARGETS.
Respondents found navigating the plan in its entirety unwieldly. Similarly, the lack of defined
targets led to respondents feeling hesitant of the council’s commitment to implementing the
measures. Once the principles of the plan have been defined future c ommunication with
stakeholders will need to better outline precise schemes and when they will be carried out.
PURSUE ACTIVE TRAVEL MEASURES.
Active travel measures were a popular and reoccurring theme throughout the free text
questions. They also received very little resistance when proposed in theory. These can be an
easy win going forward and be built into plans for 20-minute neighbourhoods going forward.
FRAME BEHAVIOUR CHAN GE N ARRATIV E MORE IN SO CIETAL TERMS RATHER THAN
PERSON AL
While many respondents understood the need for our habits to change when they felt their
own personal behaviour was being targeted there was more resistance. An option to increase
support for behaviour change would be to frame it in a wider context or to increase education.

Surrey Transport Plan Consultation Report- Prepared by Resident Insight Team

Page 54

Annex 2

Surrey County Council
Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement
Research
Final Report
14 April 2022
7

SURREY LTP4
ENGAGEMENT
RESEARCH
Page 55

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research | Surrey County Council | Final Report

Prepared for:

Steve Howard
Surrey County Council
Quadrant Court
35 Guildford Road
Woking GU22 7QQ
surreytransportplan@surreycc.gov.uk

7

www.surreycc.gov.uk

Prepared by:

Mark Teasdale
Senior Director
Temple
3rd Floor
The Clove Building
4 Maguire Street
London SE1 2NQ
Tel +44 (0)20 7394 3700
Mark.Teasdale@templegroup.co.uk
www.templegroup.co.uk

Document Control
Date

Author

Approved

14/4/2022

Kris Beuret, Tony Duckenfield, Lynda
Addison, Prudence Wales, Sophia
Dellafiora, Marie Williams

Mark Teasdale

This report has been prepared by Temple Group Ltd with all reasonable care and diligence
within the terms of the contract with the client. We disclaim any responsibility to the client
and others in respect of any matters outside the scope of the above. We accept no
responsibility to third parties to whom this report, or any part, thereof is made available. Any
such party relies upon the report at their own risk.

Page 56

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research | Surrey County Council | Final Report

Contents
1.0 Key Findings

3

2.0 Executive Summary

4

3.0 Background and Objectives

7

4.0 Methodology

8

5.0 Findings

10

6.0 Conclusions

33

Appendix A Surveys

35

Appendix B Methodology Note

52

Appendix C Reasons for Not Supporting the Proposed Actions to Reduce Carbon 56

Page 57

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

1.0 Key Findings

7

Page 58

3

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

2.0 Executive Summary
2.1.1

Temple has prepared this report on behalf of Surrey County Council (SCC). The
report outlines the findings from engagement undertaken across Surrey from
January 2022 to March 2022 regarding the fourth Local Transport Plan 2022 to
2032 (LTP4). Consultation on the LTP4 was first conducted by SCC from July to
October 2021. However, further engagement was required to better understand
those resident views which were not captured in the original consultation, with a
particular focus on more hard to reach groups such as younger people, women, and
people with disabilities.

2.1.2

The LTP4 sets out SCC’s ambitions to reduce transport-related carbon emissions,
as part of the Council’s Climate Change Strategy (2019). The cornerstone of this
plan is the transport hierarchy, which shifts strategic priorities away from cars,
towards active travel and public transport.

2.2

Approach and Engagement Coverage

2.2.1

To increase geographic coverage across the county and to target groups which
may have limited access to online surveying, we used a multi-method approach
throughout this engagement programme. The methods used included, an online
survey (756 respondents), market stalls (215 respondents), further education
events (71 respondents), stakeholder interviews (42), postal surveys (58 returned)
and neighbourhood games. The in-person market stalls and further education
events also included interactive voting exercises (620 participants), along with
children’s models of high and low carbon high streets.

2.3

Key Findings
Concern about climate change

2.3.1

The majority (82%) of respondents identified as being either “very worried” or
“worried” about climate change. About one third of respondents consider
themselves “very worried”.

Support for the transport hierarchy
2.3.2

Overall, the research indicates strong support for the proposed transport hierarchy.
Just over 80% of respondents agreed or agreed somewhat with the hierarchy, while
fewer than one in ten disagreed.

2.3.3

Although over two thirds of all age cohorts agreed or agreed somewhat with the
hierarchy, there is some variation in the level of support across age groups.
Younger people (18 to 29) are particularly supportive, with over 90% of participants
supporting the hierarchy. The least supportive cohort was the 45 to 59-year-old
group, with only 69% of participants supporting it.

2.3.4

Across Surrey, support for the hierarchy was high, with the least supportive local
authority, Tandridge, still showing 73% of participants agreeing or agreeing
somewhat. The highest level of support was in Surrey Heath at 92%. The online
survey revealed that the most common reason for not supporting the transport
hierarchy was poor quality or expensive public transport.

Page 59

4

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Levels of support for actions to reduce carbon
2.3.5

When participants were asked about their level of support for actions that could be
taken to reduce carbon, there was a marked difference between personal support
and estimates for support from residents in general. Compared to personal support,
these estimates showed lower ratings for support from residents and more ‘neutral’
ratings overall.

2.3.6

Personal support was highest for walking, which was also twice as high as support
for cycling. Reducing car use was the only action opposed by the majority in terms
of both personal support and estimates for residents.

2.3.7

The majority of respondents personally supported more local activities, changing
behaviour and reducing vehicle pollution. However, there was no majority support
predicted for residents in general.

2.3.8

Generally, women were less likely than men to support cycling more, reducing car
use, using smart technology, implementing measures to reduce vehicle pollution,
and using public transport more.

2.3.9

In addition, people with a disability tend to be less supportive of the actions
proposed to reduce carbon emissions. These participants appear particularly
averse to walking more, carrying out more activities in the local area, cycling more
and using public transport more.

7

Perceptions of effectiveness of actions to reduce carbon
2.3.10

Participants were asked to vote on their top three actions which would be effective
at reducing carbon. Options included more frequent buses, more reliable buses, 20
MPH zones, and higher parking charges, amongst others.

2.3.11

When voting on their top three actions, there was some variation across survey
type. However, more reliable buses and more frequent buses tended to be the most
popular choices.

2.3.12

The effectiveness of actions in reducing carbon were contrasted in participant
comments regarding the current practicality of undertaking lower carbon journeys.
For example, participants expressed safety concerns around cycling and cost
barriers to public transport.

Supporting residents’ behaviour change: feasibility and priorities
2.3.13

In contrast to earlier questions regarding more general support for actions to reduce
carbon, participants were also asked about how often they could do actions which
would reduce carbon in everyday journeys. Generally, there were low levels of
support for carrying out carbon reduction actions ‘often’ but higher levels of support
for carrying them out ‘sometimes’, suggesting a greater complexity for behavioural
patterns in practice than in principle.

2.3.14

Results showed that the only action the majority of participants felt they could do
more of ‘often’ was shopping locally. For all other actions except replacing driving
by cycling the majority indicated that they could do more.

2.3.15

Participants’ top three choices in terms of whether the action was possible either
sometimes or often were:
 Shop, eat, etc. locally;

Page 60

5

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

 Collect deliveries from local hubs; and
 Replace driving by walking.
2.3.16

Conversely, participants’ bottom three choices were:
 Work more from home;
 Share cars; and
 Replace driving by cycling.

7

2.4

Overall Comments

2.4.1

The original aim of undertaking this wider consultation exercise has been achieved.
We have gathered results from 1,762 formal participants, as well as records of
informal engagement and associated comments at the market stalls.

2.4.2

Those who have taken part in the engagement programme represent a wider
geographic coverage and more diverse demographic spread compared to the
original online consultation, as well as including those who are new to engaging
with the Council. Many participants have requested feedback and/or ongoing
involvement.

2.4.3

The consultation has also demonstrated high levels of support for tackling climate
change and the proposed transport hierarchy. In addition, the consultation itself has
raised awareness of the LTP4 and the rationale for tackling climate change.

2.4.4

The consultation shows the general public’s awareness that reducing carbon
requires a mix of both popular and unpopular policies, although inevitably there is a
tendency to favour the former. In particular, many insist that car use can only be
reduced after public transport is improved. The Council being seen as “anti-car” is
likely to be considered unacceptable without a clear focus on how alternatives like
walking, cycling and public transport will be supported and promoted in terms of
affordability, convenience and safety.

2.4.5

Fundamentally, there is no simple single solution to encourage or enable behaviour
change and there is considerable variation between and within demographic groups
on shifting public transport use.

Page 61

6

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

3.0 Background and Objectives
3.1

Project Background

3.1.1

The fourth Local Transport Plan 2022 to 2032 (LTP4) sets out Surrey County
Council’s (SCC’s) ambitions to significantly reduce transport-related carbon
emissions, as part of the Council’s Climate Change Strategy (2019) and overall
aspirations to achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2050. The LTP4 prioritises
strategies to create a large and rapid shift to active travel modes and public
transport, and to support county-wide economic, community and health aims.

3.1.2

Consultation on the LTP4 was first conducted from July to October 2021, in
accordance with SCC’s statutory obligations set out in the Local Transport Act 2008
and the Transport Act 2000. Although there was significant engagement and
socialisation of the LTP4 during this period, including 549 responses via Common
Place and paper surveys, Councillors considered both the number and
representativeness of responses insufficient to support adoption of the LTP4.

3.2

The Brief

3.2.1

This work was commissioned to facilitate engagement with a wider range of Surrey
residents, allowing for a deeper, more nuanced understanding of support and views
of the LTP4. The key research questions considered include:

7

 What are residents’ attitudes regarding the LTP4’s vision and objectives?
 How supportive are residents of its avoid, shift and improve principles?
 What are the levels of support around the LTP4’s two ‘big ideas’?

3.2.2

o

Travel hierarchy – prioritising investment in active and public transport;

o

Surrey street family network – supporting the planning for place and
development of 20-minute neighbourhoods by cycling and walking.

As part of the above Surrey would like to know:
 Which policies are seen as most valuable and supported by residents?
 What is it about the LTP4 and its proposals residents like or don’t like?
 How and why do opinions vary by demographics and geography, particularly
across younger people, women, and people with disabilities?
 What is the level of support among a variety of local businesses and other
stakeholders which may be positively or negatively affected by the LTP4?
 What are the principles residents and local businesses are prepared to support,
or not, to help understand where opposition is rooted?

Page 62

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

4.0 Methodology
4.1

Approach

4.1.1

Our approach combined different engagement methods and was based on SCC’s
requirements as laid out in the brief, the changing COVID-19 landscape and our
experience in delivering engagement targeting ‘hard to reach’ groups.

4.1.2

The research elements outlined in the diagram below were designed to be
integrated into a final sample for analysis and reporting. Common core questions
were consistent across all engagement types whilst some bespoke features
captured the feedback unique to that engagement method.

4.1.3

In order to gain feedback from underrepresented groups, many of whom are
digitally disconnected, it was important to not rely fully on a single online survey.
Therefore, a range of research methods were used:

7

1. Online panel survey (“online”);
2. Face to face surveys in town centre locations (“market stall”);
3. Face to face surveys at colleges and Further Education locations (“further
education”);
4. Self-completion questionnaires handed out at the market stalls and returned via
post (“postal”); and
5. Stakeholder interviews.
4.1.4

Copies of the surveys and questionnaires used can be found in Appendix A.

4.2

Reading the Data

4.2.1

Any quotes included from the market stall or further education engagement include
the location of the survey and the survey number. Quotes from stakeholder
interviews include organisation type.

4.2.2

All graphs include a footnote explaining the types of engagement and number of
participants included in the results depicted. This is because not all engagement
types are directly comparable.

4.2.3

All raw data has been supplied to SCC.

4.3

Research Elements

4.3.1

The engagement strategy for this consultation included the following elements from
1,774 total participants:
 Online survey – 756 participants
 22 market stalls
o

Surveys – 215 participants

o

Voting activities – about 420 participants

 6 Further Education events

Page 63

8

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

o

Surveys – 71 participants

o

Voting activities – about 220 participants

 Postal survey – 58 participants
 Neighbourhood game – 12 participants
 Stakeholder interviews – 42 participants

7

4.3.2

More information on individual research elements can be found in Appendix B.

4.4

Significance of Results

4.4.1

Every effort has been made to ensure that the research results reflect the views of
all Surrey residents, including groups that are typically underrepresented in surveys
and consultation exercises.

4.4.2

As the research is not based on a random sample, tests of statistical significance do
not apply. However, as a guide it is recommended that only a difference of more
than four percentage points is treated as a reliable indication of a genuine
difference. Extra caution should be taken when considering results relating to
relatively small sub-samples, and where samples are smaller than 250 it is
recommended that results are treated as indicative only.

4.4.3

Information about demographic monitoring and selecting locations for engagement
and participants for interview can be found in Appendix B.

4.4.4

Note that the sample size relevant to a particular figure or table is included in the
footnotes, for example (n=1, 100).

Page 64

9

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

5.0 Findings
5.1

Knowledge of Transport Related Carbon: ‘The Problem’

5.1.1

To provide some background for the problems being addressed in the LTP4, and to
gauge existing knowledge, people were asked three questions regarding transportrelated carbon emissions, car ownership, and average car journeys.

5.1.2

The results and accompanying comments showed there was good knowledge of
car ownership rates in Surrey, as 70% correctly guessed that 86% of households
own at least one car. However, there was a tendency to overestimate average car
journey lengths, and many participants were surprised to learn that the average car
trip was only two miles. There was also a good deal of uncertainty around what
percentage of carbon emissions in Surrey were due to transport, with 38% guessing
the correct answer, but over a third overestimating and a quarter underestimating
that value.
Figure 1: Responses to initial three questions framing ‘the problem’

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.2

Concern about Climate Change

5.2.1

The significant majority (82%) of Surrey residents are worried about climate
change. This includes a third who consider themselves “very worried”.

Page 65

10

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 2: How worried participants are about the impact of climate change

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.2.2

The concern about climate change runs across a broad range of groups but overall
more people are ‘somewhat worried’ than ‘very worried’.

5.2.3

Of those who were ‘very worried’ concern for future generations was often
mentioned: “I’m worried for my grandchildren.” (Weybridge, 5).

5.2.4

However, the nearly half of respondents who were ‘somewhat worried’ felt the
problem had been exaggerated and were optimistic that adequate solutions or
mitigations would be found: “It’s exaggerated. There’s a lot of fear mongering.”
(Redhill, 46), “Solutions will appear.” (Redhill, 36) and “Being too worried is
overwhelming and stops you from thinking about all the great things that could
mitigate the damage.” (Woking, 249).

5.2.5

Others contextualised the problem by location, claiming that climate change is less
of an issue in Surrey, due to its more dispersed and rural geography: “It’s not as
much of a problem in Surrey as it is in London.” (Redhill, 37).

5.2.6

Still others thought discussions about climate change were pulling focus from other
problems: “There are other issues that need to be solved first.” (Redhill, 35) and ”It’s
all nonsense.” (Haslemere, 195).

5.2.7

The table below highlights the variations in concern about climate change amongst
participants, identifying those subgroups which are more worried than average and
those which are less worried than average. The fact that most subgroups fall into
the “as worried as average” category is not indicative of the broad level of concern
which runs across most demographic subgroups.

5.2.8

It is worth noting that the survey methods (how and where the survey was
undertaken) appeared to capture different levels of concern, reinforcing the
importance of using a mixed method approach to the research.

Page 66

11

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Table 1: Participants grouped by their concern for climate change
More worried than average

As worried as average

Less worried than average

Aged 30-44

Aged 20-29

Aged 18-19

Aged 60-64

Aged 45-59

Aged 75+

-

Female

Male

-

Physical or mental health condition

-

Three or more cars

None, one or two cars

-

7

Employed full time
Employed part time

Full time looking after home or
family
Studying

Seeking employment
Retired

Long term sick or disabled
Manager, director or senior official
Professional

Administrative or secretarial

Sales or customer service

Caring, leisure or service
occupation

Manual occupations

-

No children
One or more child

-

-

White British
Other ethnic groups

-

Postal survey method

Online survey method

Face to face survey methods

Note: based on the percentage saying they are very or somew hat worried about climate change and at least a 4% point difference from the mean to be identified as more or less w orried than average.

5.2.9

69% of stakeholders interviewed agreed strongly that SCC was right to declare a
climate emergency: “We’ll never achieve it independently – we need to work
together.” (retailer) and “It’s a real sea change for the Council and everyone in
Surrey but it’s necessary regardless of any pressure from Government.” (electric
charging point installation manager).

5.2.10

Whilst many stakeholders were in strong agreement with the Council’s declaration
of a climate emergency, a minority appeared less interested, as they felt it would
not impact them directly: “I suppose so, pollution is an issue, but I have no strong
views on this, the issue does not come up for me in my work, I never deal with it.”
(Community action organisation, Surrey-wide).

5.2.11

Others thought action should be taken but that policies either miscategorised the
issue or did not adequately address it: “We need to take action on improving the
environment, certainly, but I’m not sure if it is specifically an emergency.”
(Community transport provider) and “All very well but the letters we get are all about
potholes or litter.” (Parish Councillor).

5.3

Support for the Transport Hierarchy
Key Points
 Over 80% of participants in the online, postal, market stall and further
education surveys agreed or agreed somewhat with the transport hierarchy.

Page 67

12

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

 Whilst there were some differences in levels of support across the 11 Surrey
local authorities, the least supportive authority, Tandridge, still had 73% of
participants agreeing or somewhat agreeing with the hierarchy.
 The most common barrier to supporting the transport hierarchy was that public
transport is poor or too expensive. Qualitative answers highlighted that many
participants felt unable to shift away from using cars due to a lack of current
alternatives.

Residents and the Transport Hierarchy

7
5.3.1

The research indicated strong support for the proposed transport hierarchy. 81% of
respondents agreed or agreed somewhat with the hierarchy, while fewer than one
in ten disagreed.
Figure 3: Levels of support for the proposed transport hierarchy

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.3.2

Whilst there is support for the hierarchy across different groups in Surrey, there are
some variations in the level of support, including across ages groups, as shown
below. This indicates that younger people are particularly supportive of the
hierarchy, whilst the 45 to 59-year-old group is the least supportive. Other notable
variations included:
 Those with no car in their household were somewhat more supportive of the
hierarchy (91% agreed / agreed somewhat) than those with one or two cars
(80%) and those with three or more cars (85%).
 Households without children seemed to show less support for the hierarchy
while females seemed to show marginally greater support. When combining
these effects, the differences became somewhat more pronounced, showing
that a male in households with no children tended to be least supportive (77%
agreed / agreed somewhat). Conversely, a female in households with one or
more children tended to be most supportive (85% agreed / agreed somewhat).

Page 68

13

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

This leaves around average support (81%) amongst males in households with
children and females in households without children.
 Participants from non-white British ethnic groups were slightly more supportive
of the hierarchy (85% agreed / agreed somewhat) compared with the overall
average of 81%.
Figure 4: Responses of those who agree and agree somewhat to the
proposed transport hierarchy, by age group

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.3.3

The overall variation in level of support for the hierarchy by local authority is shown
below, with residents of Surrey Heath showing the greatest support (92%), and
residents of Tandridge the least (73%).

Page 69

14

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 5: Responses of those who agree and agree somewhat to the
proposed transport hierarchy, by local authority

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.3.4

Participants in the online survey who did not agree with the hierarchy were asked
why that was, using an open-ended question. These have been categorised and the
number of responses in each category shown below.

5.3.5

The most common reason for not supporting the hierarchy was due to poor or
expensive public transport: “Public transport is too expensive to expect people to
travel on it regularly.” (Waverley, 340652) and “Because living in a village with poor
and inconvenient public transport makes this seem both unfair and unattainable ...
You are condemning me to a very limited lifestyle.” (Guildford, 3401509).

5.3.6

Many also viewed cars as necessary, especially for those who have difficulty
walking: “Some of us have no choice but to use a car.” (Waverley, 3401884), “It's an
ideal world view but we don't live in an ideal world, there are still plenty of people
who need a car for work such as NHS workers shift workers, carers, elderly.”
(Surrey Heath, 3401521) and “Fine if you're young & healthy and when the sun
shines but not practical for older people or during bad weather.” (Surrey Heath,
3401596).

Page 70

15

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 6: Responses for why participants do not agree with the proposed
transport hierarchy

7

Note: based on online samples (n=756).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.3.7

Participants in the face to face surveys often viewed car use as a necessity: “It will
be challenging to not use our car as we have a family.” (Weybridge, 11) and “Surrey
is a rural county. People need cars.” (Haslemere, 189).

5.3.8

Others prioritised public transport: “Some people are unable to walk very far, so
public transport should be a higher priority.” (University of the Creative Arts, Epsom,
322) and “Cycling and scooting is too dangerous. Public transport should be higher
on the list.” (Brooklands College, Spelthorne, 224).

Page 71

16

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

5.3.9

Others still suggested e-vehicles should be higher on the hierarchy: “They should
make more eco-friendly buses.” (Guildford College, Guildford, 199) and “There is
definitely a discussion to be had about e-bikes.” (Guildford College, Guildford, 209).

5.3.10

Some also focused on the health and social benefits of carbon-cutting strategies:
“Cycling should be a top priority for fitness.” (University of the Creative Arts, Epsom,
321) and “I like car sharing because it’s fun.” (Godalming College, Waverley, 334).

Stakeholders and the Transport Hierarchy
7

5.3.11

Amongst stakeholders, despite high levels of support for the hierarchy generally,
57% of participants were quick to add a caveat to their responses.

5.3.12

Again, the state of current infrastructure for cyclists and those with disabilities was a
common concern: “Without the correct infrastructure … you’re risking life and limb
to cycle to work. So even though I am a cyclist, in the main, I can’t – it’s too
dangerous.” (Head of Estates, college association) and “The hierarchy is all very
well but disabled people cut across these hierarchies for travel needs.” (Mobility
Centre).

5.3.13

There were also comments related to the needs of freight deliveries: “There could
be smarter planning for freight deliveries such as at night and also use parking
spaces in different ways at different times of day.” (Retailer, Redhill).

5.3.14

Some highlighted the need to be steadfast against opposition: “Will they be bold
enough though? That’s what it will take but it will take inspired Councillors and other
opinion leaders to stand up to the inevitable protests.” (Chief Officer, Borough
Council) and “Reliability is the key to building up a bus network and this will only be
achieved via bus priority – this isn’t hard to do in engineering terms, but it will take
determined action to resist the inevitable outcry from motorists.” (Bus operator).

5.3.15

Others voiced concerns about the immensity of the task: “I understand why and
share the urgency, but question feasibility.” (Parish Council member, Caterham)
and “Another challenge is the complexity of working in a two-tier District and County
system, not to mention regional and especially national remits and legislation. So
much requires joined up thinking which is hindered by institutional boundaries and
political and cultural differences, not to mention the private sector owning some of
the essential services and infrastructure, such as public transport and parking.”
(SCC GIS and Database Mapper).

5.4

Levels of Support for Proposed Actions to Reduce Carbon
Key Points
 There are marked differences between levels of personal support and
estimates of support from residents in general, with the latter given lower
ratings for support and higher ‘neutral’ ratings.
 Personal support was highest for walking which was also twice as high as
support for cycling.
 Reducing car use was the only strategy opposed by the majority both
personally and in terms of general estimates.
 The majority of participants indicated personal support for doing more activities
locally, changing their behaviour and reducing vehicle pollution. There was no
majority support predicted for residents in general.

Page 72

17

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Personal Support for Actions to Reduce Carbon
5.4.1

Participants were asked their levels of support for nine proposed actions, as shown
below. ‘Walking more,’ ‘Carry out more activities in the local area’ and ‘Change your
behaviour’ garnered the most widespread support, while ‘Reduce car use’ was the
only action to receive more opposition than support.
Figure 7: Responses of the level of individual support for different actions
proposed to reduce carbon

7

Note: based on the question: “The actions below are w hat the Council are suggesting needs to be done to reduce
carbon. How do you think you yourself would support these actions?” with answers recorded on a scale from 0
(strongly oppose) to 10 (strongly support) which have been categorised into three: oppose (0-4), neutral (5-6) and
support (7-10).
Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Variations in Support for Actions to Reduce Carbon
Gender Differences
5.4.2

Generally, female participants were less likely than males to support cycling more,
reducing car use, using smart technology, implementing measures to reduce
vehicle pollution, and using public transport more. Conversely, they were more
likely than males to support carrying out more activities locally.

Page 73

18

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 8: Individual support for proposed actions, by gender

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Car ownership
5.4.3

People without a car in their household were generally more supportive of all
proposed actions, apart from increasing online activity. The greatest differences
between those with and without a car at home occurred around proposals to reduce
car use, use public transport more and cycle more.

Page 74

19

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 9: Individual support for proposed actions, by car ownership

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Disability
5.4.4

People with disabilities tended to be less supportive of the proposed actions,
particularly walking more, carrying out more activities in the local area, cycling more
and using public transport more.
Figure 10: Individual support for proposed actions, by identifying as having a
disability

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Page 75

20

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Whether concerned about climate change
5.4.5

Generally, those who were very or somewhat concerned about climate change
were more supportive of all actions. The greatest differences between those who
were and were not concerned were for using public transport more, walking more,
carrying out more activities in the local area, measures to reduce vehicle pollution,
changing behaviour and reducing car use.
Figure 11: Individual support for proposed actions, by level of concern for
climate change

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Survey method
5.4.6

Participants in the face to face and postal surveys were more likely than online
survey participants to support most of the actions, particularly carrying out more
activities in the local area, using public transport more, changing behaviour and
cycling more. On the other hand, online survey participants were more likely to
support increasing online activity.

Page 76

21

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 12: Individual support for proposed actions, by survey method.

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

Reasons for Not Supporting Proposed Actions to Reduce Carbon
5.4.7

In the online survey, participants who scored their support for an action four or less
out of ten were asked to identify from a list of possible reasons why they did not
support that action. As shown below, the action which received the highest level of
support, walking more, was most likely to not be supported due to physical
disability, cars being more convenient and road safety issues.
Table 2: Top three reasons for not supporting each of the proposed actions
Action

Top 3 Reasons for Not Supporting
Physical disability

Walking more

Car more convenient
Road safety issues
Car more convenient

Carry out more activities in the local area

Public transport not available where I live/want
No activities in my local area
Cost factors / too expensive

Change your behaviour to reduce your carbon usage

Public transport not available where I live/want
Wouldn’t be effective in reducing carbon
Cost factors / too expensive

Reduce vehicle pollution – electric vehicles, new
types of tyres, etc

Other
Car more convenient

Page 77

22

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Action

Top 3 Reasons for Not Supporting
Car more convenient

Use public transport more

Public transport not available where I live/want
Cost factors / too expensive
Wouldn’t be effective in reducing carbon

Increase online activity

Lack of digital skills
Other

7

Cost factors / too expensive
Use of smart technology for road surfacing, robot
deliveries, etc

Other
Road safety issues
Road safety issues

Cycle more

Cycling - lack of skill
Car more convenient
Cost factors / too expensive

Reduce car use by parking restrictions, higher parking
charges, pay as you go eco levy

Car more convenient
Public transport not available where I live/want

Note: based on online sample (n=1,756).

5.4.8

A selection of the most relevant ‘other’ responses is provided in Appendix C.

5.4.9

Participants revealed a number of issues around cycling, including a lack of ability
and difficulty: “I can’t ride a bike.” (Godalming College, Waverley, 333) and “There
are too many steep hills for bikes in Godalming.” (Godalming College, Waverley,
330).

5.4.10

Many also cite desires to work or learn in person: “I don’t like working from home.”
(University of the Creative Arts, Epsom, 305), “I want to get out more.” (University of
the Creative Arts, Epsom, 311) and “I’m bored of working from home.” (University of
the Creative Arts, Epsom, 313).

Perceptions of General Support for Actions to Reduce Carbon
5.4.11

As well as their personal support, participants were also asked how they thought
‘people in general’ might support the proposed carbon reduction actions.
Comparing levels of personal support against perceptions of general support
indicates that for most policies, participants were likely to be more positive about
their personal support than about other people’s support.

5.4.12

The policy where this was most likely to be the case was walking more (71%
personal support vs. 49% perceived general support). There were also substantial
differences regarding changing behaviour (63% v 44%) and reducing car use (21%
v 12%). The policy for which there was least difference between personal and
perceived support was increased online activity (49% v 46%).

Page 78

23

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 13: Responses of the level of general support for different actions
proposed to reduce carbon

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.5

Preferred Actions Based on Perceptions of Effectiveness
Key Points
 There was some variation across survey type when voting on the top three
actions that would be effective at reducing carbon. However, more reliable or
more frequent bus services tended to be the most popular.
 The effectiveness of actions in reducing carbon were contrasted in comments
with the practicality of currently undertaking lower carbon journeys, for example
through fears of safety or expense.
 There were low levels of support for carrying out carbon reduction actions
‘often’ but higher levels of support for ‘sometimes’, suggesting the complexity of
behaviour.

5.5.1

Engagement participants were asked to identify what top three actions they would
find most effective to reduce carbon and improve sustainability. Among the most
popular options were more reliable and more frequent bus services.

Page 79

24

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 14: Top three supported actions, by survey type

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education survey samples, plus market stall and further
education voting games (n=1,762).
Note: voting games allow ed for some interaction and explanation w ith the researchers, this may explain some of
the differences including greater support for shared travel schemes, eco-levies and increased parking charges.
Note: voting games did not include the options ‘introduce transport interchanges’ and ‘improve road safety for
pedestrians and cyclists’.
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.5.2

Responses from Further Education events revealed concerns over road safety: “I
would walk to work as it is within a mile, but I can’t walk on the main road because
it’s not safe.” (East Surrey College, Reigate and Banstead, 296) and “If public
transport were more accessible and road safety better, people would not use cars
as much.” (East Surrey College, Reigate and Banstead, 297).

Feasibility of Actions to Reduce Carbon
5.5.3

In contrast to earlier questions gauging general support, here participants were
asked what specific actions they could do more of to reduce carbon in everyday
journeys. Results showed that the only action the majority of participants felt they

Page 80

25

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

could do more of ‘often’ was shopping locally. For all other actions except replacing
driving by cycling, the majority indicated that they could do more sometimes.
5.5.4

The top three actions in terms of whether it was possible ‘sometimes’ or ‘often’ were
shopping, eat, etc. locally, collecting deliveries from local hubs, and replacing
driving by walking.

5.5.5

The bottom three, or least feasible, actions were working more from home, sharing
cars, and replacing driving by cycling.
Figure 15: Participants’ ability to undertake actions to reduce carbon

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall, and further education samples (n=1,100).
Note: values are show n to 0 decimal places.

5.5.6

There were many additional comments explaining the reasons why people could or
could not do more to reduce carbon for everyday journeys.

5.5.7

Many participants claimed to already be doing all these actions, with some
expressing frustration at the question. For many, doing more is unfeasible.

5.5.8

Some commented on the infrastructure that needs to be in place in order for these
actions to become viable: “If electric vehicles are to be encouraged, the
infrastructure needs to be there. The behaviour isn’t the issue, it’s the
infrastructure.” (Camberley, 123).

5.5.9

Some showed interest at the suggestions being made, leading to further questions
and conversation: “Eco-levies sound the most promising. The vehicle type is
important.” (Leatherhead, 19).

5.5.10

Safety was also a key justification for considering an action unfeasible for walking
and cycling more: “I would walk, but the road to the supermarket is unsafe for
pedestrians.” (Horley, 104), “The roads are too bad. There’s too much traffic for
cycling.” (Godalming College, Waverley, 335) and “The morning school run is an
example of a journey that can lead to crisis for pedestrians or cyclists.” (Horley,
163).

Page 81

26

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

5.5.11

Some expressed similar safety concerns regarding sharing cars: “Car sharing can
be dangerous, especially if you’re a girl.” (Guildford, 222).

5.5.12

Mobility was another key factor taken into account by those surveyed, particularly
when it came to active travel. Needing to carry shopping and the inability to walk
long distances or ride a bike were featured multiple times.

5.5.13

Whilst there was a general willingness to take the suggested actions, motivations
behind them varied. Many mentioned their desires to increase these actions were
unrelated to climate change or that reducing carbon was not the primary goal: “I
don’t make decisions based on carbon. I decide based on cost and time.” (Egham,
131) and “It’s not always about carbon. It matters more what you eat and how it is
produced.” (Guildford, 141).

5.5.14

Some expressed concern over the wellbeing of local businesses, particularly in
reaction to the suggestion of delivery hub collection points: “That will kill all our local
shops.” (Haslemere, 194).

5.6

Priority Actions

7

Key Points
 There are many areas in which participants believe changes can be made to
encourage a reduction in transport-related carbon emissions. The most
frequently mentioned area is the reliability, frequency and affordability of public
transport, including adding services like station and school shuttle buses.
However, there was acknowledgement of SCC’s more limited remit in this area.
 Electric vehicles and the infrastructure needed to support them also came up
on a regular basis. Frequently mentioned points included the need for charging
facilities and the particular challenges of providing these for terraced housing,
the need for infrastructure supporting electric public transport, and schemes to
lower the cost of electric vehicles.
 Stakeholders involved in demand responsive transport and bus operators were
keen to emphasise the need for collaboration and integration across policy
areas including planning, transport and health.
5.6.1

Participants were asked the one thing SCC could do to encourage them to reduce
transport-related carbon emissions as an open-ended question. To analyse these
responses, results have been coded by charting the frequency of common words
used by participants, as shown below.

Page 82

27

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Figure 16: Key topics in responses to the question ‘If there was ONE thing the
Council could do to encourage you to reduce carbon related transport what
would it be?’

7

Note: based on online, postal, market stall and further education samples (n=1,100).

Responses from Individuals
Improve public transport
5.6.2

This suggestion was the most frequently mentioned with additional comments made
in support. However, answers tended to lack knowledge of how public transport is
organised, especially how the bus and train systems work and the limited powers of
SCC in organising or funding such services.

5.6.3

Many participants requested more affordable public transport, especially for
children: “Transport is not affordable at the moment.” (Weybridge, 8), “We need
cheaper buses, and it should be free for children to travel.” (Redhill, 44) and “Public
transport needs to be cheaper, and free for children.” (Redhill, 55).

5.6.4

Some thought the best way to address cost would be to have a publicly owned
public transport system: “We need to nationalise the transport system (rail and bus)
just like London. It is the only real long-term solution.” (Horley, 107), “We need to

Page 83

28

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

nationalise the trains, and limit the cost by putting in maximum fares.” (Egham, 133)
and “Lobby for state owned, cheaper train service, more publicity on bus services
(which should be more frequent and cheaper).” (Runnymede, 346).
5.6.5

Requests for more reliable and more frequent services, as well as better
infrastructure, were also popular: “More reliable and cheaper buses on country
lanes and to schools.” (Weybridge, 2) and “There need to be more buses –
especially on Sundays and from the hospital.” (Leatherhead, 27).

5.6.6

In addition, there was some demand for improved cycling infrastructure and
accessibility for those with disabilities: “Cycle lanes on roads, especially outside
towns and to reach parks and amenities.” (Runnymede, 346), ”Make cycle lanes
safer.” (Weybridge, 2) and “Better options for disabled people, please don't just
make it more expensive to use a car.” (Postal response from Runnymede, 340).

7

Electric vehicle access and funding
5.6.7

Purchasing electric cars was another popular suggestion and for many the best
solution, albeit with some caveats.

5.6.8

High upfront costs are a concern with the purchase price making an electric car
prohibitive for some: “Electric vehicles - there should be a tax scheme like cycle to
work with salary sacrifices to make it more affordable and accessible to more
people.” (Dorking, 175).

5.6.9

The need for more and faster charging points is another frequently mentioned
concern: “Encourage electric cars, but this might be limited due to lack of charging
facilities in terraced houses. Perhaps points along the road., but this needs
investment.” (Weybridge, 1), “8-Minute charging points.” (Leatherhead, 14) and “We
need more EV infrastructure.” (Leatherhead, 16).

5.6.10

Many participants also voiced their frustration with anti-car policies, preferring the
promotion of electric vehicles instead: “Promote electric cars rather than
continuously punishing petrol car owners. The economy is already bad, so don't
increase fares, as I already spend £80 a month on transport and I’m a student on
minimum wage.” (East Surrey College, Reigate and Banstead, 296) and “Firstly,
stop demonising the car! ... Try changing your mindset and look for other
alternatives other than the old tried and tested levy/restrictions which most people
resent. (Postal response from Runnymede, 152).

Localising and adapting services
5.6.11

Travelling less and shopping locally were popular choices among many
participants: “Work needs to be brought to where people live.” (Leatherhead, 72),
“We need more local amenities.” (Leatherhead, 74) and “We need more amenities
in town.” (Leatherhead, 77).

5.6.12

The popularity of these options was often linked to the need to regenerate
highstreets post COVID-19: “The Council should invest in more diversity in the high
street … I work from home post-pandemic and would love to be able to 'live local',
but my high street doesn't support that.” (Runnymede, 143) and “Improve local
shops so it’s possible to buy local produce, e.g. return to butchers, bakers, grocers
etc.” (Runnymede, 272).

5.6.13

However, these suggestions were sometimes accompanied by the contrary
suggestion to add free parking: “The Council should rebuild the high street so that

Page 84

29

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

we don’t have to go out of town. There should be free parking in town, and we
should have more businesses that aren’t corporate.” (Leatherhead, 69).
5.6.14

Home deliveries were also popular, though there was less awareness of parcel
hubs and their advantages, including the prospects of reducing freight traffic.

Appeal to behaviours and motivation
5.6.15

Participants also provided various other suggestions for SCC to adopt which could
motivate people to change their behaviour.

5.6.16

Appealing to children and young people was a common theme: “School
programmes should be introduced, to inform the younger generations.” (University
of the Creative Arts, Epsom, 311) and “The council should encourage walking,
especially with school children.” (Egham, 129).

5.6.17

Providing financial incentives, especially to reduce car use, were also commonly
mentioned: “Appeal to people’s laziness, i.e. we need to make buses cheaper than
using the car, or there is no incentive.” (Leatherhead, 24) and “Severely reduce cars
by making car park charges much higher. Ban cars from town centres and
encourage public transport (especially buses) to cover wider areas. Introduce a
'travel pass' at a reasonable price for bus travel. People with disabilities could be
provided with free taxis, paid for by higher car parking charges.” (Location not
specified, 159).

5.6.18

Other financial incentives included: “Some incentives should be introduced to lower
council tax.” (Leatherhead, 59) and “Give a free bicycle to everyone interested and
charge them if not used.” (Woking, 343).

Responses from Stakeholders
5.6.19

The stakeholder interviews included an open-ended question about what the
Council could do to reduce transport-related carbon.

5.6.20

A key theme that emerged from this question was the prioritisation of public
transport and the integration of transport with other services, particularly through
planning policy: “If we want to get people out of cars, we have to disincentivise
cars.” (Bus user group, North-West Surrey).

5.6.21

Some participants suggested that new housing developments should have better
access to public transport, schools, and local work hubs to limit the need to
commute: “Many are commuting to London from Surrey, and there is now less need
for that … If I had a flexible working space to go to that’s within walking distance, I
would choose that any day, and tens of thousands of people in Weybridge alone
would also choose that.” (Coordinator, Coworking initiative, Weybridge) and “It
would be good if we could work with the council and form alliances with other
businesses and schools that cover the same routes, to limit the number of separate
journeys taken.” (Community transport provider, Waverley).

5.6.22

Others suggested better provision and co-ordination of non-emergency patient,
staff, and visitor transport to health services: “Within the NHS, we are already
looking at zero emission vehicles for frontline workers and public transport services.
We’re trying to cut down people using cars to go in and out of the hospital.”
(Healthcare public transport provider, Weybridge).

5.6.23

There were also specific suggestions for public transport infrastructure, such as bus
shelters, information, reliability, electric buses, cheaper fares and integrated

Page 85

30

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

ticketing, with frequent comparisons made to London. Transport providers were
supportive of partnerships and referred to the Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP)1 targets: “The Surrey CC BSIP is an excellent document and has been
developed with a good range of operators. But it depends on the Enhanced
Partnership working far more co-operatively than previous practice not to mention
funding. And it’s also quite short term when the investment needed is long term and
up front.” (Major public transport operator).
5.6.24

The potential for demand responsive transport (DRT) was also raised by some
stakeholders, particularly in recognition of Surrey’s rural geography: “To be frank
major bus operators aren’t going to be providing rural services – that has to be via
some form of DRT or voluntary activity.” (Bus and coach operator) and “Improve
public transport infrastructure (bus routes, etc.). It’s difficult in this rural area, sure,
but that would encourage people not to get in their cars.” (Parish Councillor,
Caterham).

5.6.25

Affordability and frequency were also key issues: “It would be great if Surrey County
Council could improve the overall infrastructure to make it easier and cheaper for
people to get about.” (University faculty, Epsom) and “More frequent buses with
longer hours. The current bus runs between 9am and 6pm, so you can't get around
anywhere late at night without a car.” (Parish Councillor, Chobham).

5.6.26

The school run was also singled out as a good opportunity where walking or bus
shuttles could serve as substitutes: “Walking is a much better experience for both
kids and parents than driving ... So, it’s not just about carbon benefits. They all
reinforce each other ... I am now more likely to walk because it’s a more enjoyable
experience than driving. Those little design things contribute to the right
behaviours.” (Coordinator, Coworking initiative) and “Could we have a shared bike
scheme that’d make cycling with the family to get to school more enjoyable?” (Ibid).

5.6.27

Another priority for stakeholders was cycling, which received higher levels of
enthusiasm than from other survey participants, often reflecting knowledge of its
potential for funding. More and safer cycling routes were called for, especially for
those commuting, with calls for town link routes as well as leisure routes: “Cycling
needs to be made more accessible. Can’t we make it more of a daily transport
method, not merely a “weekend activity”?” (Cycle Shop manager).

5.6.28

Stakeholders mentioned that if cycling were made more accessible by installing the
relevant infrastructure, their organisations would be better placed to normalise
commuting by cycle, thereby reducing emissions. Suggestions included more cycle
lockers, bike share schemes, and showers in workplaces.

5.6.29

As with other participants, many stakeholders noted that electric transport including
electric buses, cars, and bicycles, could be a viable option if sufficient infrastructure
were in place: “Electric cars are coming in anyway, I guess if the Council were to
enable a quicker transition, then that would help us.” (Elderly care provider,
Weybridge).

5.6.30

However, electric vehicles are often considered cost prohibitive, so purchase
assistance and better storage were suggested to cut costs: “Our personal car will
need to be replaced soon, and we are hoping to get an electric car, but the cost of
e-vehicles is significantly higher and there is a cost to installing a charging point as
well as finding a suitable site.” (Local adult activity group coordinator, East Horsley)

7

1

Surrey County Council, 2021. Bus Service Improvement Plan, available at:
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0003/278715/Surrey-Bus-Service-Improvement-Plan.pdf.

Page 86

31

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

and “There needs to be secure locking infrastructure ... If you spend that much on
an electric bike you want to make sure it won’t get stolen.” (College, Weybridge).
5.6.31

Others suggested schemes for leasing or sharing vehicles: “My wish would be for
AV (automatic vehicles) or EVs to be constantly running round the village, hop on
hop off, that would take you from your point and drop you at another point where
you could get public transport. This would reduce car use, especially with buses
every 10 mins going past your house.” (Community transport service, East Surrey)
and “When I was in Lithuania you could get an E-car from the airport and drop it off
in the town centre.” (Member of Surrey Chamber of Commerce).

5.6.32

Improved cycling infrastructure was another common theme: “You won’t encourage
people to cycle without the infrastructure to accompany it.” (Head of estates,
College association), “It’d be great to have more cycling lanes linking different
towns to each other.” (Surrey Chamber of Commerce) and “Surrey County Council
has a good balance between walking and cycling. The funds for footway
maintenance has been ramped up and led by the government. Cycling requires
more headway investment and takes longer to be reflected in modal shift. The roll
out of the liveable neighbourhood concept will support this.” (Highways and
transport group).

5.6.33

Road infrastructure and construction were also highlighted as a deterrent to active
travel which causes congestion, associated emissions, and safety concerns.
Several stakeholders complained about the lack of coordination between roadworks
and operational planning: “I often see roads closed off even though there are no
works taking place.” (Head of estates, College association), “The way roadworks
are handled in Surrey doesn’t consider the impact on local traffic and local
economy. I don’t see any onus or penalty on contractors and the Council for taking
longer than necessary on roadworks which cause congestion and therefore carbon
emissions.” (Coordinator, Coworking initiative, Weybridge) and “We need safer
roads around schools.” (Manager, Road safety and active travel group).

5.6.34

Finally, stakeholders called for greater collaboration between SCC and the
voluntary and private sectors. There were many examples of voluntary and church
groups adopting environmental initiatives, including group travel to replace cars,
and cycle or mobility shops were keen to get involved: “The council need to work
more with the private sector – we are the cycling experts.” (Manager, Cycle shop).

Actions organisations could take
5.6.35

There were noticeably fewer responses to this question. Those that did respond
tended to mention moving towards electric vehicles, working in partnership with
their supply chains and encouraging work from home.

5.6.36

Overall, there was also a clear sense of resignation in these responses: “I go out
and about all the time so I need my car, I guess reducing the number of miles we
travel would be the only thing possible but that would curtail the community work we
do, it just wouldn't work for our organisation so I don't suppose there is anything we
could do.” (Community action organisation, Surrey-wide).

5.6.37

Ill and elderly residents were of particular concern: “The individuals involved being
taken to doctors and dentists are mainly elderly and if they have no transport, they
need us so we cannot stop doing what we do. I do not see any way this can change
... Stopping using carbon related transport would leave these people without access
to health appointments. (Elderly care organisation, Weybridge).

Page 87

32

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

6.0 Conclusions
6.1.1

The key research questions set out in the specification were as follows:
 What are residents’ attitudes regarding the LTP4’s vision and objectives?
 How supportive are residents of its avoid, shift and improve principles?
 What are the levels of support around the LTP4’s two ‘big ideas’?

7

6.1.2

o

Travel hierarchy –prioritising investment in active and public transport

o

Surrey street family network - supporting the planning for place and
development of 20-minute neighbourhoods by cycling and walking

Surrey also wished to know:
 Which policies are seen as most valuable and supported by residents?
 What is it about the LTP4 and its proposals residents like / don’t like?
 How and why do opinions vary by demographics and geography, particularly
across younger people, women, and people with disabilities?
 What is the level of support among a variety of local businesses and other
stakeholders which may be positively or negatively affected by the LTP4?
 What are the principles residents and local businesses are prepared to support,
or not, to help understand where opposition is rooted?

6.1.3

These questions have been answered in detail in the previous sections. The
following paragraphs highlight the key conclusions.

6.1.4

The original aim of undertaking a wider consultation exercise has been achieved. A
total of 1,762 people have taken part many from a wider geographic and more
representative demographic background than was represented in the original online
exercise. Many were also new to engaging with the Council and others have
requested feedback and/or ongoing involvement.

6.1.5

The research results show, as you would expect, that views on the LTP4 vary by
age, gender and location. People’s personal circumstances also greatly affect their
views and should be considered in the development and implementation of any
strategy.

6.1.6

The research reveals high levels of support for tackling climate change across the
wide range of participants. There is also support for the transport hierarchy but with
a range of caveats and issued raised. This exercise has demonstrated the general
public’s awareness that reducing carbon will require a mix of both popular and
unpopular policies, although inevitably there is a tendency to favour the former. In
particular, there is an insistence that car use can only be reduced after public
transport, walking and cycling provisions are improved. If the community is going to
accept any change in travel patterns, messaging should focus on improvements to
public transport, walking and cycling infrastructure rather than emphasising
reductions in car use.

6.1.7

This consultation also highlighted that many people do not have a clear
understanding of either the current transport situation in Surrey, such as the volume
of short journeys, or the reality and facts around climate change. Similarly,

Page 88

33

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

participants frequently misunderstood the role and capabilities of national and local
government bodies, often overestimating their influence.
6.1.8

Participant support was particularly strong for improving bus provision as a feasible
alternative to cars for some journeys. However, the bus system is inaccessible for
some due to personal circumstances, the incompatibility of geography and service
networks, and cost. Understanding the needs of potential customers, not assuming
“one size fits all”, and accepting that only a proportion of the community will ever
shift behaviour were clear themes.

6.1.9

The lack of effective infrastructure for walking, cycling, public transport, and use of
EVs was a consistent message, as was concern about safety across all modes.

6.1.10

Another common theme was of the need for collaboration across the public sector
with the private sector, the voluntary sector, residents, and other stakeholders.
There was a clearly expressed view that resolving climate change and changing
travel patterns requires a multi-faceted as well as multi-organisational approach.
Links to planning, health, education, and providers of transport services were all
raised.

6.1.11

The consultation itself has raised awareness of the LTP4 and the rationale for
tackling climate change. It has started an important dialogue on the key issues
raised in the plan, as well as providing a substantial level of support for its proposed
actions. There is a clear desire amongst participants for dialogue around these
various themes to continue.

Page 89

34

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Surveys
A.1 Online Survey
What is your home postcode (this will only be used for analytical purposes and to
ensure only in-scope responses are obtained)?

7

Surrey County Council want to know what people think about transport in their local area.
They are committed to reducing carbon emissions but recognise this can only happen with
changes in the way local people travel and need your views about what should be done.

The Problem
Q1 What % of carbon emissions in Surrey would you say is due to transport?:
6%/26%/42%/66%/86%
[AFTER SUBMITTING THE RESPONSE] The answer is 42%

Q2 What % of households in Surrey have at least one car?
73%/86%
[AFTER SUBMITTING THE RESPONSE] The answer is 86%

Q3 What is the average length of a car journey starting in Surrey?
2 miles/4 miles/6 miles/10 miles
[AFTER SUBMITTING THE RESPONSE] The answer is 2 miles

Q4 How worried are you about the impact of climate change?
Very worried/Somewhat worried/ Neither worried nor unworried/ Somewhat unworried/ Not
at all worried

Page 90

35

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Q5 The Council are proposing a ‘hierarchy’ of priorities for transport:
1 walking
2 cycling/scooting
3 e-bikes
4 public transport (buses and trains)
5 car clubs, taxis, car sharing
6 private car

7

7 air
Do you agree with this?
Agree/Agree somewhat/ Disagree somewhat/Disagree

The actions below are what the Council are suggesting needs to be done to reduce
carbon. What do you think about how (a) people in general and (b) you yourself would
support these actions on a scale of 0 (very unsupportive ) to 10 (very supportive)?
Measures to reduce carbon

a) Supported by Residents
in general

b) Your level of support

(0) Very Unsupportive – (10) Very Supportive
Q6 Carry out more activities in the local area
Q7 Increase online activity
Q8 Walking more
Q9 Cycle more
Q10 Use public transport more
Q11 Reduce car use by parking restrictions,
higher parking charges, pay as you go eco
levy
Q12 Reduce vehicle pollution – electric
vehicles, new types of tyres, etc
Q13 Use of smart technology for road
surfacing, robot deliveries, etc
Q14 Change your behaviour to reduce your
carbon usage

WHERE SCORED 0-3, “why don’t you support that?” (Choose from below)


No activities in my local area



Lack of digital skills

Page 91

36

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

7



Physical disability



Road safety issues



Cycling – lack of skill



Public transport not available where I live/want to travel to



Car more convenient



Cost factors / too expensive



Not necessary – technology will fix climate change



Not necessary – climate problems are exaggerated



Other (please specify)

Q15 The Council have a wide range of plans, some short term and some longer term, all of
which are designed to reduce carbon and improve sustainability. Please pick out the top 3
according to which actions you feel would be most effective in reducing carbon and
improving sustainability.
Action
Shared travel schemes – cars, bikes, scooters, taxis
Set up delivery hubs for goods vehicles
More reliable bus services
More frequent bus services
Better integrated information about public transport
Better accessibility for disabled and people with buggies, on public transport and walking
Introduce driving ‘eco-levy’ charge
Improve road safety for pedestrians and cyclists
Introduce transport interchanges
Increase parking charges to ‘level up’ with cost of public transport
20 mph zones
Key services within 20 minutes of where you live.

Which of the actions below could you do more of to reduce carbon for everyday
journeys? [Please tick one response for each question]
Not possible

Sometimes

Often

Q16 Shop, eat, etc locally
Q17 Replace driving by walking
Q18 Replace driving by cycling
Q19 Work more from home

Page 92

37

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Q20 Replace driving by using public
transport more often
Q21 Use ‘smart’ public transport e.g.
shared taxis, UBER
Q22 Share cars
Q23 Collect deliveries from local hub

Q24 If there was ONE thing the Council could do to encourage you to reduce carbon
related transport what would it be?

Q25 What was your age last birthday?
18 or 19
20 to 29
30 to 44
45 to 59
60 to 64
65 to 74
75 plus

Q26 Would you describe yourself as:
Male
Female
Neither / prefer not to say

Q27 What is your ethnic group?
White
Asian or Asian British
Black, Black British, Caribbean or African
Mixed or multiple ethnic groups
Other
Prefer not to say

Q28 Would you say you have a physical or mental health condition or illness which
reduces your ability to undertake day to day activities?

Page 93

38

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Yes
No

Q29 Are you an unpaid carer who looks after family, partners or friends in need of
help because they are ill, frail or have a disability?
Yes

7

No

Q30 Which of these best describes your current employment status?
Employed full time (including self-employed)
Employed part time (including self-employed)
Full time looking after home or family
Studying
Seeking employment
Retired
Long term sick or disabled
Other

Q31 IF IN FULL OR PART TIME EMPLOYMENT which of these best describes your
occupation:
Manager, director or senior official
Professional requiring at least a degree
Associate professional requiring a high level vocational qualification
Administrative or secretarial
Skilled trade
Caring, leisure or other service occupation
Sales or customer service
Process, plant or machine operative
Cleaning, packing or other elementary occupation

Q32 How many adults, including yourself, live in your household:

Q33 And how many children aged under 18 currently live in your household:

Page 94

39

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Q34 How many cars are available to those living in your household?
None
One
Two
Three or more

7
Q35 If Surrey County Council wish to undertake further research on the same topic,
would you be happy to be re-contacted?
Yes
No

Page 95

40

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

A.2 Face to Face Survey
“Hello – Surrey County Council want to know what local people think about transport in this
area – would you have a few minutes to talk to us? The Council are committed to reducing
carbon emissions, but this is can only happen with changes in the way local people travel, so
they need your views about what should be done.”

7

The Problem
Show participant The Problem sheet with graphs on – and get them to tell you the answers
to the questions below.

What percentage of carbon emissions in Surrey is due to transport?
6%/26%/42%/66%/86%
What percentage of households have at least one car?
73%/86%

What is the average length of car journeys in Surrey (miles)?
2 miles/4 miles/6 miles/10 miles

Q1 How worried are you about the impact of climate change?
Very worried/ Somewhat worried/ Neither worried nor unworried/ Somewhat unworried/ Not
at all worried
Comments
Q2 The Council is proposing a ‘hierarchy’ of priorities for transport. Do you agree
with this?
Please see Travel Hierarchy diagram and show to participants if necessary.
Agree/ Agree somewhat/Disagree somewhat/Disagree
Comments

Q3 The Council is suggesting the actions below to reduce carbon.
On a scale of 0 (very unsupportive) to 10 (very supportive), how do you think (a) people in
general and (b) you yourself would support these actions?
Get participants to give an answer for each measure on both scale A and B.

Page 96

41

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Measures to reduce carbon

a) How supportive are
residents?

(0) Very Unsupportive

b) How supportive are you?

(10) Very Supportive

Carry out more activities in the local area

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Increase online activity

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Walk more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Cycle more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Use public transport more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Reduce car use by using parking
restrictions, higher parking charges, pay as
you go “eco levies”, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Reduce vehicle pollution by using electric
vehicles, new types of tyres, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Use smart technology for road surfacing,
robot deliveries, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Change your behaviour to reduce your
carbon usage

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Q3b Comments
“Why do you say that?”
If you gave unsupportive ratings for any of the measures listed in the previous question,
what were your reasons? (unprompted but tick any mentioned and add ‘other’ comments)


No activities in my local area



Lack of digital skills



Physical disability



Road safety issues



Cycling – lack of skill



Public transport not available where I live/want to travel to



Car more convenient



Cost factors



Wouldn’t be effective in reducing carbon



Not necessary – technology will fix



Not necessary – climate problems exaggerated/denied



Other (write in)

Q4 The Council has a wide range of plans (some short term and some longer term),
all of which are designed to reduce carbon and improve sustainability.

Page 97

42

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

“From this list, please pick the top 3 actions you feel would be most effective in reducing
carbon and improving sustainability.” Show card.
Action
Shared travel schemes – cars, bikes, scooters, taxis
Set up delivery hubs for goods vehicles
More reliable bus services

7

More frequent bus services
Better integrated information about public transport
Better accessibility for disabled people and people with buggies on public transport and walking routes
Introduce a driving ‘eco-levy’ charge
Improve road safety for pedestrians and cyclists
Introduce transport interchanges
Increase parking charges to help fund the cost of public transport
Introduce 20 mph zones
Having key services within 20 minutes of where you live

Q5 Which of the actions below could you do more of to reduce carbon for everyday
journeys? (For each, mark as not possible, sometimes, or often)
Comments Especially for ‘not possible’ –
ask “Why not?”.
Shop, eat, etc. locally
Replace driving by walking
Replace driving by cycling
Work more from home
Replace driving by using public transport
more often
Use ‘smart’ public transport like shared
taxis, UBER, etc.
Share cars
Collect deliveries from local hubs

Q6 If there is ONE thing the Council could do to encourage you to reduce carbon
related transport what is it?

Q7 How old did you turn on your last birthday?
18 or 19
20 to 29
30 to 44
45 to 59

Page 98

43

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

60 to 64
65 to 74
75 plus

Q8 What is your ethnic group?
White

7

Asian or Asian British
Black, Black British, Caribbean or
African
Mixed or multiple ethnic groups
Other
Prefer not to say

Q9 Would you say you have a physical or mental health condition or illness which
reduces your ability to undertake day to day activities?
Yes
No

Q10 Do you currently provide unpaid care for someone else due to illness, frailty or
disability?
Yes
No

Q11 How many cars are available to those living in your household?
None

One

Two

Three or more

Q12 Would you describe yourself as:
Male

Female

Neither / prefer not to say

Q13 How many adults, including yourself, live in your household?
None

One

Two

Three or more

Q14 How many children aged under 18 currently live in your household?
None

One

Two

Page 99

Three or more

44

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Q15 Which of these best describes your current employment status?
Employed full time (including self-employed)
Employed part time (including self-employed)
Full time looking after home or family
Studying

7

Seeking employment
Retired
Long term sick or disabled
Other

Q16 If you are in full or part time employment, which of these best describes your
occupation:
Manager, director or senior official
Professional requiring at least a degree
Associate professional requiring a high level vocational
qualification
Administrative or secretarial
Skilled trade
Caring, leisure or other service occupation
Sales or customer service
Process, plant or machine operative
Cleaning, packing or other elementary occupation

Q17 Finally, what is your home postcode? This will only be used for analytical
purposes.

Page 100

45

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

A.3 Postal Survey
Thank you for your interest in giving us your views on transport. The key aim of the
plan is to reduce carbon emissions, but this can only happen with changes in the way
local people travel. Only local people can say whether they think this is possible.
Please fill in the questionnaire below and send back to us in the Freepost envelope
within a week. Your answers will be individually confidential.

7

The challenge
42% of carbon emissions in Surrey are due to transport
86% of households in Surrey have at least one car
The average length of a car journey starting in Surrey is 2 miles

Q1 How worried are you about the impact of climate change?
Very worried/Somewhat worried/ Neither worried nor unworried/ Somewhat unworried/ Not
at all worried
Q2 The Council is proposing a ‘hierarchy’ of priorities for transport:
1 walking
2 cycling/scooting
3 e-bikes
4 public transport (buses and trains)
5 car clubs, taxis, car sharing
6 private car
7 air
Do you agree with this?
Agree/Agree somewhat/ Disagree somewhat/
Disagree

Q3 The Council is suggesting the actions below to reduce carbon. On a scale of 0
(very unsupportive) to 10 (very supportive), how do you think (a) people in general and (b)
you yourself would support these actions?

Page 101

46

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Measures to reduce carbon

a) How supportive are
residents?

(0) Very Unsupportive

7

b) How supportive are you?

(10) Very Supportive

Carry out more activities in the local area

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Increase online activity

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Walk more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Cycle more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Use public transport more

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Reduce car use by using parking
restrictions, higher parking charges, pay as
you go “eco levies”, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Reduce vehicle pollution by using electric
vehicles, new types of tyres, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Use smart technology for road surfacing,
robot deliveries, etc.

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Change your behaviour to reduce your
carbon usage

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Any comments or reasons for especially where you gave personal low levels of
support? (tick any that apply)
No activities in my local area
Lack of digital skills
Physical disability
Road safety issues
Cycling – lack of skill
Public transport not available where I live/want to travel to
Car more convenient
Cost factors
Wouldn’t be effective in reducing carbon
Not necessary – technology will fix
Not necessary – climate problems exaggerated/denied
Other/comments (write in)

Q4 The Council has a wide range of plans some short term and some longer term – all of
which are designed to reduce carbon and improve sustainability. Please tick the top 3

Page 102

47

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

according to which actions you feel would be most effective in reducing carbon and
improving sustainability.
Action
Shared travel schemes – cars, bikes, scooters, taxis
Set up delivery hubs for goods vehicles
More reliable bus services
More frequent bus services

7

Better integrated information about public transport
Better accessibility for disabled and people with buggies, on public transport and walking
Introduce driving ‘eco-levy’ charge
Improve road safety for pedestrians and cyclists
Introduce transport interchanges
Increase parking charges to ‘level up’ with cost of public transport
20 mph zones
Key services within 20 minutes of where you live.

Q5 Which of the actions below could YOU do more of to reduce carbon for everyday
journeys? [One response for each question]
Not possible

Sometimes

Often

Shop, eat, etc locally
Replace driving by walking
Replace driving by cycling
Work more from home
Replace driving by using public transport
more often
Use ‘smart’ public transport e.g. shared
taxis, UBER
Share cars
Collect deliveries from local hub

Q6 Finally, if there was ONE thing the Council could do to encourage you to reduce
carbon related transport what would it be?

Q7 If Surrey County Council wish to undertake further research on the same topic,
would you be happy to be re-contacted?
Yes/No

Q7a If YES, which contact method is preferred? [please provide information]
Email, address or phone

Page 103

48

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Lastly, a few questions to help us check we are asking a representative spread of
local people [please tick answers]:

Q8 What was your age last birthday?
18 or 19
20 to 29

7

30 to 44
45 to 59
60 to 64
65 to 74
75 plus

Q9 What is your ethnic group?
White
Asian or Asian British
Black, Black British, Caribbean or African
Mixed or multiple ethnic groups
Other
Prefer not to say

Q10 Would you say you have a physical or mental health condition or illness which
reduces your ability to undertake day to day activities?
Yes
No

Q11 Are you an unpaid carer who looks after family, partners or friends in need of
help because they are ill, frail or have a disability?
Yes
No

Q12 How many cars are available to those living in your household?
None
One
Two
Three or more

Page 104

49

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Q13 Would you describe yourself as:
Male
Female
Neither / prefer not to say

Q14 How many adults, including yourself, live in your household:

7

Q15 And how many children aged under 18 currently live in your household:

Q16 Which of these best describes your current employment status?
Employed full time (including self-employed)
Employed part time (including self-employed)
Full time looking after home or family
Studying
Seeking employment
Retired
Long term sick or disabled
Other

Q16b IF IN FULL OR PART TIME EMPLOYMENT which of these best describes your
occupation:
Manager, director or senior official
Professional requiring at least a degree
Associate professional requiring a high level vocational qualification
Administrative or secretarial
Skilled trade
Caring, leisure or other service occupation
Sales or customer service

Page 105

50

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Process, plant or machine operative
Cleaning, packing or other elementary occupation

Q17 What is your home postcode? (this will only be used to check we have covered
all areas of Surrey)

7

Page 106

51

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Methodology Note
Engagement Types
Online Survey
The online survey was undertaken by Panelbase, via an online research panel which
rewards members for participating in Market Research surveys. The survey was sent only to
Surrey residents and designed to capture views on climate change, the transport hierarchy,
proposed actions to reduce carbon emissions, and the effectiveness of these actions.

Market Stalls and Postal Survey
22 market stall engagement events were held
across nine of Surrey’s 11 local authorities. These
were designed to capture responses in high
footfall areas, such as high streets and shopping
centres, to ensure engagement across a range of
demographics. At these stalls two ‘voting
exercises’ were carried out. In the first activity,
participants could demonstrate their preferences
for SCC’s proposed actions to reduce transportrelated carbon emissions using counters (e.g. 20
mph zones). In the second activity, participants
could use magnets to vote for what actions they personally would or would not be likely to do
to reduce transport-related carbon emissions (e.g. walk more). Child models of a low-carbon
and a car-centric high streets were also used to attract families and children. The market
stall venues were used as a base from which to
carry out face to face questionnaire surveys,
especially targeting those under-represented in
the online survey. In addition, a postal survey with
a free post envelope for return was handed out at
half of these events.

Further Education Events and Postal
Survey
To capture the views of 16 to 25-year-olds, a key
demographic under-represented in the original
consultation, six Further Education Colleges and
Universities were targeted. The engagement followed the same format as outlined for the
market stalls, using the same questionnaire survey, but did not include the use of the child
model.

Stakeholder Interviews

Page 107

52

7

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

7

These interviews were designed to extend the reach of
the consultation to businesses, organisations, and other
public and private groups. The interviews were carried
out over the telephone or through video conferencing
(e.g. Microsoft Teams) where requested from individual
stakeholders. Interviews took the form of a shortened
questionnaire survey, reflecting the core questions on
climate change and the proposed transport hierarchy
asked in the face to face engagement. The questions
regarding effectiveness of Surrey’s proposed actions in
reducing carbon were simplified for this format, and
additional questions were asked around how each
organisation could be supported in reducing transportrelated carbon.
Stakeholders were targeted across all Surrey local authorities and included: local
businesses, Parish Councillors, Non-emergency Patient Transport Services, VCSE’s
(particularly those that use Community Transport or focus on things including meal delivery),
Community Transport Groups, Social Services, Demand Responsive Transport Providers,
Train Operating Companies, Bus Operating Companies, National Highways, Citizens
Groups (e.g. North West Surrey Bus Users Group) and Further Education staff.

Neighbourhood Games
This approach to the engagement was
especially designed to include those who may
not participate in face to face engagement, such
as people in rural residents, those with
disabilities (including physical and neuro
disabilities) and shift workers. People were
invited to meet in small groups to use a card
‘game’ style information pack designed to match
the online, face to face and postal surveys. Each
set of cards provided background information to
contextualise LTP4 as well as interactive tasks
for the group to complete. Participants were
asked to record the groups’ priorities and concerns in a questionnaire, as well as their
demographic profiles. These questionnaires were then returned via a free post envelope.
Participants for this game were recruited through staff networks and volunteers identified
during the stakeholder interviews, and were offered a donation for refreshments and a
contribution to a local charity.

Location Selection
The locations selected for the market stalls and further education colleges were based on an
analysis of various data sets available by Surrey-i as well as data provided by Surrey CC
regarding town classifications. As well as ensuring engagement activities occurred across all
11 local authorities, practical considerations including the likelihood of footfall and
appropriate locations were considered.

Page 108

53

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Data sources considered included the IMD 2019, broadband data usage, broadband data
speed, at risk employees as a result of COVID-19 (MSOA), claimants of disability benefits,
food vulnerability index score, households in full poverty, internet user classification, staying
on in education post 16-years, job density, pensioners living alone, travel time to nearest
primary school PT/Walk, Travel time to nearest secondary school PT/Walk, voter turnout at
local elections, youth unemployment (ages 18-24), population aged 65+, net annual
household income, Access to Healthy Assets and Hazards household income domain,
Access to Healthy Assets and Hazards air quality domain, and populations aged 15-19.
A key factor in ensuing an adequate distribution across the county was the selection of a
representative sample of town centre locations, with this selection being informed by the
Surrey-i database and a City & Town Classification of Constituencies & Local Authorities 2.
The results are illustrated here showing the selected town centres by type and the
underlying level of deprivation.

7

Demographic Sample: Age and Car Ownership
The below table shows the combined sample from survey types for age and car ownership
compared to surrey as a whole. All groups are captured reasonably well with some over
sampling of young people and some under-sampling of 75+ age groups, and it shows how
the sample profile differs between survey methods.

Surrey

Survey (all
methods)

Online

Market
stall

Postal

Further
Education

Age

2

City & Tow n Classification of Constituencies & Local Authorities - House of Commons Library (parliament.uk).

Page 109

54

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

7

Surrey

Survey (all
methods)

Online

Market
stall

Postal

Further
Education

18-19

3%

9%

5%

5%

7%

64%

20-29

14%

20%

22%

16%

7%

21%

30-44

27%

28%

35%

18%

9%

6%

45-59

26%

19%

19%

20%

23%

9%

60-64

8%

6%

6%

10%

12%

0%

65-74

11%

12%

10%

17%

26%

0%

75+

11%

6%

4%

14%

16%

0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0

13%

11%

8%

18%

16%

23%

1

40%

49%

52%

44%

40%

35%

2

34%

32%

32%

32%

36%

25%

3 or more

12%

8%

8%

6%

7%

17%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Car ownership

Page 110

55

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Reasons for Not
Supporting the
Proposed Actions to
Reduce Carbon
7
Action

Walking more

Carry out more
activities in the
local area

Change your
behaviour to
reduce your
carbon usage

Reduce vehicle
pollution –
electric vehicles,
new types of
tyres, etc

Use public
transport more

Other reasons for not supporting

ID

Local
Authority

Combination of it being ableist and all about individual
behaviour change when the system needs reforming

3430224

Waverley

For those with medical needs priority should be given

3460749

Guildford

Having time to walk places is a luxury few people have. Also,
walking is often not pleasant - narrow pavements, not enough
safe places to cross and inconsiderate cyclists.

3402715

Mole Valley

Age & arthritis would prevent me

3401800

Waverley

Mental Health issues.

3401644

Reigate and
Banstead

Too far to cycle, too dangerous I live in a village in a rural area so no!

3396450

Mole Valley

I already use car only when necessary. Further penalties will
be overtly antagonistic and cause anger at blanket measures.

3405016

Elmbridge

I recycle. I stay home on the weekend. Don't drive for hours.
Ask celebrities to stop taking jets! Start with that.

3406430

Surrey Heath

The system needs reforming as well as individual behaviour
change. The latter won’t work without the former

3430224

Waverley

Electric cars only diverts the issue, they are not going to make
enough change and are not environmentally friendly enough
for me to be convinced in to changing.

3404580

Reigate and
Banstead

Electric vehicles are not the answer until they are able to have
a long range of charge and chargers are easily availanble
throughout the country

3404311

Tandridge

Electric vehicles cause other types of pollution and their
production methods are unethical.

3395108

Woking

Live in a rental flat, would not be able to charge car at home

3400355

Elmbridge

Buses very infrequent in my area & bus stops not particularly
nearby

3401800

Waverley

Covid I don’t want to use transport where anyone can have
Covid

3456371

Epsom and
Ewell

No public transport late at night

3406237

Mole Valley

Takes too long to travel to work and not productive use of time
in a day

3402931

Epsom and
Ewell

The transport links are terrible. There are certain towns that I
cannot access by bus and it takes so long to get there.

3406430

Surrey Heath

Too complicated to get a bus ticket.

3405016

Elmbridge

Page 111

56

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Action

7

Increase online
activity

Use of smart
technology for
road surfacing,
robot deliveries,
etc

Cycle more

Reduce car use
by parking
restrictions,
higher parking
charges, pay as
you go eco levy

Local
Authority

Other reasons for not supporting

ID

Unavailable at times i need and not reliable enough. I can't
have my children stuck after school waiting for me and it would
also mean i would need to reduce my working hours.

3404580

Reigate and
Banstead

1) People are already spending too much time in front of
screens 2) The carbon emissions from the delivery vehicles
cancelout the reductions from private cars

3432262

Guildford

I have a baby and she needs to get out of the house a lot
more. Social interaction is also important.

3401634

Elmbridge

Sitting in your house is unhealthy and impacts local
businesses

3403710

Runnymede

Social interaction is important, especially with young children

3403234

Elmbridge

I really do not like the idea of robot deliveries as the only time I
use the car is to do a full shop and visit my daughter who lives
4 hours away. A robot could not deliver a full shop.

3387472

Woking

Not realistic

3395183

Elmbridge

Technology goes wrong

3406237

Mole Valley

Smart technology?? Can it be trusted, look as so called smart
motorways. Re it delivery’s could put people out of work

3405724

Waverley

Sounds dangerous and does a risk people out of jobs.

3402715

Mole Valley

Area too hilly/steep

3403227

Guildford

Bikes are a danger on our narrow roads they cannot co exist
with cars

3461126

Guildford

Cyclists already have enough spent on them

3407627

Elmbridge

No storage in flats to keep bikes.. No outdoor. space. Theft a
massive issue

3405937

Elmbridge

Unable to transport goods easily

3405041

Waverley

In general yes but impractical in a local area when a shop is 4
plus miles away on dual carriageway to get

3396450

Mole Valley

All this will achieve is to price poorer people out of town
centres. Parking is already too expensive.

3402715

Mole Valley

already pay enough in road tax and will make more people
travel to main towns instead of local towns.

3395183

Elmbridge

Basic Human rights, person should be able to park cost
effectively

3408975

Woking

Cars are essential. It is a stealth tax to charge more for parking.
You can’t do without using a car with a family. Public transport
is nowhere close to even be a sufficient alternative to even
consider. Quality, availability, flexibility main issues

3462414

Epsom and
Ewell

I can’t afford to purchase an electric car and don’t have the
local facilities for charging or physical energy to cope with
waiting for charging elsewhere.

3403041

Mole Valley

People have good reasons to travel by car. It is not about
luxury. It is mostly about safety.

3406430

Surrey Heath

Public transport not an affordable alternative

3403241

Guildford

This penalises low income disabled

3403323

Woking

Page 112

57

Local Transport Plan 4 Engagement Research| Surrey County Council | Final Report

Action

Local
Authority

Other reasons for not supporting

ID

It would completely kill the high street. It is very noticeable that
towns that have free parking are doing much better than those
that overcharge

3401800

Waverley

It’s not fair to pay more when you have no choice but to use a
car

3431135

Woking

Parking is already expensive and a nightmare in Surrey.

3402374

Waverley

7

Page 113

58

7

CREATING SUSTAINABLE FUTURES

London
3rd floor
The Clove Building
4 Maguire Street
London
SE1 2NQ
+44 (0)20 7394 3700
enquiries@templegroup.co.uk
templegroup.co.uk

Haywards Heath

Lewes

Lichfield

Manchester

Page 114 Norwich

Wakefield

Item 8
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF CABINET MATT FURNISS, CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT
MEMBER:
AND INFRASTRUCTURE
LEAD OFFICER:

KATIE STEWART, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR
ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT & INFRASTRUCTURE

SUBJECT:

MINERALS AND WASTE DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

ORGANISATION
GROWING A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY SO EVERYONE CAN
STRATEGY PRIORITY BENEFIT / ENABLING A GREENER FUTURE
AREA:

Purpose of the Report:
The purpose of this report is to seek agreement of Cabinet to an extension to the timetable
in which the Minerals and Waste Local Plan (MWLP) is to be prepared. The extension
proposed will necessarily involve material amendments to the Minerals and Waste
Development Scheme (MWDS) previously approved in July 2021.
The principal amendments proposed would result in a delay in the adoption of the Minerals
and Waste Local Plan (MWLP) by no more than twelve months. The timetable extension is
necessary in the context of the complexity and range of technical assessments required to
prepare the draft MWLP and Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation particularly in
respect of minerals and waste site identification and extensive and meaningful stakeholder
engagement before and during the Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation period.
There is also a general need for timetable-flexibility in the context of any changes to National
planning policy and/or guidance; new regulations made pursuant to the Environment Act
2021; and the forthcoming Levelling Up Bill, and outcome of Natural England’s review of the
Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) boundary.
Considered preparation of the MWLP based on a robust evidence base and extensive and
proper stakeholder engagement will empower communities and result in a sound local
development plan document which will guide future decisions about minerals and waste
management development in the county. This will in turn provide long-term certainty to
developers and communities; development that helps Surrey mitigate and adapt to climate
change enabling a greener future; development that contributes to a growing and
sustainable economy so that everyone can benefit; and a steady and adequate supply of
minerals and sufficient facilities to manage Surrey’s waste over the relevant plan-period.
Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1. Approves the amended Minerals and Waste Development Scheme dated May 2022
which includes an extended timetable for the preparation of the Minerals and Waste
Local Plan, as set out in Annex 1.

Page 115

8

2. Delegates authority to the Executive Director of Environment, Transport &
Infrastructure in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport & Infrastructure
to make any further revisions to the scheme or timetable.
Reason for Recommendations:

8

Surrey County Council, as the County Planning Authority, is required by law to prepare and
maintain an up-to-date Minerals and Waste Development Scheme. Officers propose to
update the Minerals and Waste Development Scheme to extend the timetable in which the
Minerals and Waste Local Plan is to be prepared. This extension of time is necessary to
accommodate the complexity and range of technical work necessary to prepare a sound
local development plan; extensive and meaningful engagement with stakeholders; and
anticipated changes to Government policy, guidance, legislation, and regulations and the
Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty boundary during the plan-preparation
period.
Executive Summary:
Context
1. Surrey County Council (SCC) is the County Planning Authority (CPA) for minerals
and waste management development.
2. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as amended by the Localism Act
2011 requires the CPA to prepare and maintain a Minerals and Waste Development
Scheme (MWDS). The MWDS identifies what planning policy documents SCC has
adopted and sets out when these documents will be reviewed to keep them up-todate and consistent with the law and National planning policy.
3. At present this minerals and waste policy framework includes the Surrey Waste Local
Plan 2020; Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy 2011; Surrey Primary Aggregates
Development Plan Document (DPD) 2011; Surrey Minerals Site Restoration
Supplementary Planning Document 2011; and Surrey Aggregates Recycling Joint
DPD 2013.
4. Planning applications for minerals and waste management development must be
determined by SCC in accordance with these policy documents and any other
material planning considerations e.g., the National Planning Policy Framework 2021
(NPPF). Surrey’s 11 district and borough councils must also have regard to these
documents in making their local development plans and planning decisions.
Minerals and Waste Local Plan
5. In November 2020 Cabinet resolved to begin the preparation of the county’s first joint
Minerals and Waste Local Plan (MWLP) to update SCC’s existing minerals and
waste policy framework relevant to legislative and policy developments (such as
Surrey’s Climate Change Strategy 2020 and biodiversity net-gain obligations
pursuant to the Environment Act 2021) and address, amongst other matters, the
growing overlap between minerals and waste management development particularly
the positive role recycling can play in conserving and keeping primary materials
(minerals) in use for as long as possible to prevent waste.
6. Accordingly, in November 2021 the CPA commenced the first formal stage of this
plan-preparation process which comprised a 16-week Issues and Options public
consultation. The purpose of consultation exercise was to formally notify over 650
stakeholders of SCC’s intention to prepare the MWLP and find out what is important

Page 116

to them (and other stakeholders) about minerals and waste management
development. The consultation also included a ‘call for sites’ exercise inviting
landowners to nominate land in the county that may be suitable for future minerals or
waste management development.
7. The Issues and Options public consultation was widely advertised in several ways
and stakeholders were offered the opportunity to engage with the public consultation
through traditional and digital channels. Although necessarily technical, broad, and
strategic in nature the consultation material was designed to be accessible to a range
of stakeholders with varying degrees of interest, knowledge, abilities, and resources.
Between November 2021 and March 2022, the Issues and Options public
consultation attracted:






Just over 150 written representations (emails and letters).
21 Site nominations made pursuant to the call for sites exercise.
Over 2,350 visitors to the relevant digital consultation platform with 205
contributions to proposed policy options/approaches and 208 subscriptions to
relevant plan-making updates.
Over 334,000 targeted and organic social media impressions with 582 clicks.
Over 230 YouTube video views.

8. Stakeholder feedback arising from the Issues and Options public consultation has
been supplemented by other engagement work carried out by officers during the
relevant consultation period including qualitative research undertaken by way of two
deliberative focus group workshops with 53 residents; and feedback from several
advertised drop-in events held at public libraries about the Issues and Options public
consultation and minerals and waste management development in Surrey.
9. The next formal stage in preparing the MWLP will be the Preferred Options (Draft
Plan) public consultation. This will involve the CPA seeking the views of
stakeholders about the preferred vision, strategic objectives, spatial strategy, and
planning policies to address the CPA’s statutory plan-making obligations and a range
of issues relevant to minerals and waste management development. These aspects
of the draft MWLP will be considered and drafted by the CPA having regard to,
amongst other matters, stakeholder feedback relating to the Issues and Options
public consultation and Government guidance and policy relating to plan-making and
land-use planning.
10. To ensure that the MWLP provides for a steady and adequate supply minerals and
sufficient facilities to manage Surrey’s waste over the relevant 15-year plan-period,
the Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation will also necessarily propose a
range of sites or areas of land to be allocated or otherwise safeguarded for future
minerals and waste management development in the county. To this end the CPA
will need to assess and evaluate a range of sites/land at varying levels to identify
associated preferred options. Stakeholders will also be invited to provide feedback
and representations about these proposed sites or areas of land during the public
consultation period.
11. The Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation will be underpinned by a
Strategic Environmental Assessment and Sustainability Appraisal which will also take
account of any relevant material feedback received during the Issues and Options
public consultation. Additionally, the draft MWLP will need to be supported by a
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment relating to any proposed mineral and waste sites
identified as being suitable for future development, and an Equalities Impact
Assessment.

Page 117

8

Timetable Flexibility
12. There is a need for timetable-flexibility in the context of anticipated changes to
National planning policy and/or guidance; new regulations made pursuant to the
Environment Act 2021; and the forthcoming Levelling Up Bill, and the outcome of
Natural England’s review of the Surrey Hills AONB boundary.

8

13. The long-awaited Planning for the Future white paper was launched by the
Government on 6 August 2020 and proposed major reforms to England’s planning
system including the introduction of a zonal planning; reforms to public consultation;
digitisation of the planning system; and new infrastructure levy to replace Section 106
contributions. These reforms were expected for 2021 but have been put on hold and
are being reviewed by the new Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities. Updates to this process and the Government’s intentions are
expected in 2022 and may include amendments to the NPPF 2021 and/or the
National Planning Practice Guidance which could have a material impact on how
SCC plans for future minerals and waste management.
14. In November 2021 the Environment Act received royal assent. This piece of
legislation sets new statutory targets for the recovery of the natural environment in
four priority areas: air quality, biodiversity, water and waste, and to reverse the
decline in species abundance by the end of 2030. It also sets in law new tools that
the CPA can use to help meet those targets including the application of the
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) principle to mineral and waste management
development. In this regard, BNG regulations are expected in 2023 at which time
BNG will become mandatory for all minerals and waste management development.
These forthcoming regulations are likely to have a material impact on how SCC plans
for future minerals and waste management.
15. The Levelling Up white paper was published by the Government in February 2021
and includes provisions for encouraging the use of brownfield land for development;
simplification of local plans; more support for employment land; engagement with
infrastructure providers in plan-making; supporting environmental protection;
promoting beauty and good design; and the introduction of an Office for Place. The
Government is likely to introduce legislation in 2022/2023 to put into statute some
aspects of the levelling up agenda which may in turn have a material impact on how
SCC plans for future minerals and waste management.
16. In June 2021 Natural England commenced review of the Surrey Hills AONB
boundary in accordance with the Government’s commitment to designating additional
protected landscapes in England. It is likely that this review will result in additional
areas of land, particularly those locally designated as Areas of Great Landscape
Value, being included within the AONB designation. The outcome of this review is
expected in July 2023 and any extension to the existing AONB boundary is likely to
have a material impact on how SCC plans for future minerals and waste
management particularly in respect of the north-east and south-west of the county.
Minerals and Waste Development Scheme
17. The existing MWDS dated June 2021 sets out the following timetable for preparation
of the MWLP:


Issues and Options public consultation in October 2021.



Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation in June 2022.

Page 118



Pre-Submission Plan public consultation in early 2023.



Submission of Minerals and Waste Local Plan to Secretary of State in mid-2023.



Examination in Public of Minerals and Waste Local Plan in mid-to-late 2023.



Adoption of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan in 2024 ahead of the County
Council elections.

18. The proposed extended timetable for preparing the MWLP would result in an
amendment to the MWDS as follows:


Issues and Options public consultation in October 2021.



Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation in June 2023.



Pre-Submission Plan public consultation in early 2024.



Submission of Minerals and Waste Local Plan to Secretary of State in mid-2024.



Examination in Public of Minerals and Waste Local Plan in mid-to-late 2024.



Adoption of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan would take place at the end of
2024.

Consultation:
19. Prior to commencement of the Issues and Options public consultation, in March
2021, officers updated the Communities, Environment and Highways Select
Committee Sub-Group about the timetable for the preparation of the MWLP and
preliminary work done in respect of the Issues and Options public consultation. At
this time the member engagement strategy for the preparation of the MWLP was
agreed.
20. In September 2021, officers provided separate briefings to members (at an allmember development seminar) and the Cabinet Member for Transport and
Infrastructure about the purpose, scope, and range of the Issues and Options public
consultation and answered any questions they had in this regard.
21. In October 2021 the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure, in consultation
with the cabinet, authorised the launch of the Issues and Options public consultation.
22. Prior to the launch of the Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation, officers
will seek to engage meaningfully with Surrey’s LPAs and elected members and other
stakeholders (landowners, developers etc.) particularly in respect of any sites or
areas of land proposed to be included or otherwise identified in the draft MWLP.
23. Moreover, as part of the Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation and to
accord with SCC’s Statement of Community Involvement 2019, officers will also seek
to engage directly with communities (residents, Parish Councils, resident
associations etc.) and other stakeholders who may be affected by any sites or areas
of land proposed to be included, safeguarded, or otherwise identified as part of the
draft MWLP. This engagement work is likely to take the form of a series of
advertised on-line and face-to-face meetings and organised community events. For

Page 119

8

this reason, the Preferred Options (Draft Plan) public consultation will take place over
several months.
24. On 14 June 2022 officers will submit a report to the Communities, Environment and
Highways Select Committee to update members in detail about the Issues and
Options public consultation and related progress in preparing the MWLP.
Risk Management and Implications:
25. It is important that SCC’s development framework for minerals and waste
management development remains up-to-date and compliant with legislation and
Government planning policy and guidance. Failure to do so could lead to successful
challenges to decisions on relevant planning applications and enforcement actions,
whereby if they are overturned costs could potentially be awarded against SCC.

8
26. The CPA manages this risk by regularly reviewing the development framework
relating to minerals and waste management development to ensure that local
planning policy remains up-to-date and compliant with legislation, policy and
guidance, and takes account of the most recent local context affecting mineral
working and restoration, and sustainable waste management.
Financial and Value for Money Implications:
27. There are no costs associated with the amendment of the MWDS. The costs of
preparing the MWLP will be met from the existing service budget. In the event of a
legal challenge the need for external legal advice could lead to a financial pressure,
which will need to be managed within the wider Environment, Transport and
Infrastructure Directorate budget envelope.
28. Once complete, the adoption of the MWLP will provide a level of certainty to
members, officers, developers and residents. As a result, an up-to-date plan will
reduce the risks of appeals and legal challenges which can be costly for the SCC.
Section 151 Officer Commentary:
29. Although significant progress has been made to improve the Council’s financial
position, the medium term financial outlook beyond 2022/23 remains uncertain. With
no clarity on central government funding in the medium term, our working assumption
is that financial resources will continue to be constrained, as they have been for most
of the past decade. This places an onus on the Council to continue to consider the
issues of financial sustainability as a priority in order to ensure stable provision of
services in the medium terms. The costs of the MWLP are expected to be met from
existing approved budgets. Further, the Plan will reduce the likelihood of future
challenges and appeals which would have financial implications for the Council. As
such, the Section 141 Officer supports the recommendation.
Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer:
30. SCC is the CPA for Surrey. It is required by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004 to prepare development plan documents and other documents that provide
the framework for delivering minerals and waste management planning policy in
Surrey.
31. The Act also requires every planning authority to prepare a development scheme
which sets out the programme for the preparation of development plan documents

Page 120

and a Statement of Community Involvement which sets out the communities which
will be involved in the preparation of planning policy.
32. The revised MWDS is in accordance with the requirements of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act and will form the basis of the timetable to prepare the
MWLP.
Equalities and Diversity:
33. Plan preparation involves several stages of public engagement and consultation,
which provides the CPA with opportunities to seek the views of residents and other
stakeholders on the matters that are to be addressed by the MWLP, and on detailed
policies and sites that are to be allocated or otherwise identified for development.
34. An Equalities and Diversity Impact Assessment (EqIA) will be produced in
accordance with the requirements of the Equalities Act 2010 as part of the MWLP
preparation process.
35. The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) that the CPA is required to prepare
and on which it is required to consult as part of the plan preparation process will also
help to ensure that the widest possible cross-section of Surrey residents can engage
with and shape the plan-making process.
Other Implications:
36. The potential implications for the following council priorities and policy areas have
been considered. Where the impact is potentially significant a summary of the issues
is set out in detail below.
Area assessed:
Corporate Parenting/Looked After
Children
Safeguarding responsibilities for
vulnerable children and adults
Environmental sustainability

Direct Implications:
No significant implications arising
from the preparation and
implementation of the MWLP.
No significant implications arising
from the preparation and
implementation of the MWLP.
See section below.

Compliance
against
net-zero There is no requirement to assess
emissions target and future climate the carbon impact of the proposed
compatibility/resilience
amendment to the Minerals and
Waste Development Scheme.
Public Health

The potential implications of minerals
and waste development for the
health and wellbeing of host
communities will be assessed during
the plan-making process. The need
to safeguard host communities from
potential health effects will be
reflected in the priorities and policies
of the plan.

Page 121

8

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
37. Under the current plan-making process, the preparation of a new local plan is subject
to several requirements for statutory or technical assessment as a matter of law or
national policy. As a matter of domestic law, the development of a new plan must be
informed by a Sustainability Appraisal (SA), which should seek to integrate the
requirement for Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) set out in European law.
The SA/SEA process enables those preparing the Plan to identify potentially
significant impacts on the environment and wider sustainability issues, and to adjust
the plan so that such impacts are avoided, mitigated or compensated for.

8

38. Where the proposed MWLP could give rise to likely significant effects on sites of
European importance for nature conservation (i.e. Special Protection Areas or SPAs,
or Special Areas of Conservation, or SACs) it will be subject to Habitat Regulations
Assessment during its preparation. A local plan may only proceed to adoption where
it can be concluded that its implementation would not give rise to significant impacts,
alone or in-combination with other plans, programmes or projects, on the identified
sites of European importance for nature conservation.
39. As a matter of national policy, all local plans must be subject to Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment (SFRA) during their preparation, to ensure that the development
proposed would not be at significant risk of flooding and would not result in flood risks
changing significantly elsewhere in the affected area.
40. Mineral resources are finite and non-renewable, and their extraction will inevitability
result in their consumption for the purposes of economic growth and development.
The management of waste also has a clear impact on the environment. The
development of a joint MWLP presents opportunities to improve the contribution that
the recycling of construction, demolition and excavation wastes can make to reducing
demand for primary aggregate resources.
41. Waste arising from the activities of communities and businesses located in Surrey
require appropriate management, to reduce demand for primary natural resources
through recycling, recovery and reuse, and to ensure that where disposal is
unavoidable that it is done in a manner that minimises the potential for harmful
impacts on the environment and communities.
42. The restoration of former mineral workings has scope to contribute to the goal of
BNG, through the provision of new or enhanced areas of semi-natural habitat,
potentially contributing to wider networks of green or blue infrastructure. The
restoration of minerals sites also presents opportunities to integrate flood alleviation
measures, to address the impacts of a changing climate, and for the planting of trees
and other vegetation which can support climate change mitigation through carbon
sequestration.
What Happens Next:
43. A consultation summary report relating to the Issues and Options public consultation
is to be published in June 2022 at which time officers will submit a report to the
Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee to update members in
detail about the Issues and Options public consultation and related progress in
preparing the MWLP.

Page 122

44. The next formal stage of preparing the MWLP is the Preferred Options (Draft Plan)
public consultation which is set to be undertaken in June 2023 in accordance with the
proposed amended Minerals and Waste Development Scheme.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report Author: Dustin Lees, Minerals and Waste Policy Team Leader, 0208 541 7673
Consulted:
Caroline Smith, Planning Group Manager
Lee Parker, Director of Infrastructure Planning and Major Projects
Katie Stewart, Executive Director of Environment Transport and Infrastructure
Matt Furniss, Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure
Annexes:
Annex 1 - Amended Minerals and Waste Development Scheme - May 2022
Sources/background papers:
Surrey County Council Minerals and Waste Development Scheme - June 2021: Minerals
and Waste Development Scheme 2021 (surreycc.gov.uk)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 123

8

This page is intentionally left blank

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

8

Surrey Minerals and Waste
Development Scheme
May 2022

Page 125

Page 1

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

Table of Contents
Surrey Minerals and Waste Development Scheme ............................................................................ 1
1

Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 3

2

Minerals and Waste Development Framework ......................................................................... 4
2.1

3

Arrangements for Review ......................................................................................................... 5
3.1

4
8

Content of the Minerals and Waste Development Framework ........................................... 4
Monitoring .......................................................................................................................... 5

Other documents and guidance ............................................................................................... 6
4.1

Minerals and Waste Submission Proposals Maps ............................................................. 6

4.2

Minerals and Waste Planning Annual Monitoring Report ................................................... 6

4.3

Statement of Community Involvement ............................................................................... 6

4.4

Supplementary Planning Documents ................................................................................. 6

5 Sustainability Appraisal (SA), Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Habitat
Regulations Assessment (HRA) ..................................................................................................... 7
5.1

Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment ................................... 7

5.2

Habitat Regulations Assessment ....................................................................................... 7

Appendix 1 – Existing Minerals and Waste Development Framework ........................................ 8
Appendix 2 – Minerals and Waste Development Framework...................................................... 9
Appendix 3 – Review of Minerals and Waste Local Development Documents ......................... 10

Page 126

Page 2

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

1. Introduction
1.1 The Local Planning Authority is required to produce a Local Development Scheme.1 Surrey
County Council is the Minerals and Waste Planning Authority and has produced a Minerals and
Waste Development Scheme (MWDS) for Surrey.
1.2 The MWDS is a public statement identifying which local development documents will be
produced and when they will be reviewed. The MWDS will be made available publicly on the
Surrey County Council website and will be kept up to date.
1.3 The MWDS:
•

1

Provides a brief description of the adopted minerals and waste local plans and the
relationship between them.

8

•

Sets out the planned timetable for reviewing the joint development plan document and the
key milestones in the process.

•

Indicates which supplementary planning guidance will continue to be used as a material
consideration in determining planning applications.

•

Indicates how Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Strategic Environmental Assessment
(SEA) and Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA) are integrated into the preparation of
the Minerals and Waste Development Framework (MWDF).

Under Section 15 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by the Localism Act 2001).

Page 127

Page 3

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

2. Minerals and Waste Development Framework
1.1 Content of the Minerals and Waste Development Framework
1.1.1 The minerals and waste development framework for Surrey consists of a number of local
development documents:

8

•

Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWP)

•

Surrey Minerals Plan (SMP)

•

Minerals Site Restoration Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

•

Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD (ARJDPD)

•

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

•

Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR) including an annual Local Aggregates Assessment
(LAA).

1.1.2 A full description of each document and details of adoption are provided in Appendix 1. The
relationship between the documents that make up the Minerals and Waste Local
Development Framework is illustrated in Appendix 2.
1.1.3 In addition to the document listed above reference is also made in Appendix 1 and Appendix
2 to the new Surrey Waste Local Plan (SWLP), which was found sound in May 2020 and is
scheduled for adoption in December 2020. Upon adoption the SWLP will replace the SWP in
the Surrey Minerals and Waste Development Framework.
1.1.4 Although currently separate publications, it is intended that when reviewed the SWLP and
SMP will be combined in one consolidated document.

Page 128

Page 4

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

3. Arrangements for Review
3.1 Monitoring
3.1.1 An AMR is prepared as part of the framework documentation. Part of the role of the AMR will
be to monitor implementation of the MWDS. This Includes:
•

Reporting on the progress made and whether the authority has met targets and
milestones

•

Where the authority has or will not meet targets, the reasons behind this and what steps
will be taken to address these problems.

•

Monitor the extent to which policies in the MWDF are being implemented and any policy
areas where change is needed.

•

Identify any significant changes to the evidence base which might affect the targets or
policies in adopted plans.

3.1.2. The authority will also carry out any surveys and produce an LAA to monitor the supply of
aggregates. Recognising the role that the authority has in planning for a steady and adequate
supply of minerals (NPPF, Paragraph 146).
3.1.3 All minerals and waste local development documents are complete and have been adopted.
Information on how and when minerals and waste local development documents will be
reviewed is provided in Appendix 3. The authority will indicate if it is necessary to amend the
LDS in the light of any assessment or ongoing monitoring.

Page 129

Page 5

8

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

4. Other documents and guidance
4.1 Minerals and Waste Submission Proposals Maps
4.1.1 A Policies Map has been prepared for the:

8

•

Surrey Waste Local Plan DPD

•

Surrey Minerals Plan Core Strategy

•

Surrey Minerals Plan Primary Aggregates DPD

•

Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD.

4.1.2 These maps will be updated annually by the authority and maintained on the Surrey County
Council webpages.
4.2 Minerals and Waste Planning Annual Monitoring Report
4.2.1 Authorities are required to prepare an AMR to assess the implementation of the LDS and the
extent to which policies in Local Plans are being achieved. The Surrey AMR monitors the
indicators and targets in the adopted minerals and waste development documents.
4.2.2 The AMR will contain the relevant information required under the regulations2, and an annual
Local Aggregates Assessment. Recent reports will be available on the Surrey County Council
webpages.

4.3 Statement of Community Involvement
4.3.1 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how local communities and
stakeholders will be involved in the preparation of the Minerals and Waste Development
Framework and in the consideration of planning applications and the steps that the authority
will take to facilitate this.

4.4 Supplementary Planning Documents
4.4.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) are intended to expand upon policy or provide
further detail to policies in development plan documents. Restoration of mineral workings is
covered in the Minerals Site Restoration SPD which was formally adopted in July 2011.
4.4.2 The Minerals Site Restoration SPD document sets out best practice in restoration techniques
and presents indicative restoration schemes for all of the preferred areas for working of
primary aggregates and silica sand as identified in the Surrey Minerals Plan and is kept
under review.

2

The Town and County Planning (Local Planning)(England) Regulations 2012

Page 130

Page 6

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

5. Sustainability Appraisal (SA), Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) and Habitat Regulations Assessment
(HRA)
5.1 Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment
5.1.1 The new Minerals and Waste Local Plan will be subject to the requirements for Sustainability
Appraisal3 (SA) and Strategic Environmental Assessment4 (SEA) as part of the plan
preparation process. The adopted Surrey Waste Plan and the adopted Surrey Minerals Plan
were both subject to SA and SEA as part of their preparation, as was the new Surrey Waste
Local Plan which is awaiting adoption. SPDs are not subject to the requirement for SA but
may need to undergo SEA. The SEA of the Surrey Minerals Plan took account of the
Restoration SPD, as a key means of enabling the timely restoration of minerals sites.
5.1.2 The SA and SEA for the new joint Surrey Minerals and Waste Local Plan will form a key part
of the plan preparation process. Recommendations arising from the SA and SEA will feed
into the plan preparation process and will help to guide the development of the policies and
proposals set out in the new plan.
5.1.3 In practice the SA and SEA processes are combined, and the findings and recommendations
set out in a single report and accompanying non-technical summary.

5.2 Habitat Regulations Assessment
5.2.1 The new Minerals and Waste Local Plan will be subject to the requirement5 for Habitat
Regulations Assessment (HRA) as part of the plan preparation process. The HRA process is
specifically concerned with the likely significant effects of the proposed plan on sites of
European importance for nature conservation.
5.2.2 There are four Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and three Special Areas of Conservation
(SACs) locate wholly or partly within Surrey. Consequently in order to adopt the new Minerals
and Waste Local Plan the MWPA will need to be able to prove that implementation of the
plan, alone and in combination with other plans and projects, will not have significant impacts
on the ecological integrity of the SPAs and SACs within and close to the county. The HRA is
the mechanism by which the MWPA will meet that obligation.

3

Under section 19(5) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
The Environmental Assessment of Plans & Programmes Regulations 2004.
5 Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as amended)
4

Page 131

Page 7

8

8

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

Appendix 1 – Existing Minerals and Waste Development Framework
Table 1 – Profiles of Minerals and Waste Development Framework
Document
Surrey Minerals Plan (SMP)

Page 132

Description
Core Strategy: Sets out the vision, objectives and spatial strategy for mineral
development to 2026 incorporating specific policies on silica sand, brick clay
and oil and gas, together with generic policies to determine planning
applications for mineral development. Primary Aggregates: Policy framework to
address the need for and provision of sharp sand, gravel and soft sand in
Surrey. The document identifies preferred areas to meet need for aggregates
and contains policies for controlling primary aggregate extraction.

Status
Adopted July
2011
Under review

Minerals Site Restoration
Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD)

The purpose of the SPD is to set out the County Council’s vision of how existing
and proposed mineral workings should be restored in Surrey during the period
to 2026.

Adopted July
2011
Under review

Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD
(ARJDPD)

Aggregates Recycling Joint Development Plan Document: Sets out delivery of
the visions and aims of the Surrey Minerals and Waste Plans for aggregates
recycling. The document identifies sites to meet the targets set out in the Surrey
Minerals Plan.

Adopted
February
2013
Under review

Sets the Council’s service level agreement with stakeholders and the
community and their involvement in preparation of the Minerals and Waste
Development Framework.

Agreed
October 2019

Statement of Community
Involvement (SCI)

Annual Monitoring Reports
(AMR) including an annual Local
Aggregates Assessment (LAA).

These reports measures performance of the Minerals and Waste Plans against
their strategic objectives and Key Performance Indicators.

Published
annually

Surrey Waste Local Plan
(SWLP)

Sets out the authority’s vision, objectives and waste development spatial
strategy for Surrey and provides the policy framework for development
management. Land suitable for waste development is identified under Policy 10
and specific site allocations are made under Policy 11a and Policy 11b.

Adopted
December
2020
Under review

Page 8

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

Appendix 2 – Minerals and Waste Development Framework
The Minerals and Waste Development Scheme is made up of the following in a hierarchical order:
1. National Policies
•

National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW)

•

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

•

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

2. Surrey County Council and District and Borough Local Plans
•

Minerals and Waste Local Plans

•

District and Borough Local Plans

Page 133

3. Neighbourhood Plans

Page 9
8

8

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

Appendix 3 – Review of Minerals and Waste Local Development Documents
Table 1 – Profiles of Minerals and Waste Local Plan Documents
Document

Minerals
and Waste
Local Plan
(MWLP)

Trigger for Review

Following the a ‘Review of the Surrey Minerals Plan 2011 and the
Aggregates Recycling DPD 2013’ it was found that both require
updating. That assessment, in short, concluded that the Surrey
Minerals Plan includes policies that no longer fully reflect current
planning and environmental policy, and therefore should be replaced
by a new development plan document. It is important that Surrey
County Council’s minerals and waste plans remain effective and
compliant with national legislation and policy.

Timetable for Review (if applicable)
Stage

Timescale

Issues and Options
Consultation

Start: November
2020
Public Consultation:
November 2021

Preferred Options
Consultation

Start: March 2022

Page 134

Public Consultation:
June 2023

The Surrey Waste Local Plan was found sound in May 2020 following
Pre-Submission for
Examination in Public and adopted by Surrey County Council in
Representations
December 2020. There is a growing overlap between minerals and
waste development, particularly in respect of the role that the recycling
of construction, demolition and excavation wastes can play in providing
Submission to SoS
substitute materials for primary aggregate minerals.
Officers are of the view that now would be an appropriate time to move Examination in Public
away from our previous approach of two separate plans and to
produce a joint Minerals and Waste Local Plan. Bringing both elements
Inspectors Report and
together will allow us to reflect on and address overlaps in issues,
Consultation on any
policy and approach as we plan for the future.
modifications

Adoption

Early 2024

Early 2024

Mid 2024

Late 2024

At the end of 2024

Page 10

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme
Document

Trigger for Review

Timetable for Review (if applicable)
Stage

Aggregates
Recycling
Joint DPD
(ARJDPD)

The Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD was adopted in 2013 and is
concerned specifically with the production of secondary and recycle
aggregate as a substitute for primary aggregate minerals. The review
of the adopted SMP and the AR JDPD concluded that both documents
required updating. The review of the policies and approach set out in
the AR JDPD will be rolled into the production of the new combined
Minerals and Waste Local Plan.

Page 135

Statement
The AMR will identify when a review is required, based on changes to
of
legislation or relevant government guidance.
Community
Involvement
(SCI)

Timescale

Some aspects were updated as part of the new
SWLP. However, a complete review is required
alongside the MWLP. The timetable for this
review will be the same as for the MWLP.

An update to this was agreed in October 2019.
This can be reviewed as part of MWLP
preparation.

Page 11
8

Minerals and Waste Development Scheme

How to contact us:
In writing:
Surrey County Council
Planning and Development Group
Environment and Infrastructure
Quadrant Court
35 Guildford Road, Woking
Surrey GU22 7QQ
By phone:
8

03456 009 009
Online:
Email: mdf@surreycc.gov.uk
Minerals and waste policies and plans

Katie Stewart
Executive Director of Environment,
Transport and Infrastructure
Surrey County Council
Quadrant Court
35 Guildford Road, Woking
Surrey
GU22 7QQ
Published by
Surrey County Council
May 2022

Page 136

Page 12

Item 9

SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF:

MATT FURNISS – CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT &
INFRASTRUCTURE

LEAD OFFICER:

KATIE STEWART – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR
ENVIRONMENT, TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

SUBJECT:

SURREY INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN – PHASE 2 SCHEMES

ORGANISATION GROWING A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY SO EVERYONE CAN
STRATEGY
BENEFIT, ENABLING A GREENER FUTURE, EMPOWERING
PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITIES AND TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITY

Purpose of the Report:
Investment in infrastructure is essential for sustainable economic growth and to cater
for the needs of Surrey’s businesses and communities. The Surrey Infrastructure
Plan (SIP) Prioritisation Framework was approved by Cabinet in February 2021.
This adopted a new approach to developing and prioritising infrastructure projects
across the county. The plan allows for a more flexible approach whereby all
schemes are assessed on how they meet a range of outcomes and align to new and
emerging funding opportunities as they arise. The plan introduces a continuous
cycle of schemes as they move from concept to implementation stages.
This report recommends the approval of a second phase of schemes to be
implemented, highlights additional schemes requiring further development and
provides a brief update on the status in the first phase which were approved by
Cabinet in October 2021.
Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1. Agree the implementation of the Phase 2 projects identified in this report and
set out in Appendix 1, within the approved budget envelope, subject to the
final business case for each scheme being approved by the Capital
Programme Panel.
2. Agree to delegate the development and delivery of the schemes to the
Executive Director of Environment, Transport & Infrastructure, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Transport and Infrastructure.

Page 137

9

Reason For Recommendations:
The recommendations will enable the development and delivery of infrastructure
schemes that meet a wide range of outcomes and demonstrate deliverability and
affordability. They enable the implementation of the second phase of schemes and
the development of a continuous pipeline of schemes that require further feasibility
work. The process is intended to remain dynamic with new schemes added to the
long list as they are identified. A continuous programme of schemes will be
developed taking them from concept through to delivery identifying suitable funding
opportunities as they progress.
Executive Summary:
Background
9

1.

Cabinet approved the adoption of the Surrey Infrastructure Plan (SIP), a
prioritisation framework to assess infrastructure schemes at its meeting of 23rd
February 2021. The framework includes a process by which the objectives
used for the assessment process are linked to the SCC priority objectives as
contained in its Organisational Strategy 2021-2026:





Growing a sustainable economy so everyone can benefit
Tackling health inequality
Enabling a greener future
Empowering communities

2.

Following Cabinet, the partners involved in the development of the Surrey Place
Ambition 2050 were consulted and the assessment of the projects shared. This
included all 11 Districts and Boroughs (D&Bs), both Local Economic
Partnerships and the Surrey Wildlife Trust. Other parties including Network
Rail, Homes England and National Highways were informed along with
neighbouring authorities where there were schemes crossing the boundary.

3.

The engagement with partners led to the conclusion that this should be an
ongoing, dynamic process rather than a one-off exercise. The evolving societal
impacts as a result of the Covid pandemic are leading to new travel patterns
and behaviours, most notably a trend towards working from home and a greater
focus on local places which means that the infrastructure requirements of our
communities are changing. In addition, the Local Plan process means the
D&Bs are at different stages as are their Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
rounds and therefore ongoing dialogue and engagement is key to ensuring that
the County Council can work in partnership to provide the right level of
investment in and balance of infrastructure across the county. All D&Bs who
were also active in the development of the SIP prioritisation tool were engaged.
This engagement continues on a regular and ongoing basis as the SIP
continues to evolve including a focus on securing CIL as part of the funding
package.

Page 138

4.

In addition, the development of the draft Surrey Transport Plan, the creation of
the Economic Growth Strategy – Plan for Growth and the work on the Greener
Futures net zero carbon delivery plans (for the Council and county), mean that it
is critical for the Council to continue to keep its infrastructure priorities under
review and to ensure these new and emerging policy agendas are reflected in
the delivery of infrastructure into the future.

5.

The SIP report to Cabinet in February 2021 set out a wide range of
infrastructure categories – transport, environment, place, social and economic
and utilities. The SIP provides a framework to identify opportunities for linking
requirements and funding to enable the Council to maximise the value of
investment by ensuring multiple outcomes are achieved wherever possible. For
example, the 10 year Surrey flood programme (£33m) was approved by
Cabinet in October 2019 and opportunities have been identified where a
contribution from this programme can be made to infrastructure schemes
providing multiple outcomes such as town centre public realm schemes.
Further, the SIP has provided governance which enables joined up oversight of
these multiple infrastructure projects; in the example of flood schemes, the SIP
Programme Board, established in October 2021 to oversee the development
and delivery of SIP schemes, will oversee the allocations of the approved flood
programme budget to individual schemes.

Surrey Infrastructure Plan – Scheme selection
6.

Through the development of the SIP, a list of over 100 infrastructure schemes
has been identified between SCC and its partners with the majority in the
transport and highways category. All schemes were assessed using the
prioritisation framework agreed by Cabinet in February 2021, and the list of
schemes within each district or borough boundary was shared with the relevant
officers at each authority. The schemes in this second phase, noted in
Appendix 1 as Category 1 schemes, have been recommended for
implementation based on the availability of funding, support from the relevant
district or borough, and feasibility studies undertaken. All schemes have been
assessed using the SIP prioritisation framework as having positive outcomes,
including particularly those linked to greener futures and economic growth
priorities.

7.

The estimated cost of the category 1 schemes in this report is approximately
£20m, made up of £6m from SCC capital which in turn leverages in
approximately £14m from external partners or from Section 106 planning gain /
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Where further external funding can be
identified and secured, this will reduce the Council’s contribution. The CIL
funding totalling approximately £4m is to be applied for to the relevant district
and borough this year.

8.

Consideration of a project’s impact on carbon emissions will be made, with the
level of assessment developing as the project matures from feasibility through

Page 139

9

to detailed design. The detail of each assessment will increase as the project
matures and will include both construction emissions and embedded carbon,
and operational emissions. An outline assessment will be undertaken at the
initial outline business case stage; this will help inform the solution for the next
design stage. In this case, this could lead to a scheme’s design evolving to
maximise facilities for active travel modes, for example. The carbon
assessment following the detailed design will demonstrate how, throughout the
design process, carbon impacts have been mitigated in line with our net zero
target.
9.

9

A further list of schemes is noted in Appendix 2. These category 2 schemes
require feasibility and development work before an assessment can be made as
to whether they can move to implementation (category 1). These schemes will
be developed using feasibility funding already approved by Cabinet, along with
other funding from partners where available. Those schemes that are
considered suitable for implementation will be recommended to Cabinet later
this year as part of an ongoing cycle of scheme development and
implementation. This list is flexible and subject to change as priorities are put
forward by partners and the feasibility work is progressed.

10. An update on the status of the schemes in Phase 1 that were approved by
Cabinet in October 2021 is included in Appendix 3. This also includes an
update on the status of Active Travel schemes approved by Cabinet in March
2021 and a map showing all schemes in category 1 and 2.
Surrey Infrastructure Plan – Phase 2 schemes
11. The schemes that are being recommended for implementation for this phase as
included in Appendix 1 have been assessed using the framework and are
summarised below1:
Active Travel
12. The active travel programme has a pipeline of schemes that continue to be
developed including Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIPs)
which continue to be rolled out. Following an invitation from Department of
Transport (DfT) to bid for further active travel schemes in August 2021, seven
schemes were submitted for consideration based on those that were at the right
stage of readiness to attract grant funding. This also included opportunities to
bid for National Highways (NH) Designated Funds. It is expected that further
LCWIPs will identify schemes that can be subject of future bids to DfT and NH
as they emerge.
13. Funding for four schemes was received based on the Reigate and Banstead
LCWIP, as well as schemes to deliver a low traffic neighbourhood in
Spelthorne, and a Dutch style roundabout in Guildford. More details on these
1

Cost figures provided in this summary represent total cost; a breakdown of funding sources for each scheme
is contained at Appendix 1.

Page 140

four schemes are provided below. They underline the principles of the Surrey
Transport Plan delivering infrastructure to assist residents with more
sustainable travel choices.
14. Engagement will be undertaken with residents and business directly affected by
the schemes and will include a range of age, demographics and hard to reach
groups. Further to this initial engagement, a number of consultation events to
ensure communities are at heart of the scheme’s development will be
organised.
15. Boxgrove Roundabout, Guildford – £2,500,000
SCC is committed to improving the walking and cycling experience and safety
for users in line with the Surrey Transport Plan, demonstrating this commitment
with a Dutch style roundabout option through the Active Travel Round 3
funding. This scheme is the interchange for three major cycling and walking
routes linking key destinations.
16. A3100 London Road, Guildford - £1,500,000
This scheme links Boxgrove Roundabout to London Road station and creates a
safe route for walking and cycling from Burpham all the way into Guildford Town
Centre via the new Dutch style roundabout at Boxgrove. The scheme extends
the continuity of design ethos from the two preceding schemes through the
provision of a segregated walking and cycling route providing safe access to a
number of schools in the area as well as encouraging commuting by active
travel modes.
17. Redhill to East Surrey Hospital via Earlsbrook Road - £1,900,000
This scheme will create a direct route between Redhill Railway Station and East
Surrey Hospital. The existing shared use path between the railway station and
Marketfield Way will be upgraded to a footway level cycle track, providing
segregation between pedestrians and cyclists. The scheme will merge onto a
newly constructed two-way segregated cycle track to Brook Road and continue
onto Hooley Lane, road space will be reallocated to ensure there is also space
for footway widening.
18. Ashford Park Estate Low Traffic Neighbourhood - £25,000
The suggestion for a Low Traffic Neighbourhood scheme was made because
residents have raised complaints over the volume and speeds of “rat-running”
traffic, particularly along Ashford Crescent, and Kenilworth Road. This occurs
because drivers approaching the major signalised junction between the B378
Stanwell Road, and the A30 London Road from the south are choosing to avoid
the queuing on the approach to this signal junction by diverting along Ashford
Crescent and/or Kenilworth Road through the housing estate to continue their
journey westbound on the A30.

Page 141

9

Town and Village Improvements
19. As we emerge from the Covid pandemic, it is timely to refresh the public realm
in Surrey towns and villages that knits together other local assets. Needs have
changed with more people working locally and less commuting out of Surrey.
The selection process for including these improvements in the next phase of the
SIP is in accordance with the agreed SIP criteria. Further prioritisation is
focused where towns and villages have accepted development which leverages
developer contributions and the level of community interest in participating in
that renewal.

9

20. Some town and village improvements may be embedded in SIP transport and
highways schemes already in development to enhance the realisation of
benefits, with an ethos of ‘getting it right first time’. In this way, schemes
selected will reduce the chance of flooding, adapt to climate change, provide
better access and enjoyment of cultural and natural features and deliver
multiple outcomes for residents. The schemes selected are demonstration
projects that show ‘placemaking’ in action, with residents central to the
development of the schemes.
21. Croydon Road Regeneration, Caterham - £2,450,000
Caterham Valley town centre has experienced a steady decline due to high
levels of out commuting, lack of evening economy and decrease in local
employment opportunities. Due to its topography and sheer volume of hard
landscaping, Caterham Valley town centre is also at high risk of surface water
flooding.
22. Croydon Road, within the town centre, offers an opportunity to deliver a public
realm scheme that aims to reduce the risks of flooding while also promoting
active and sustainable travel to attract employment, business and encourage
residents to increase dwell time and spend more. There is an opportunity to
reduce some on street parking along Croydon Road and replace with rain
gardens, planting, cycle stands and outdoor seating. A wider Sustainable
Drainage (SuDS) strategy including the use of raingardens and other drainage
solutions will help to reduce the risk of flooding whilst also enhancing
biodiversity. Electric vehicle charging points and cycle stands will be installed to
promote more sustainable travel to the area. Of the expected £2.45m project
cost, £950,000 has been secured from CIL. A further £500,000 could be
secured through the flood alleviation programme.
23. Shelvers Hill, Tadworth Flood Reduction - £2,000,000
A number of residential properties have previously flooded on Shelvers Way
and Shelvers Hill; they continue to be at high risk of flooding (1 in 30 years). A
flood reduction proposal is being developed to address the risk of flooding using
the grass verges along Shelvers Way and Tadorne Road, as well as green
space along Shelvers Green with the introduction of rain gardens and

Page 142

improvements to the drainage system. The bellmouth to the corner of Epsom
Lane South and Shelvers Way will be reduced in width; improving pedestrian
safety and providing further opportunity for the introduction of SuDs. Additional
tree planting, bug hotels and bird boxes will also enhance bio-diversity. The
project scope may include children's play space and community gardening
could be included as part of the scheme design all of which will improve the
health and wellbeing of local residents.
24. The estimated cost for this will be £2million of which £500,000 could be funded
through the Surrey flood alleviation programme. A further £500,000 could be bid
to Thames Regional Flood and Coastal Committee.
25. Tongham Village & Ash Improvements - £1,000,000
The project will improve road safety and enhance public realm in Tongham, to
create a high-quality environment which is attractive and safe for all road users.
The introduction of traditional traffic calming measures will improve road safety,
as well as changing the village ‘feel’ to help influence driver behaviour.
Enhancing the village environment will make Tongham more distinctive and
recognisable, introducing elements of intrigue and uncertainty to alert drivers to
the specific context of their surroundings. The project will include enhancing the
existing public realm, providing additional cycle stands and seating,
acknowledging Tongham’s heritage, as well the introduction of rain gardens to
help alleviate any future potential of surface water flooding and improve
biodiversity through the introduction of new planting.
26. Within Ash, raised tables and pedestrian crossing points will be introduced,
improving road safety and encourage walking. Improvements will be integrated
with Passenger Transport Projects programme to deliver a number of Eco bus
shelters using Sedum roofs and renewable energy via mini wind turbines or
solar panels. The improved infrastructure should encourage bus travel as well
as enhancing bio-diversity and provision of sustainable drainage. One will be
located outside of Ash Grange Primary School that will also provide an
opportunity for an educational piece to children around the benefits of
sustainable travel and renewable energy. Of the expected £1m project cost
there is £500,000 of S106 funding identified for this project.
27. Cranleigh High Street Public Realm Enhancement - £4,000,000
There is an ambition to transform the highway environment in Cranleigh to
provide a high-quality, pedestrian-focussed area of public realm, to complement
the wider community ambition for the village centre. The project will focus on
the provision of new areas of public realm, with seating and greening, provision
of rain gardens to help alleviate surface water flooding, introduction of electric
vehicle charge points, cycle infrastructure, as well as speed reduction and
public transport improvements with the introduction of ‘green bus shelters’. Of
the expected £4m project cost, there is £620,000 of S106 funding and £100,000
from the Surrey Flood Alleviation programme which has been identified, and up

Page 143

9

to £1m of CIL funding will be requested from Waverley Borough Council (WBC)
in its forthcoming CIL round. Further funding sources are being explored such
as Neighbourhood/Parish CIL.
28. Weybridge Town Centre - £3,200,000

9

Following the development of options for improvements to the public realm in
Weybridge, this report seeks to increase the overall budget set out in the
October 2021 Cabinet report. A further £3.2m will be required for the domaximum scheme which was considered by the Weybetter Weybridge
Programme Board as the most suitable option. This includes the relocation of
the monument on Monument Hill to provide better access to the high street and
reduce traffic congestion at this gateway to the town. This report seeks an
additional contribution from SCC capital funds of £1.2m to that approved in
October 2021 to deliver the full scheme. It also notes the higher expectations
for the CIL funds (an increase of £2m) which will be subject to a bid to
Elmbridge Borough Council this summer.
29. Staines Iron bridge - £100,000
To complement the works being undertaken by Network Rail to strengthen the
bridge, there is an opportunity to provide footway widening under the bridge to
improve pedestrian access and install some community art to improve the
amenity.
30. Flooding – Grant in Aid - £1,430,000
This report notes the additional funding received from the Environment Agency
(EA) for flood alleviation schemes which are a category of the SIP. As Lead
Local Flood Authority, SCC can bid for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk
Management Grant in Aid (FCERM GiA) through the EA for schemes that
reduce the risk of flooding for properties. This forms part of the EA’s 6-year
capital programme and is prioritised using the EA’s Partnership Funding
process. “Local Levy” funding from the Thames Regional Flood and Coastal
Committee (TRFCC) is also available for schemes and is again administered
through the EA. Both sources of funding are used to supplement SCC’s Surrey
Flood Alleviation Programme. The detailed breakdown of the schemes on the
programme, including those receiving external grant for 22/23 can be found in
Appendix 4. These comprise a total package of £1,433,000 in grants which are
in addition to the Council’s capital flood programme already approved by
cabinet in October 2019 which has a projected expenditure of £2,810,000 in
22/23
31. The projects will be regularly reviewed and monitored at the Surrey
Infrastructure Plan (SIP) Board chaired by the Cabinet Member for Transport &
Infrastructure that was established following the Cabinet recommendation of
October 2021. The project budgets noted in this report are estimates at this
stage. As designs progress, this may require adjustments to the budget
allocated to each project which is proposed to be covered by the SIP Board in

Page 144

conjunction with the Capital Programme Panel. Schemes funded through grant
and on the Surrey Flood Alleviation Programme will be regularly reviewed and
monitored in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Community Protection.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
32. The business cases that will be submitted to the Capital Programme Panel (CPP)
will include details on any scheme risk and mitigation.
FINANCIAL AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS
33. The development of the SIP has been met from the Council’s Feasibility Fund.
The Council’s capital pipeline makes provision for scheme costs and this report
outlines the estimated costs for the ten schemes noted in the second
phase. The full business cases that will be prepared for each scheme and
considered by the CPP will set out in more detail the spend profile, the value for
money and any external or third party funding identified. All costs are estimated
at this stage, and in some cases external funding contributions are subject to
further approval. Schemes will only be agreed within the budget envelope
approved by Cabinet with variations to cost estimates for each scheme between
this report and Full Business Case to be managed by the SIP Board in
conjunction with CPP. Further feasibility work will be required for those
schemes noted in category 2 for which funding will be sought from the
Feasibility Fund and any external contributions from partners where available.
SECTION 151 OFFICER COMMENTARY
34. Although significant progress has been made to improve the Council’s financial
position, the medium term financial outlook beyond 2022/23 remains uncertain.
With no clarity on central government funding in the medium term, our working
assumption is that financial resources will continue to be constrained, as they
have been for the majority of the past decade. This places an onus on the
Council to continue to consider issues of financial sustainability as a priority in
order to ensure stable provision of services in the medium term.
35. The Surrey Infrastructure Plan is included in the approved capital programme
2022-27. Individual schemes will be considered in detail by the Council’s
Capital Programme Panel, within the overall Surrey Infrastructure Plan and
Flood Alleviation budget envelopes approved by Cabinet. As such, the Section
151 Officer supports the proposed approach.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS – MONITORING OFFICER
36. There are no significant legal implications raised in the report at this stage.
There will be contractual agreements to be entered into as part of the schemes.
Some of these schemes may also require traffic regulation orders to be entered
into which are subject to their own statutory consultation process.

Page 145

9

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY
37. Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) will be undertaken as part of each individual
Business Case.
OTHER IMPLICATIONS:
38. The potential implications for the following council priorities and policy areas
have been considered. Where the impact is potentially significant a summary of
the issues is set out in detail below.

9

Area assessed:
Corporate Parenting/Looked
After Children
Safeguarding responsibilities
for vulnerable children and
adults
Compliance against net-zero
emissions target and future
climate
compatibility/resilience

Direct Implications:
No significant implications arising
from this report
No significant implications arising
from this report
The proposed projects will contribute
to reducing emissions through
improving infrastructure needed to
promote active travel, use of public
transport, uptake of electric vehicles
and waste recycling contributing to
Surrey climate change delivery plan
targets. The Construction phase will
involve generation of carbon
emissions which will be prioritised
through procurement of Contractors
that will assess the emissions and
climate impact risks at design stage
and put in place measures to reduce
operational and embodied emissions
during Construction and ensure the
proofing of infrastructure to projected
and current climate impacts like
flooding and increased temperatures.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
39. An Environmental Sustainability Assessment (ESA) will be undertaken as
required as part of the individual business case development for each scheme.
PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
40. Public Health implications will be dealt with within the individual Business
Cases.

Page 146

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT:
41. All schemes identified in Appendix 1 will now have a full business case
developed and reported to the Capital Programme Panel before they formally
commence. They will then be progressed with stakeholders and the community
engaged as part of the scheme development before moving to implementation.
In addition, schemes identified in Appendix 2 will be further developed using
Feasibility Funds with a view they are reported to this Cabinet as part of the
next phase of schemes to be implemented. Engagement with all partners
including the districts and boroughs will recommence to review priorities and
agree how schemes are progressed in partnership.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report Contact: Lee Parker, Director of Infrastructure, Planning & Major Projects,
07816 089527, lee.parker@surreycc.gov.uk
Consulted:
Surrey Future Steering Board – 9th December 2020
Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee – 18th January 2021
Districts and Borough Councils
Appendices:
Appendix 1: Phase 2 - Category 1 Projects
Appendix 2: Category 2 Projects
Appendix 3: Status update on Phase 1, Category 1 projects approved by Cabinet in
October 2021
Appendix 4: Surrey Flood Alleviation Programme – 22/23
Sources/background papers:
Surrey Infrastructure Prioritisation Framework – Technical Note, January 2021
Communities, Environment and Highways Select Committee update report –
September 2021
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 147

9

Appendix 1 – Phase 2 - Category 1 Projects
Estimated Capital Cost, SCC proposed Contribution and Third Party
contributions
Project

Estimated
Scheme
Capital Cost
£2.5m

SCC
Contribution
requested
£0m

A3100 London Road,
Guildford

£1.5m

£0m

DfT Active Travel Grant £1.9m

Redhill to East Surrey
Hospital via Earlsbrook
Road
Ashford Park Estate Low
Traffic Neighbourhood

£1.9m

£0m

DfT Active Travel Grant £1.5m

£0.025m

£0m

DfT Active Travel Grant £0.025m

£2.45m

£1m

£2m

£1m

£1m

£0.5m

£0.95m CIL
£0.5m Flood programme
£0.5m Flood programme
£0.5m Thames Regional
Flood and Coastal
Committee
£0.5m S106

£4m

£2.28m

£3.2m

£1.2m

£0.62m S106
£0.1m Flood programme
£1m CIL
£2m CIL

£0.1m

£0.1m

Nil

£1.43m

£0m

£20.1m

£6.08m

Boxgrove Roundabout,
Guildford

9

Croydon Road
Regeneration, Caterham
Shelvers Hill, Tadworth
Flood Reduction

Tongham Village & Ash
Improvements
Cranleigh High Street
Public Realm
Enhancements
Weybridge Town Centre
(additional budget for
enhanced scheme)
Staines Iron bridge (short
term improvements)
Flooding (external
Environment Agency grant
funding only)
Total

*All subject to business case approval.

Page 148

Third Party
Contributions
DfT Active Travel Grant £2.5m

Environment Agency –
Grant in Aid £1.43m
£14.03m

Appendix 2 - Category 2 Projects
New Category 2 Projects
Project

Project Details

Horley Town Centre

To support the ongoing Horley regeneration proposals working with the
local community to develop ideas.

Milford Traffic Study

To identify possible schemes to mitigate the impact of traffic growth
including that from developments in the Milford area. Outcome of the
study will help future S106/CIL priorities.

A22/A264 Junction
Felbridge

Review of existing junction to improve capacity and enhance existing
cycling and pedestrian facilities.

Network Rail/DfT
Access for All Station
Improvements

Improve access at and to rail stations to include hub amenities e.g. shelter,
cycle parking, security measures. Stations include Ash Vale, Horsley,
Esher, Bookham and Dorking Deepdene.

Guildford West Rail
Station (Park Barn)

New rail station development. (Existing Category 3 Project).

Sustainable Movement
Corridors, Guildford

Six corridor improvement projects in and around Guildford. To include: (1)
West (research park and Blackwell Farm area), (2) Yorkie's Bridge (3)
Town Centre Phase 1, (4) Town Centre Phase 2, (5) North (to Slyfield) and
(6) to Gosden Hill Farm. The proposal is to work with Guildford Borough
Council and review the approach to the delivering these packages of
schemes.

9

Existing Category 2 Projects (as reported in Oct 2021 Cabinet Report)
National Highways (NH) Designated Fund schemes
Cycling schemes that provide complimentary sustainable transport improvements to the
Strategic Road Network. These schemes will link to the LCWIPs.
Project

Update

-Godalming to Guildford

NH are currently considering whether to fund detailed design in
22/23, subject to whether this can fit into their national
Designated Funds Programme. Feasibility study ongoing for
Redhill to Hooley route. Design options now substantially
developed with estimate cost profile being produced.

-Camberley to Frimley
-Redhill to Hooley

Page 149

Town and Village Improvements
Schemes aim to reduce congestion, improve air quality, provide improvements for pedestrians,
vulnerable users, and cyclists as well as public realm enhancements to improve the economy
and social infrastructure.
Project

Update

Addlestone Town Centre
improvements

Runnymede Borough Council have identified the junction of High
Street and Station Road as a priority to increase capacity and
improve air quality in the Air Quality Management Area. The
Major Projects team are currently reviewing previous studies of
the junction. Some 3rd party land has been secured via Planning
but more land may be required.
Working with Waverley Borough Council and Farnham Town
Council to develop a range of town centre improvement projects.
These will be priorities before taking preferred options to public
consultation later in 2022.

Farnham Town Centre
Improvements

9
Epsom Town Centre

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council (EEBC) secured funding to
commission review of existing Town Centre Masterplan.

Ewell Village

Initial engagement with local councillors and community
members complete. Wider community engagement planning
underway between SCC and EEBC.
Initial engagement commenced with Network Rail, SBC and
Staines Business Improvement District in respect to wider Town
Centre improvements. Localised works beneath rail bridge being
progressed (Refer to Cat 1 list).
Community parking survey to gain insights on high street
parking have been drawn up between Spelthorne Borough
Council and SCC parking teams; to be distributed early April as
planned, via online link and via paper copies in library.
Series of workshops have taken place. Stage 2 Masterplan led
by Guildford Borough Council due in July 2022.

Staines Town Centre

Church Road, Ashford

Guildford Town Centre

Active Travel Schemes / Local Cycling and Walking Implementation Plans (LCWIPs)
Projects that have been developed in partnership with local Boroughs and Districts to identify
new or improved walking and cycling facilities. Further schemes to be added to this list pending
review.
Project

Update

Lower Sunbury
Crossing

Study commissioned to review earlier work on options to cross the
river. SCC working with Spelthorne Borough Council and Elmbridge
Borough Council to see how scheme can be progressed.
Awaiting legal power from central government to enforce point
closures using cameras.

Bullers Road and
Hale Reeds school
streets, Waverley

Page 150

Project

Update

LCWIPs
Reigate and
Banstead

Feasibility design to commence for remaining prioritised phase 1
LCWIP cycle routes and core walk zones, with potential to include
additional phase 2 cycle routes (subject to budget).

Woking: Town
centre to Goldsworth
Park

East Woking cycle corridor connecting to West Byfleet in delivery via
DfT Active Travel Fund 2 award [Phased delivery programme with
Active Travel schemes]

Spelthorne

LCWIP output report (with prioritised schemes) being finalised.
Report requires RBC/Executive endorsement prior to gateway sign
off by SCC Cabinet Member for feasibility work to commence.

Elmbridge

LCWIP output report with prioritised schemes final version due April.
Requires Elmbridge Borough Council Local Committee endorsement
prior to gateway sign off by SCC Cabinet Member for feasibility work
to commence.

Runnymede

LCWIP output report (with prioritised schemes) being finalised.
Report requires Runnymede Borough Council Executive
endorsement prior to gateway sign off by SCC Cabinet Member for
feasibility work to commence.
Discussions with GBC/SCC to agree funding share and project
scope. Wider Guildford LCWIP work to build on local cycle/walk
plans developed directly by GBC.

9

Guildford

Surrey Heath

Draft project proposal being agreed with SHBC/SCC. Funding
shares agreed for LCWIP plan.

Mole Valley

Planning phase underway. Stakeholder and Member engagement
workshops held in March for long list route selection discussions.
Feasibility stage funding to be secured.

Epsom Ewell

Discussions with EEBC/SCC to agree contribution funding share to
take work forward.

Waverley

Planning phase underway. Member briefing session held in March.
Long list route selection engagement workshops being scheduled.
Feasibility funding to be secured.

Tandridge

Discussions with Tandridge District Council/SCC to agree funding
share to take work forward.

Wider Woking

Not commenced. To follow after remaining LCWIP programme areas
are completed. Wider Woking LCWIP to build on works completed
for Woking Town centre routes, including delivery of Woking
Sustainable Transport Package and DfT Active Travel schemes.

Page 151

Transport Improvement Schemes
Project

Update

A24 Horsham to Dorking
Study to explore potential interventions along
the A24 to improve safety and reduce
congestion. Joint funded with WSCC.

Currently at feasibility stage. Compilation
of options for improvements to this
corridor. Meeting with relevant
stakeholders to be held during May as well
as local councillors.
Not commenced. Potential National
Highways designated Funds bid.

A245 Corridor Improvements
(inc Smarter Highways)
Study to consider corridor improvements along
the A245 between A3 Painshill and Brooklands
to include new cycle infrastructure and the
potential use of technology to address safety
and congestion issues.

9

Kiln Lane Link
The provision of a new crossing of the railway
line between the Longmead and Nonsuch
business areas which are centrally located
between Epsom Town Centre and Ewell
Village. This will support EEBC’s Masterplan.

Scheme would need to be part of a longerterm Masterplan for the area to support an
economic case for the scheme. Joint
Infrastructure Team meetings between
SCC and EEBC now established to
discuss the development of the
Masterplan.

Woking Sustainable Transport Package
Phase 2
The Phase 2 package will look to introduce
further improvements to walking and cycling, to
and from Woking town centre informed by
Woking's LCWIP and include Quality Bus
Corridors in directions of Brooklands,
Sheerwater, Byfleet and Send.

Not commenced. Awaiting completion of
Sustainable Transport Package Phase 1
and the delivery of LCWIP/ATF Tranche 2
Woking East scheme.

Page 152

Appendix 3
Status update on Phase 1, Category 1 projects approved by Cabinet in October
2021
Project

A308
Modernisation

Weybridge Town
Centre
Improvement

Three Arch
Junction
Improvements

Woodhatch
Junction
Improvements

Ash Vale Station
access

Leatherhead
Waste Transfer
Station
improvements
A22 Smarter
Highways

Schedule

On track

In review

In review

In review

On hold

Budget

On track

On track

In review

In review

On hold

Update

A308 Blackdog Junction consultation was held
in January 2022. Black Dog feasibility /
preliminary design in progress. Liaison
commenced with the Police and National
Highways. SMART network design alignment is
progressing to ensure linkage with junction
improvements and cycle links.
21 concept design proposals now completed for
11 locations across Weybridge town centre.
Public consultation is currently programmed to
start in June 2022. Options for the Monument
Hill war memorial being explored and
stakeholder engagement is progressing.
Option appraisals complete on different
solutions. Each requiring varying degrees of
third-party land (common land and allotments).
Cost benefit appraisal of options being finalised
to determine most suitable solution. CIL funding
case being prepared.
Option appraisals complete on different
solutions. Each requiring varying degrees of
third-party land (common land). Cost benefit
appraisal of options being finalised to determine
most suitable solution.
Project has formed part of next Access for All
bid submission in April. Design completed and
necessary planning permission secured.
SCC/Network Rail working on funding
agreement.
Cost review underway to determine viability of
project.

In review

On track

In review

On track

Exploring opportunities to optimise signals at
M25 J6 in conjunction with National Highways
and explore options to improve capacity at
Felbridge junction (new Category 2 Project).

Page 153

9

Status update on Tranche 2 Active Travel Schemes approved by Cabinet in March
2021
Project

Guildord to
Burpham cycle
route

9

Dagley Lane,
Shalford

Redhill STP A23
Bonehurst Road
and Cross Oak
Lane, Horley

A217 Reigate
Road Gatwick to
Westvale Park,
Horley

Woking to West
Byfleet LCWIP,
Woking

Schedule

On track

On track

On track

On track

Update

In Detailed Design phase. Construction phase
provisionally planned to commence during Q2/Q3
of 2022/23 taking 4-5 months to complete. In
On track addition further works, funded from Active Travel
Tranche 3, will be progressed as a continuation to
the route.
Phase 1 (Shalford to the bridlepath from the
junction with the A281) has been completed with
construction of phase 2 (from the end of phase 1
On track to the Thames Water depot) provisionally planned
to commence in Q2 2022/23 taking 4-6 weeks to
complete.
Construction of a widened shared use facility with
junction crossing improvements and enlarged
pedestrian and cycle central refuges. At the
On track western end of Cross Oak Lane a widened shared
use facility has been provided and the carriageway
width under the railway bridge reduced to a single
lane with a priority give way for motor vehicles,
creating a segregated cycle lane for westbound
cyclists
Phase 1 comprises of a widened shared use
facility between Longbridge roundabout and the
On track junction with Mill Lane.
Phase 2 involves the construction of a widened
shared use facility between the Westvale Park
roundabout and the junction with Mill Lane. In
addition a new Toucan crossing is to be installed
across the A217 north of the Horse Hill junction.

On track

On track
Gresham Road,
Staines-uponThames

Budget

Creation of two one-way segregated cycle facilities
from Woking railway station to Albert Drive.
On track Upgrade of the existing cycle facilities along Albert
Drive and Sheerwater Road to a segregated cycle
facility with raised table side road crossings. New
parallel signalised crossing in Albert Drive.
The improvements include reducing a section of
the existing Gresham Road to one-way traffic only
On track and providing a cycle contra-flow system along the
whole length of this section of Gresham Road. The
on-carriageway cycle contra-flow system proposed
will be segregated from the main carriageway.
Consideration to include footway widening along
Gresham Road. The proposal also includes for
widening of existing crossing facilities to allow both

Page 154

Project

Schedule

Budget

Update
cyclists and pedestrians to cross the carriageway
safely.

Park Road,
Stanwell,
Staines-uponThames

Town Lane,
Stanwell,
Staines-uponThames

On track

Improvements to the existing shared facility by
increasing the width of the facility and upgrading of
the junction/crossing facilities at side roads. In
On track addition, bus facilities along this road have been
improved creating more available space for the off
road shared use facility.
Phase 1 provides a shared use path between A30
London Road and the access to the Old Fire
Station including improvements to the bus stop on
the exit from Tesco.

On track

On track

Phase 2 involves the installation of a Toucan
Crossing on Town Lane just north of the Tesco
junction and completion of the shared use path
between the Old Fire Station access and the bus
stop.

Page 155

9

Map showing all projects in Phase 1 and Phase 2 (both category 1 and 2)

9

Page 156

Appendix 4
Surrey Flood Alleviation Programme – 22/23

Project Name

Organisation
Project Lead

SCC
Funded

Countywide PFR (Build Back Better)

SCC

£25,000.00

District and Borough Officers

SCC

£30,000.00

Overheads
Chambers Mead
Guildford Economic Regeneration Plan
SuDS Unlock
Leatherhead investigations and
catchment actions

SCC
South East Rivers Trust

£500,000.00
£250,000.00

SCC/GBC

£100,000.00

SCC

£50,000.00

Burgh Heath FAS

SCC

£50,000.00

Reigate FAS
South Earlswood FAS

SCC
SCC

South Merstham FAS

SCC

£200,000.00

South Merstham Recreation Ground
Lower Thames Corridor Surface Water
Study

SCC

£400,000.00

Sweeps Ditch feasibility and surveys
Caterham Bourne Viaduct

SBC/SCC
SCC

Caterhamon-the-hill

SCC

Smallfield - GiA Scheme
GBC Public Realm Improvements

SCC
SCC/GBC

£100,000.00

Alfold (Non-GiA interventions)

SCC

£100,000.00

Alfold GiA PFR
Farnham FAS

SCC
SCC

£20,000.00

Horsell Common/Walton Terrace

SCC

£500,000.00

Old Woking FAS Contribution
Woking Raingarden Retrofits

EA
SCC

£5,213.00
£280,000.00

9
£35,000.00
£15,000.00
£30,000.00

SCC/EA

£65,000.00

£10,000.00
£100,000.00
£100,000.00
£1,200,000.00
£20,000.00

Totals

Page 157

Grant
Funded

£2,810,213.00

£15,000.00
£43,122.00

£1,433,122.00

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 10
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF CABINET BECKY RUSH, DEPUTY LEADER AND CABINET MEMBER
MEMBER:
FOR FINANCE AND RESOURCES
LEAD OFFICER:

LEIGH WHITEHOUSE, DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES FOR SURREY
COUNTY COUNCIL

SUBJECT:

WAN & WI-FI SERVICE: DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STEPCHANGE

ORGANISATION
GROWING A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY SO EVERYONE CAN
STRATEGY PRIORITY BENEFIT / EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES
AREA:

10

Purpose of the Report:
The SCC BT Unicorn services contract, which provides critical Wide Area Network (WAN) and
Wi-Fi services to Council sites, expires in August 2024. The purpose of this report is to request
Cabinet to approve the use of the South East Grid (SEG) Network Services Framework as a
route to market to procure new WAN and Wi-Fi services, and to approve the capital investment
of £8.23m to provide gigabit capable connectivity to all Council sites. The investment will
extend the full fibre infrastructure in Surrey which will benefit Council staff, Surrey businesses
and residents, and improve Wi-Fi coverage and performance for staff and visitors to Council
sites.
Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1. Approve the route to market for the procurement of new WAN and Wi-Fi services for
SCC sites.
2. Approve capital funding of £8.23m, moved from the capital pipeline, to enable the
replacement of the existing WAN and Wi-Fi services for SCC sites.
3. Approve the delegation of the contract award decision to the Executive Director of
Resources.
Reason for Recommendations:
The procurement of new WAN and Wi-Fi services will meet the operational needs of the
Council for the next 10-15 years and provides the opportunity to support collaboration and
service delivery with health and local government partners.
The implementation of new WAN and Wi-Fi services supports the community vision for
Surrey in 2030 in several areas including “well-connected communities with effective

Page 159

infrastructure that grow sustainably”, by accelerating the availability of digital networks to
residents and businesses in Surrey.
Executive Summary:
Background
1. The BT Unicorn framework offers contracts for critical WAN and Wi-Fi services for
Council sites, schools, and its public sector partners like Districts & Boroughs. WAN
services are provided to 213 Council sites including libraries, depots, adult and
children’s residential homes, and fire stations. Wi-Fi services are provided to 162
Council sites. The SCC BT Unicorn contract, started on 31 August 2012, expires on
30 August 2024, and cannot be extended. To comply with UK procurement
legislation, the services need to be reprocured and migrated to a replacement
corporate network before 30 August 2024.

10

2. The UK government has made the availability of gigabit capable digital infrastructure
a national imperative. A range of UK Government based initiatives, including the UK
Levelling Up initiative (to provide Gigabit capable broadband for the majority of the
population by 2030) and the DCMS (Department for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport)
Project Gigabit initiative (investing £5bn to provide ultra-fast, reliable broadband for
everyone in the UK), aim to provide high performance digital connectivity in all UK
regions.
3. The Council now has the opportunity to leverage the project deliverables to
complement the government’s gigabit capable aims across Surrey.
Objectives
4. The replacement of BT Unicorn WAN and Wi-Fi services provides the opportunity to
implement a WAN and Wi-Fi infrastructure that meets the requirements of the
Council effectively and flexibly over the next 10-15 years and supports the ambitions
of the Digital Infrastructure programme and the Agile Office Estate Strategy.
5. The key objectives of the new WAN and Wi-Fi Service are:




Gigabit capable, ultra-fast connectivity to all SCC sites by August 2024
Annual efficiencies through reduced operating costs and an investment that
pays back over the life of the asset
Improved accessibility and quality of digital services to residents, communities
and businesses.

6. Additionally, SCC is seeking a solution that:






Is highly secure, resilient and available
Supports the latest technical standards
Delivers improved user experience
Delivers improved management reporting
Is flexible, scalable, adaptable and agile to support SCC’s changing
requirements.

Page 160

Procurement Route Options
7. The following procurement route options were evaluated for suitability for procuring
WAN and Wi-Fi services:
A. The South East Grid (SEG) Network Services Framework – a public sector
network services framework covering the South East region, created by the IT
and Digital service. It is open to all public sector bodies in the region including
education, health, blue light and voluntary, charity organisations as well as
local authorities. This framework commenced in September 2021, following
an extensive Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU) procurement
process.
B. The CCS RM3808, Network Services 2 Framework – this is an existing
Crown Commercial Service framework for Telecommunications services
including networks for the entire public sector, their associated bodies and
agencies, the voluntary sector and charities.
C. A Full Two-Stage Procurement, carried out by SCC, using the government
Find a Tender service which is used to search and apply for high value
contracts in the UK’s public and utilities sectors.
Procurement Route Recommendations
8. It is recommended that new WAN and Wi-Fi services are procured via the SEG
Network Services Framework. This procurement route will provide a value for money
solution with significant added social value which can be delivered within the
timescales required.
9. The SEG Network Services framework procurement route:








Provides best value for money pricing (tested in last 12 months via a full
restricted (two-stage) procurement)
Minimises the technical, procurement and legal expertise / workload required
Is based on latest technology and enables future innovation
Delivers improved supportability and manageability
Provides a catalogue of services for SCC and partners’ current and future
needs
Provides the flexibility to adapt to the needs of the Agile Office Estate
Strategy
De-risks reliance on a single network provider as services may be procured
from multiple providers.

10. The SEG Network Services framework commits to providing a minimum of 10% of
the contract value in Social Value. Elements of the Social Value package include:




Each SCC site enabled through Full Fibre investment will enable a further 6
residential or business sites (on average). It is estimated around 1020
additional connections will be achieved
Free fibre connection and free broadband connectivity for up to 21 SCC
managed care homes for a 3-year term
The employment of two apprentices recruited from within Surrey

Page 161

10



The estimated CO2 tonnage associated with implementation will be offset by
planting 1650 trees.

11. The catalogue of services provided by the SEG Network Framework will also be
available for SCC partners such as district and borough councils, health and care
organisations, and schools to take out their own individual contracts for the provision
of data connectivity.
12. The CCS RM3808 – Network Services 2 Framework and Full Two-Stage
Procurement routes are not recommended as they would add 6-18 months to the
procurement timescales (putting at risk the requirement to finish the implementation
before the expiry of the BT Unicorn contract in August 2024) and would significantly
increase the legal and procurement resources and costs. In addition, the required
minimum of 10% of the contract value in Social Value may not be achieved.
Implementation Schedule
13. The implementation of new WAN and Wi-Fi services is expected to have completed
the installation of all elements by the time the Unicorn contract expires in August
2024. Key dates are as following:

10





Services Specification – June 2022 – August 2022
Services Orders placed via the SEG Framework – from August 2022
Implementation of new WAN and Wi-Fi services – September 2022 – August
2024.

Conclusion
14. In conclusion, it is recommended Cabinet approve the SEG Network Services
Framework as the route to market for the procurement of new WAN and Wi-Fi services
for SCC sites and approve capital funding of £8.23m to enable the replacement of the
existing WAN and Wi-Fi services at SCC sites.
Consultation:
15. Internal: Stakeholders from Land & property, Economy & Growth and representatives
of The Agile Organisation programme and the Digital Infrastructure programme were
consulted for WAN and Wi-Fi requirements.
16. External: Feedback from Surrey District and Borough council users of the existing
WAN services via the BT Unicorn framework was reviewed. Additionally, Health
partners were consulted for their requirements.
Risk Management and Implications:
17. The following table provides a summary of the implementation and service provision
risks associated with the recommendations made in this report.
Implementation
Risk description

Mitigation action/strategy

Implementation Delay: The
Supplier does not complete the
WAN and Wi-Fi implementation

There will be no break in service provision as existing
services will continue to operate until the new service is
ready. Any SCC site that has not been migrated to a new

Page 162

before the expiry of the BT
Unicorn contract in August 2024.

Unexpected Costs: The Council
incurs unexpected costs during
the implementation.

Requirements: The WAN and WiFi service is not capable of
supporting the requirements due
to technology issues.

service by August 2024 will continue its service under the
existing terms of the BT Unicorn contract.
Implementation is forecast to require 18-21 months. A
schedule variance contingency of 3 months has been
allowed in the planned delivery duration of 24 months.
The Programme will work closely with the Supplier to
track project finances to ensure any unexpected costs
are, a) immediately identified and, b) fully justified. A
Cost variance contingency of 10% has been allowed for
unforeseen but justified changes.
The Supplier will be required to submit to a full Statement
of Compliance prior to the signing of the Call Off Order
form. The Supplier has been fully evaluated as part of the
SEG framework award and subsequently by the
Council’s team. The Supplier has extensive experience
of delivering similar services.

Service Provision
Risk description

Mitigation action/strategy

The WAN and Wi-Fi service is not
capable of supporting future
requirements.

The Council’s known future requirements have been built
into the Statement of Compliance. Additional future
requirements are determined through the contract. The
Supplier does not have an exclusive contract, so if the
Supplier’s service is not capable of supporting a future
requirement, the new requirements could be tendered
for.

The WAN and Wi-Fi service
technology / connectivity proves
to be unreliable.

The contractual arrangement includes a Service Level
Agreement (SLA). If the Supplier’s service connectivity
proves to be unreliable, the Council would seek redress
and improvements in line with the terms of the contract
and SLA.
If one of the Supplier’s technology manufacturers /
connectivity providers goes out of business, this does not
mean the WAN or Wi-Fi service would be automatically
affected or stop working. Overcoming the issue would be
a responsibility for the Supplier. The Council would be
protected by the SLA and the contract.
The SEG Finance team will continue to monitor the
financial standing of the Supplier during the course of the
contract and any changes to its financial position flagged
– so that any potential issues are identified before the
Supplier reaches the point of going out of business.
IT&D and Procurement will work closely with the Supplier
to proactively identify potential issues and find solutions
before they become a major problem. If needed, the SEG
Framework Call Off Contract Dispute Resolution
Procedure may be activated.

The WAN or Wi-Fi service
technology manufacturer /
connectivity provider goes out of
business.

The overall managed service
supplier goes out of business.

The Council experiences
contractual issues during the
contract period.

Page 163

10

The Council does not realise the
contracted social value.

The Supplier will be instructed to report on social value
progress on a regular basis. If the reports identify that
progress is not as anticipated, the matter will be raised
with the Supplier’s Client Director.

Financial and Value for Money Implications:
18. The capital investment requirement of reprocuring WAN and Wi-Fi services amounts
to £8.23m.
19. The re-procurement is anticipated to realise reductions in the annual revenue contract
costs, to operate both WAN and Wi-Fi, which exceeds the borrowing costs associated
with the required capital investment, leaving an annual net efficiency.
20. Refer to Part 2 for detailed financial implications.
Section 151 Officer Commentary

10

21. Although significant progress has been made to improve the Council’s financial
position, the medium-term financial outlook beyond 2022/23 remains uncertain. With
no clarity on central government funding in the medium term, our working assumption
is that financial resources will continue to be constrained, as they have been for the
majority of the past decade. This places an onus on the Council to continue to
consider issues of financial sustainability as a priority in order to ensure stable
provision of services in the medium term.
22. The Section 151 Officer supports the recommendation to utilise the SEG framework
to reprocure the Council’s WAN and Wi-Fi services and the transfer of £8.23m from
the capital pipeline to enable the capital investment required. Resultant revenue
efficiencies will be factored into the Medium Term Financial Plan from 2024/25 (full
year effect from 2025/26).
Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer: Paul Evans
23. This report seeks approval of Cabinet to procure Wide Area Network (WAN) services
and Wi-Fi services for Council sites using the South East Grid framework.
24. Under Procurement and Contract Standing Order 2.7.a, Cabinet approval is required
because the estimated value of the service is over £5 million.
25. Under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Procurement and Contract
Standing Orders this contract must be competitively procured. The Council may use
the ESCC NB South-East Grid Network Services Framework (the proposed route to
market). Use of the framework would enable the Council to comply with the
procurement requirements.
Equalities and Diversity:
26. Equality implications of this project have been considered. An equality impact
assessment (EIA) screening tool has been completed and it was found that there are
no clear and obvious equality implications for people with protected characteristics. As
there is no impact on protected groups in our communities and staff, an EIA has not
been completed.

Page 164

Other Implications:
27. The potential implications for the following council priorities and policy areas have
been considered. Where the impact is potentially significant a summary of the issues
is set out in detail below.
Area assessed:
Corporate Parenting/Looked After
Children
Safeguarding responsibilities for
vulnerable children and adults
Environmental sustainability
Compliance
against
net-zero
emissions target and future climate
compatibility/resilience

Direct Implications:
No direct implications identified

Public Health

No direct implications identified

No direct implications identified
No direct implications identified
No direct implications identified

What Happens Next:

10

Following cabinet approval, the next steps will be:






Complete the detailed specification of new WAN and W-Fi services
Finalise Call Off Order Form
Obtain delegated approval for the final WAN and Wi-Fi services pricing
Place order for the WAN and Wi-Fi services
Mobilise the WAN and Wi-Fi project teams

This project will deliver back-office network infrastructure which will mainly affect Council
staff. As such, a stakeholder communication plan will be put in place to ensure that
stakeholders are aware of planned improvements to services and any potential break in
service during the switch from the old to the new network infrastructure.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report Author: Matt Scott, Chief Digital Information Officer, 07552286752

Consulted:
The Unicorn Replacement Programme Board
The IT Investment Board
The Capital Programme Panel
The Major Projects Board
The Corporate Leadership Team

Annexes:
Part 2 report

Page 165

Sources/background papers:
None
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

10

Page 166

Item 11
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
CABINET
DATE:

31 MAY 2022

REPORT OF:

BECKY RUSH, DEPUTY LEADER AND CABINET MEMBER FOR
FINANCE AND RESOURCES

LEAD OFFICER:

LEIGH WHITEHOUSE, DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR RESOURCES (S151 OFFICER)

SUBJECT:

2021/22 OUTTURN FINANCIAL REPORT

ORGANISATION GROWING A SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY SO EVERYONE CAN
STRATEGY
BENEFIT/ TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITY/ENABLING A
PRIORITY AREA: GREENER FUTURE/EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES

Purpose of the Report:
This report sets out Surrey County Council’s 2021/22 financial performance for revenue and
capital, including the year end Treasury Management and debt outturn position. Further
details on Directorate budgets can be found in Annex 1.
Key Messages – Revenue
o The Council has achieved a £1.0m surplus outturn for the year (approximately 0.1%
variance to budget), without the need to rely on reserves, despite the extraordinary
impact of Covid-19.
o The continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Council’s finances throughout
the financial year resulted in increased costs, lost income and disruption to the delivery of
efficiencies. The total financial impact of £99.4m was financed by a combination of
specific funding (£75.7m) and general emergency funding from the Department of
Levelling Up, Housing & Communities (DLUHC) (£23.7m). Further details are set out in
paragraphs 13-14.
o The Council achieved £32.1m (c78%) of the £41.2m target of efficiencies set out at the
beginning of the financial year, including those delivered through transformation
programmes. Further details on efficiencies achieved and reasons for non-achievement
are set out in paragraph 39-40. Efficiencies are realised as a result of the Council
identifying new ways of delivering services to ensure we respond to the changing needs
of residents and deliver services as efficiently as possible within available financial
resources. The total efficiencies achieved over the last three years amounts to £133m.
o The revenue outturn shows an improvement of £0.4m from M11, mainly relating to:
Improvements of £3.2m, primarily:
•

Adults Social Care £0.4m improvement primarily due to an increase in Better Care
Fund (BCF) income compared to the previous forecast

Page 167

11

•

Children, Families & Lifelong Learning £0.3m improvement due to additional
income from health partners for social care placements (£0.3m), additional pupil
premium grant applied (£0.2m) and reductions in fostering costs (£0.2m), offset by
increases in home to school transport costs of £0.4m due to current price pressures

•

Environment Transport & Infrastructure £1.3m improvement within Highways
(£0.7m) due to increased income and recharges and reduced energy expenditure;
and Environment (£0.6m) mainly due to reduction in waste tonnages and additional
income from recyclates and electricity generation.

•

Resources £0.9m improvement due to a reduction in the Orbis overspend (£0.3m),
reduced spend in IT&D (£0.3m) primarily related to the settlement of a long standing
negotiation with BT in SCC’s favour and an underspend in pensions administration
which was not previously projected (£0.2m)

Offset by increases of £2.8m, primarily:
•

Contribution to the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) High Needs Block offset
reserve £0.3m increase due to a slightly lower level of costs transferring to ASC at
year end than previously forecast.

•

Community Protection Group £0.3m increase within Fire (£0.2m) due to pension ill
health charges and cross border support and Coroners (£0.2m) due to inquest costs.
These have been partly offset by utilising additional government Covid grant (£0.1m)

•

Central Income & Expenditure £1.0m increased bad debt provision (£0.5m),
provision for pay on part-time annual leave (£0.2m) and other minor changes

•

Funding £1.3m reduced funding due to lower Covid-19 draw-down required to offset
Directorate costs (£1.0m) and set aside for Empty Properties scheme (£0.3m)

11

Key Messages – Capital
o

The Council set a capital budget for 2021/22 of £185m in February 2021. The budget
was reset at month 4 and then again at month 10 to £170.6m, to provide a stable
baseline for the remainder of the year due to increasing slippage after analysis of
deliverability carried out by the Strategic Capital Groups (SCG’s). Capital spend for the
year against this budget is £162.4m, which is a variance of £8.2m against the re-set
budget (4.8%). This includes £5.2m of spend not managed by the SCG’s, consisting
primarily of commercial spend (managed through SHIP and SIB) and Delegated Schools
budgets.

o

Schemes directly managed by the SCGs had Capital Programme spend of £157.2m;
variance to re-set budget of £13.4m (8%). The variance was made up of £12.8m net
slippage and a net underspend of £0.6m. This represents additional slippage of £5.2m
from the M11 forecasts. Details are set out in Table 5.

Page 168

Recommendations:
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1.

Note the Council’s revenue and capital positions for the year.

2.

Approve the following transfers to reserves planned as part of the revenue budget and
included in the outturn position:
 £2.6m unspent transformation funding to be transferred to the Transformation
Reserve to fund future transformation ambitions and mitigate risks associated
with delivering transformation in future years.
 £19.5m of 2021/22 contingency budget to the General Fund Reserve to improve
financial resilience and the Council’s ability to mitigate future funding uncertainty,
significant service pressures and increased global economic volatility.
 £0.5m to the Budget Equalisation Reserve to be utilised early in 2022/23 for
specific payments, as set out in paragraph 12.

3. Note that the remaining £1m surplus will also be added to the General Fund Balance to
further improve our financial resilience.
Recommendations relating to additional 2022/23 funding:
4. Delegate future decisions on the allocation of emergency funding announced by
Government to support vulnerable residents to the Deputy Chief Executive & Executive
Director of Resources and other relevant Executive Directors in consultation with the
Leader and other relevant Cabinet Members, as appropriate. This will enable timely
allocation of funding for vulnerable residents, such as the Household Support Grant and
funding for Ukraine refugees, in accordance with associated funding conditions.
5. Confirm that the following increased/additional grants will be allocated in full to the Public
Health service budget to be spent in accordance with relevant grant conditions:


£1.1m increase to Surrey’s Public Health grant to meet identified commissioning,
contract and pay inflation pressures.



£3m recently announced new Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and
Recovery grant to support improvements in the quality and capacity of drug and
alcohol treatment for the years 2022/23 to 2024/25.



£0.1m per annum new In-patient Detoxification Grant

Paragraph 57 has more details about changes in Public Health funding.
Reason for Recommendations:
This report is to comply with the agreed policy of providing a monthly budget monitoring report
to Cabinet for approval of any necessary actions.
Executive Summary:
Revenue Budget

Page 169

11

1.

Table 1 below shows the revenue financial position for the year by Service. Annex 1
(attached) provides a more detailed service outturn.

Table 1 - Summary revenue financial position as at 31 March 2022
Full Year
Budget
£m

Directorate
Adult Social Care

Variance
£m

Change in
forecast
since M11
£m

370.7

368.8

(1.9)

(1.5)

(0.4)

34.1

34.1

(0.0)

0.0

(0.0)

220.9

231.8

10.9

11.2

(0.3)

1.7

1.7

0.0

0.0

(0.0)

Community Protection Group

38.5

40.1

1.6

1.3

0.3

Customer & Communities

11.6

11.0

(0.6)

(0.5)

(0.0)

136.9

129.9

(7.0)

(5.7)

(1.3)

People & Change

6.6

6.4

(0.2)

(0.1)

(0.1)

Prosperity Partnerships & Growth

1.3

1.3

(0.0)

(0.0)

(0.0)

Resources

81.1

80.1

(1.0)

(0.1)

(0.9)

DSG High Needs Block Offset

32.8

35.3

2.5

2.2

0.3

Public Service Reform & Public Health
Children, Families and Lifelong Learning
Comms, Public Affairs & Engagement

Environment, Transport & Infrastructure

Central Income & Expenditure
Total Budget Envelopes
Central Funding
Outturn Surplus

11

Outturn
£m

M11
Forecast
Variance
£m

73.0

72.6

(0.3)

(1.3)

1.0

1,009.4

1,013.3

3.9

5.6

(1.7)

(1,009.4)

(1,014.3)

(4.9)

(6.2)

1.3

(0.0)

(1.0)

(1.0)

(0.6)

(0.4)

Note: Numbers have been rounded which might cause a difference.

2. A budget of £1,003.6m was approved in February 2021, providing a stable base to tackle
ongoing uncertainty about the pandemic. During the year the impact of COVID -19 was
monitored closely and in August 2021, COVID funding was re-set to increase the overall
budget. Since the £1,003.6m budget was approved it has increased by £5.8m to
£1,009.4m as set out in the table below. Details of the revised budget are set out in
Annex 1:
Budget Movement
Original Budget
Increase to Public Health Grant
Adjustment to Corporate DSG funding and ASC grant
COVID re-set (COMF funding)
Net Movements
Final Budget

3.

£m
1,003.6
0.5

-2.1
7.3
5.8
1,009.4

The final outturn shows a surplus of £1.0m, which includes the full use of the £20m
contingency, as set out below.

Building Resilience for 2022/23 and the Future
4.

We have continued to maintain the grip on our finances and risks, as reflected in the
positive outturn position, despite the extraordinary circumstances the Council has been
operating in over the course of the financial year. The outturn position, and a
continuation of the strategy to not require the use of reserves to support our revenue
budget, indicates the finances of the Council are in a strong place to successfully ensure
the continued delivery of organisational priorities, as well as increasing financial
resilience into 2022/23.

Page 170

5.

Despite this backdrop, the medium-term outlook remains uncertain with a continuation
of significant budgetary challenges and a budget gap of at least £150m over the next 5
years to 2026/27, as set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. In addition to
continued funding uncertainty and demand pressures in some of our key services, there
are economic pressures as we enter 2022/23, the full impact of which are yet to be
factored into the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

6.

Each year we provide a contingency in the base budget to allow us to contain a
reasonable level of unexpected financial pressures, and to provide against any slippage
in delivery of efficiencies. The presence of the contingency allows us to be bolder in our
assumptions about delivery across all other budget lines compared to if it did not exist.
The assumption is that if the contingency is not required in full in any given year, then it
is transferred to reserves in order to form part of our medium-term plan to maintain
financial resilience.

7.

Through strong financial management, the final quarter of the financial year confirmed
that the £20m contingency for 2021/22 budget would not need to be utilised to support
the revenue budget within the financial year itself. Consideration has therefore been
given to the options to utilise this budget to provide additional financial resilience in
2022/23 and beyond. Reserves and contingencies have been reviewed, alongside an
assessment of specific additional pressures emerging for 2022/23 since the budget was
set and noting the general future financial turbulence over the medium term.

8. The budget was set during a period of continuing economic recovery from the coronavirus
pandemic. However, since the MTFS was approved, the conflict in Ukraine has added
further volatility and contributed to rising and persistent inflation and higher interest rates.
The Ofgem price cap rise in April 2022 resulted in a significant rise in energy and fuel
prices which has been a significant factor in the increasing inflation rates , with a further
cap rise anticipated in October 22.
9. Alongside the economic context, since the 2022/23 budget was set, a number of external
and internal developments have resulted in a review of the base assumptions. There
remains uncertainty over the sustained impact of COVID-19 and emerging costs relating
to the refugee crisis. Additional financial modelling has been undertaken in relation to the
recently announced social care reforms, highlighting the potential scale of the pressures
and in addition we have seen continuing pressures on SEND Transport services over what
was factored in to the 2022/23 budget.
10. There is an increased likelihood, as a result of these factors, that some call will need to be
made on the contingency or reserves in the coming year. It is therefore recommended
that £19.5m of the unutilised 2021/22 contingency budget is transferred to the General
Fund Balance to enhance resilience and enable future drawn down to fund pressures, if
required. In addition, the Council’s external auditors are now explicitly expressing the view
that the General Fund Balance should be at least 5% of the net budget and ideally nearer
to 10%. The recommendation above will increase the General Fund Balance to £48.5m
(4.7% of the net budget, increased from 2.5% in 2018).
11. The outturn position, including the recommendations set out above, will increase the
unearmarked reserve levels, including the General Fund balance, by £20.5m to £167.6m

Page 171

11

(c16% of our net revenue budget). Retention of the Council’s reserves is essential in order
to mitigate risks, including future funding uncertainties. Maintaining reserves is a key
indicator of sound financial governance and has been at the heart of our recent medium term plans to build resilience to address the level of risk.
12. Two specific payments are requested for approval from the remaining £0.5m as follows:


£0.4m to support a mentoring programme for young people



£0.1m to support the Community Foundation for Surrey capabilities fund
which enables charitable bodies to review their capabilities and capacity and
improves partnership working between charities.

Covid-19 Overview
13. The Covid 19 pandemic continued to have an impact throughout 2021/22, with Tier 4
restrictions in place at the beginning of the financial year and Plan B measures in place
as a result of the Omicron variant over the Christmas period and early part of 2022.
Surrey County Council has continued to play a key role in tackling the virus in Surrey
and financial implications were felt in the form of additional costs, reduced income and
the achievability of some efficiency plans.

11

14. The total financial impact of Covid-19 in 2021/22 is £99.4m. The main costs incurred by
each Directorate can be summarised as follows:












Adults Social Care – mostly relates to infection control, rapid testing, ASC
workforce recruitment and retention and the Omicron support fund being paid to
ASC providers (including SCC in-house provided services) and used for some
SCC ASC workforce costs, Covid-19 related care package costs driven by
increased acuity of needs due to the pandemic and the impact the hospital
Discharge to Assess process.
Children, Families & Lifelong Learning - increase in social care referrals, in
addition there are costs relating to additional staffing costs covering increased
workload, adult learning loss of income and additional High Needs Placements
costs.
Environment, Transport & Infrastructure - increased volumes of waste and
estimated bus service support costs following a reduction in Government
support.
Public Service Reform/Public Health - main costs relate to Contain Outbreak
Management Fund, testing, contact tracing and outbreak planning, Targeted
Community Testing and Practical Support Payments.
Customers & Communities – loss of income in Cultural Services (libraries,
heritage and Surrey Arts).
Resources – reduced income from School Meals, cost of ensuring our buildings
can operate in a COVID secure way, PPE cell costs, temporary mortuary
provision, the increased legal costs of children’s safeguarding cases and a
contribution to the Community Foundation for Surrey to support the voluntary
sector.
In addition, the allocations of specific grants to support residents such as the
Household Support Grant to support households with the cost of food, energy
and ither essentials and support to Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV)
residents during periods of national lockdown

Page 172

15. Covid-19 related expenditure was financed by a combination of specific grant funding
(£75.7m) for example the Contain Outbreak Management Fund, grants for payments to
social care providers, test and trace funding, CEV funding and the Household Support
Grant. The remaining £23.6m has been funded through general Covid-19 emergency
funding.
16. There remains £5.9m available in reserves for future Covid-19 risks.
Adult Social Care (ASC) Directorate
17. The final outturn position was an underspend of £1.9m. Significant budget variances
included:
Pressures:
 Care package pressures relating to Older People (£4.1m), Physical and Sensory
Disabilities (£1.7m) and Mental Health (£0.5m) services driven primarily by the
pandemic.
 £5.2m of expenditure of relating to the Discharge to Assess (D2A) system from
Surrey hospitals for individuals who remained on D2A support packages beyond the
4 week period eligible for national funding.
 £1.5m less Better Care Fund (BCF) income than budgeted due to underspends on
ASC services funded by Surrey’s BCF.
Mitigated by:
 An underspend of £7.5m on budgeted care package expenditure for Learning
Disability & Autism services including the Transition service for young people
transitioning from children and educational support to ASC services. The biggest
driver of this underspend was additional Continuing Health Care and joint funded
care package income from the NHS through the resolution of disputed cases, much
of which was a one-off benefit.
 An underspend of £4.6m on ASC’s total staffing budget (excluding in-house provided
Older People and Learning Disability care services). A sizeable proportion of this
underspend related to increased resources moved from care package budgets to
staffing for areas of agreed growth and for which recruitment did not start to
materially occur until the latter part of 2021/22.
 £3m of Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) grant funding allocated to ASC
to fund some of the care package pressures caused by the pandemic.
18. 2021/22 was the fourth year in succession in which the ASC service held expenditure
within its approved budget. This is a significant achievement in another very challenging
year in which a wide range of pressures relating to the pandemic had to be managed.
19. It is important to note though that ASC’s final 2021/22 outturn position relied on £10.4m
of one-off or likely temporary benefits which are not expected to be repeated to the
same extent in 2022/23. Additionally, an increase in underlying care package spending
in the last two months of the year meant that full year net expenditure care package
commitments ended the year £5m higher than the budgeted start position for 2022/23.
As such, there will continue to be significant challenges for the ASC service to manage
in the delivery of its approved budget in 2022/23.

Page 173

11

Public Service Reform and Public Health (PSR&PH) Directorate
20. The Public Service Reform and Public Health directorate delivered a balanced revenue
outturn position.
21. In addition to the £33.4m spent on base budget services, the PH service managed four
CV-19 programmes in 2021/22:
i. Test and Trace: £1.7m was spent on Surrey’s contact tracing team, CV-19
communications and additional Health Protection staff. All funding received from
government has been fully spent.
ii. Targeted Community Testing: £1.1m was spent on testing outreach and agile testing
units in Surrey. These costs have been fully reimbursed by DHSC and the
programme ended on 31 March 2022
iii. Practical Support Grant: £0.2m was spent on providing non-financial wrap-around
support to people who were told to self-isolate (in addition to Test & Trace financial
support). SCC received £1.7m of funding from government and will be returning the
£1.5m of unspent funds to DHSC in line with the grant conditions.

11

iv. Contain Outbreak Management Funds (COMF): £17.1m was spent on a wide range
of CV-19 response and recovery initiatives in addition to the £5.6m of expenditure in
2020/21. £10.6m of COMF monies remained unspent at year end, and SCC has
received confirmation from DHSC that these funds can be carried forward to be
spent on continued CV-19 response and recovery initiatives in 2022/23.
Children, Families and Lifelong Learning (CFL) Directorate
22. CFL reported a full year overspend of £10.9m for those services funded via the General
Fund. The position on the DSG and associated offsetting reserve is set out below. For
the General Fund elements the key variances are set out in the following paragraphs.
23. Home to school transport for children overspent by £5.0m. This was all due to
overspends for SEND transport caused by increases in pupil numbers and inflationary
pressures impacting on the cost of procuring routes. Over the final quarter of the year a
number of providers handed back routes due to them being no longer financially viable
and when the Council went back to procure them, in line with statutory duties, the prices
per route increased due to the rises in fuel costs.
24. Staffing expenditure within Area and CWD budgets overspent by £2.5m due to the level
of agency and locum staff in post and the associated cost differential between a
permanent and agency member of staff.
25. External residential placements within Childrens Social care overspend by £2.1m. This
was caused by the increase in the number of LAC over the course of the year. As well
as a high number of high cost Family Assessment and Community Assessment
placements.
26. CWD Care budgets have seen a significant increase in demand during the year leading
to an overspend of £2.5m.
27. These pressures were offset by applying additional Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking
(UASC) grant of £0.3m and Troubled Families Grant of £0.6m.

Page 174

2021/22 Schools Outturn
28. Surrey’s final DSG allocation for 2021/22 was estimated at £553.4m net (£1,014m gross
incl. academies and college SEND places). In total (excluding the additional safety valve
payment) the DSG blocks overspent by £33.9m, which is summarised in Table 2 below:
Table 2 - Dedicated Schools Grant variances 2021/22
Over/(under)
£m
(0.6)
(0.0)
35.3
(0.8)
33.9
(40.5)
(6.6)

Block
Schools
Centrally managed schools block
High needs
Early years
Additional safety valve payment
In-year movement
Schools Balances

29. Surplus balances held by individual Surrey maintained schools have increased by
£2.8m, Table 3 explains where these increases have occurred:

11

Table 3 – Schools Balances
Total net surpluses (excluding schools converting to academies
before 31 Mar 2022)
31-Mar-21
31-Mar-22 (increase)/decrease
£m
£m
£m
Nursery
0.8
0.9
(0.1)
Primary
27.5
28.0
(0.5)
Secondary
10.1
12.4
(2.3)
Special
4.6
4.7
(0.1)
PRU
0.8
0.7
0.1
43.8
46.6
(2.8)
Community Protection Group (CPG)
30. The Community Protection Group reported an overspend of £1.6 at the end of the year.
Surrey Fire & Rescue overspent by £1.3m as a result of the national pay award £0.3m,
additional volume of training for new recruits £0.3m in order to maintain establishment
levels, increased costs of fuel and vehicle repairs £0.3m, cross border support (where
neighbouring Fire services attend incidents in Surrey) £0.2m, and a number of smaller
cost pressures. The Coroner service overspent by £0.5m due mainly to the increased
volume and cost of inquests, and pathology costs. These overspends were offset by
smaller underspends elsewhere within the Group.
Customer and Communities (C&C) Directorate
31. C&C reported a full year underspend of £0.6m relating primarily to significant staff
vacancies across customer services (£0.2m) and community partnerships (£0.2m). In

Page 175

addition, there were a number of smaller variances across the other services within the
Directorate including an underspend on the anticipated costs relating to the unsocial
hours policy.
Environment, Transport, and Infrastructure (ETI) Directorate
32. ETI reported an underspend of £7.0m at the end of the year. Waste disposal services
underspent by £4.9m, with increased waste volumes due to changes in resident
behaviour being more than offset by improved prices for dry mixed recyclables.
Highways and Transport underspent by £2.7m due to a combination of issues including
street lighting energy savings resulting from fixed prices, increased income and
recharges, and employee vacancies, which were offset by accelerated road
maintenance works. These underspends were offset by a number of smaller items.
People and Change Directorate
33. The Directorate has reported a £0.2m underspend due to reduced training expenditure,
delays to programmes within the employees experience team and reduced staffing
costs due to vacancies.
Resources Directorate

11

34. The Resources directorate underspent by £1.0m. This was caused by a number of
variances across the services within the Directorate. Primary in the following areas; an
overspend (£0.4m) against the Orbis Joint Operating Budget due to the nonachievement of planned efficiencies in Business Operations which have been delayed
by the disaggregation of the service and a need to fully understand the implications of
the DBI implementation on the future operating model. An overspend in legal services
(£0.4m) due to the level of children’s safeguarding cases and increased cost of
instructions. Offset by an underspend in IT&D (-£0.7m) due to reduced expenditure in
the technical delivery and contracts team and efficiencies realised from the investment
in hyperconvergence, an underspend in Twelve15 (£0.4m), an underspend on Finance
(-£0.3m) due to higher than anticipated income and a number of smaller variances
across other services within the Directorate (-£0.4m).
DSG High Needs Block Offset
35. DSG HNB overspent by £2.5m. This was the overspend position after accounting for
the budgeted overspend of £23.8m and additional £9m contingency. As per paragraph
28, the overall variance was a £35.3m overspend.
36. £25.8m of cost containment and in-year mitigations were delivered to achieve this
position.
37. The in-year overspend was caused by £6.1m of cost containment that was not able to
be delivered. These were offset to some extent by the in-year mitigations of £3.6m.
38. Additional pressures through changes in placements and tribunal decisions added
£4.9m of costs. Placements made at the end of the last financial year also had a full
year impact of £4m in this year.

Page 176

2021/22 Efficiency Programme Outturn
39. The 2021/22 budget included an efficiency requirement of £41.2m. At outturn, £32.1m
(78%) has been achieved with the remaining £9.2m (22%) unachieved. The unachieved
elements are reflected in the 2022/23 budget. Directorate efficiencies are shown in
Table 4 below.
Table 4 – Final Efficiency outcome

Directorate

Adult Social Care
Children, Families, Lifelong
Learning
Community Protection Group
Customer & Communities
Environment, Transportation &
Infrastructure
People & Change
Resources
Total

Full Year
Target

Outturn / Variance /
Achieved Unachieved

Last
Month
Variance

£m
11.9

£m

£m

£m

11.9

(0.0)

0.3

17.2

9.6

7.6

8.0

0.5
3.8

0.5

0.0

0.0

3.3

0.5

0.5

3.2

2.4

0.8

0.7

0.1
4.4
41.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

4.1

0.3

0.3

32.1

9.2

9.8

40. The £9.2m non-delivery is comprised of the following:


CFL - £7.6m undeliverable due to the inflationary pressures in Transport making
the planned reduction in route costs unachievable, increases in LAC numbers
prevented efficiencies being delivered, as did the continued level of agency social
workers.



ETI - £0.8m including delayed waste & recycling efficiencies, some of which have
continued to be impacted by Covid-19 (e.g. engagement with residents), and
delayed highway efficiencies including bus lane enforcement which will be
implemented in 2022/23.



C&C - £0.5m relating to the recovery of income levels after the pandemic. Due to
sustained closures during 2021/22 £0.5m of the £2.4m target for income recovery
was not achieved.



Resources - £0.3m due to the non-achievement of efficiencies built into the Orbis
Business Plan, within Business Operations. Efficiencies were delayed as a result
of needing to better understand the impact of the new ERP implementation and
the disaggregation of the service from the Orbis partnership on the future
operating model.

Transformation Programme
41. Of the £32.1m total efficiencies achieved in 2021/22, £6.4m was delivered through the
Transformation Programme (54% of the £11.8m transformation efficiency target). In
order to achieve this permanent efficiency and commitment to deliver further efficiencies
in future years, £16.9m of one-off revenue funding was invested.

Page 177

11

42. The investment was funded by £7.4m revenue budget and the remainder by flexible use
of capital receipts, as enabled by the DLUHC guidance and approved by full Council in
February 2021.
43. £16.9m incurred was less than the original allocation of £19.4m for 2021/22, due to
changing requirements and reprofiling of planned expenditure against some of the
transformation projects. The remaining £2.6m will be contributed to the Transformation
Reserve to fund future transformation ambitions and mitigate risks associated with
delivering transformation in future years.
Capital Budget
44. The Council set a capital budget for 2021/22 of £185m in February 2021. The budget
was reset to £202m at month 4 to increase the capital programme budget for approvals
from the pipeline made since the budget was set, mitigate slippage in complex schemes
and to reflect more accurately deliverability, taking account of the impact of CV-19.
45. At month 10, the 2021/22 capital budget was reset again to £170.6m to provide a stable
baseline for the remainder of the year due to increasing slippage after analysis of
deliverability carried out by the Strategic Capital Groups (SCG’s).

11

46. Against the £170.6m budget, Capital spend for the year is £162.4m, which is a variance
of £8.2m against the re-set budget (4.8%). This includes £5.2m of spend not managed
by the SCG’s, consisting of commercial spend (managed through SHIP and SIB),
Delegated Schools budgets and Your Fund Surrey.
47. Schemes directly managed by the SCGs had Capital Programme spend of £157.2m;
variance to re-set budget of £13.4m (8%). This represents additional slippage of £5.2m
from the M11 forecasts, due mainly to:
•

IT&D – decrease of £4.8m, due mainly to delays to the DB&I programme
implementation and smaller underspends across other programmes.
• Highways and Transport schemes – decrease of £0.9m, mainly related to individual
projects that were not completed as anticipated; Highways (£0.3m), Safety Barriers
(£0.1m), Externally Funded Schemes (£0.5m)
• Environment – decrease (£0.3m) mainly related to slippage in Flood Alleviation
Schemes.
Offset by;
• Property schemes – increase of £1m – mainly related to acceleration in corporate
and schools maintenance programmes.
48. Table 5 below provides a summary of the outturn for the 2021/22 Capital budget:

Page 178

Table 5 - Summary capital spend for 2021/22
Full Year
Outturn
Strategic Capital Groups
Property
Property Schemes

Forecast
Variance

Budget

Overspend / Acceleration Change from
(Underspend) or (Slippage) M11 to M12

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m

£m
1.0

51.0

54.9

(3.9)

(0.7)

(3.3)

ASC Schemes

1.5

1.5

(0.1)

0.0

(0.1)

0.0

CFLC Schemes

0.3

0.5

(0.3)

0.0

(0.3)

(0.1)

Property Total

52.7

57.0

(4.3)

(0.7)

(3.6)

0.9

Infrastructure
Highways and Transport

84.7

86.9

(2.1)

0.6

(2.8)

(0.9)

Environment

4.1

5.4

(1.3)

(0.1)

(1.2)

(0.3)

Community Protection

2.1

1.9

0.2

0.0

0.2

0.0

Infrastructure & Major Projects

5.2

5.7

(0.6)

(0.0)

(0.6)

(0.1)

96.1

99.9

(3.8)

0.6

(4.4)

(1.3)

Infrastructure Total
IT
IT Total
Total Strategic Capital Group

8.4

13.7

(5.3)

(0.5)

(4.8)

(4.8)

157.2

170.6

(13.4)

(0.6)

(12.8)

(5.2)

170.6

8.2

Commercial Spend

0.4

Your Fund Surrey

0.1

Delegated School Expenditure
Total

4.7
162.4

Note: All numbers have been rounded - w hich might cause a casting difference

Carry forward

11

49. For 2021/22, £17.1m of carry forward requests were proposed by Capital Programme
Panel (CPP). £7.4m into 2022/23 and the remaining £9.8m will be added into 2023/24.
All 2022/23 carry forwards have been challenged by CPP and have been profiled into the
first six months of the financial year. Offsetting the carry forwards is £4.5m of
accelerated spend from 2022/23 delivered in 2021/22.
50. The net effect of carry forward and accelerated spend is an increase of £2.8m in the
2022/23 budget from £212.1m to £214.9m.
Feasibility
51. The Feasibility fund used for progressing capital projects into delivery and bringing
schemes forward from pipeline had an outturn position of £5.2m, against a budget of
£5m, this small overspend was contained within budget envelopes and is included in the
revenue outturn position set out above. This overspend is largely due to a timing
difference of when projects will be capitalised.
52. The amount carried forward from previous years was not required so will be retained in
reserve to support the drive to deliver the Capital Programme in future.

Balance Sheet Indicators
53. The Council reports on a quarterly basis on the following key balance sheet indicators,
which are presented in Annex 2 (attached) and cover the following:



Debt; and
Treasury Management.

Page 179

54. The Council’s overdue debt stood at £25.6m at 31st March 2022, (vs £25.5m at 31 March
2021), an increase of £0.1m over the year. Annex 2 provides further details on this.
55. The Council has continued its policy of minimising cash balances and exposure to low
interest rates on short-term investments by internal and short-term borrowing. Annex 2
provides a further explanation of the impact of this policy on the Council’s Balance
Sheet.
Additional funding for 2022/23
56. In the early part of 2022/23, the Household Support Grant has been extended, providing
funding to the Council to provide support to vulnerable households with the cost of food,
energy, water and other essentials. In addition, funding to support the Homes for
Ukraine scheme have been announced. Proposals are being developed for the
allocation of both of these funding sources, working with partners to ensure those most
in need can access the available funding. Cabinet is asked to approve the delegation of
decisions on the allocations of this funding and other similar emergency funding
allocations, to enable timely decisions to be made and funding to be distributed to those
in need, in accordance with the relevant grant conditions.
57. Three sources of additional Public Health funding for Surrey have been confirmed for
2022/23 as follows.

11



Public Health grant for 2022/23 has been confirmed as £39.637m, an increase of
£1.083m (2.8%) on the 2021/22 PH grant of £38.554m. Cabinet is requested to
agree that this Public Health grant increase is allocated in full to the Public
Health budget for 2022/23 to be used to meet identified commissioning, contract
and pay inflation pressures in the context of the high level of general inflation.



The Department for Health & Social Care (DHSC) / Office for Health
Improvements (OHID) have recently published details of Supplemental
Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery grant funding to support
improvements in the quality and capacity of drug and alcohol treatment for the
years 2022/23 to 2024/25. The Council’s 2022/23 allocation is £721,703 and
indicative sums for 2023/24 and 2024/25 are £735,789 and £1,500,381
respectively, although it should be noted that allocations for future years are
subject to annual approval by HM Treasury. Cabinet is requested to agree this
ringfenced grant funding is added to the Public Health budget to be spent on
plans to be agreed with OHID in May 2022, with a Memorandum of
Understanding to be issued by OHID in June 2022.



Separately an Inpatient Detoxification Grant of £106,099 per annum has also
been confirmed for the next 3 years. Eligibility for this supplemental funding is
dependent on maintaining existing (2020/21) investment in drug and alcohol
treatment, and allocation of the Inpatient Detoxification Grant will be awarded to
regional or sub-regional consortia.

Consultation:
58. Executive Directors and Cabinet Members have confirmed the outturn positions for their
revenue and capital budgets.

Page 180

Risk Management and Implications:
59. Risk implications are stated throughout the report and each relevant director or head of
service has updated their strategic and or service risk registers accordingly. In addition,
the Leadership Risk Register continues to reflect the increasing uncertainty of future
funding likely to be allocated to the Council and the sustainability of the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy. In the light of the financial risks faced by the Council, the Leadership
Risk Register will be reviewed to increase confidence in Directorate plans to mitigate the
risks and issues.
Financial and Value for Money Implications:
60. The report considers financial and value for money implications throughout and future
budget monitoring reports will continue this focus.
Section 151 Officer Commentary:
61. Although significant progress has been made to improve the Council’s financial position,
the medium term financial outlook beyond 2022/23 remains uncertain. With no clarity on
central government funding in the medium term, our working assumption is that financial
resources will continue to be constrained, as they have been for the majority of the past
decade. This places an onus on the Council to continue to consider issues of financial
sustainability as a priority in order to ensure stable provision of services in the medium
term.
62. The Council has a duty to ensure its expenditure does not exceed the resources available.
The Section 151 Officer confirms the financial information presented in this report is
consistent with the Council’s general accounting ledger and that forecasts have been
based on reasonable assumptions, taking into account all material, financial and business
issues and risks.
Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer:
63. The Council is under a duty to set a balanced and sustainable budget. The Local
Government Finance Act requires the Council to take steps to ensure that the Council’s
expenditure (that is expenditure incurred already in year and anticipated to be incurred)
does not exceed the resources available whilst continuing to meet its statutory duties.
64. Cabinet should be aware that if the Section 151 Officer, at any time, is not satisfied that
appropriate strategies and controls are in place to manage expenditure within the in-year
budget they must formally draw this to the attention of the Cabinet and Council and they
must take immediate steps to ensure a balanced in-year budget, whilst complying with its
statutory and common law duties.
Equalities and Diversity:
65. Any impacts of the budget monitoring actions will be evaluated by the individual services
as they implement the management actions necessary In implementing individual
management actions, the Council must comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty in
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 which requires it to have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited
by or under the Act; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and foster good relations
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it.

Page 181

11

66. Services will continue to monitor the impact of these actions and will take appropriate
action to mitigate additional negative impacts that may emerge as part of this ongoing
analysis.
What Happens Next:
The relevant adjustments from the recommendations will be made to the Council’s accounts.
Report Author:
Leigh Whitehouse, Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Resources,
leigh.whitehouse@surreycc.gov.uk.
Consulted:
Cabinet, Executive Directors, Heads of Service

Annexes:
Annex 1 – Detailed Revenue Outturn position
Annex 2 – Balance sheet Indicators – Debt and Treasury Management

11

Page 182

Annex 1
Detailed Revenue Outturn position

11

Page 183

Annex 2
Balance Sheet Indicators
Debt
1. During the last quarter of 2021/22 the Council raised invoices totalling £175m.
2. Overdue debt is the total debt less those balances not immediately due (i.e. less than 30
days old). There was a total of £25.6m of overdue debt at the end of March 2022, a
decrease of £4.5m since the last quarter.

11

3. Notable issues and changes relating to debt levels include:
 Overdue unsecured care debt increased by £2.8m since the last quarter, although most
of this debt is less than six months old is being actively pursued by the Adult Social
Care Financial Assessment and Income Collection team, supported by internal and
external legal services.
 Overdue debt relating to CCGs reduced by £6.8m since the last quarter, reflecting the
successful outcome of work undertaken by Corporate Finance with ASC and CCG
colleagues to resolve queries to enable debts to be paid.
 There is £32m of debt relating to CCGs that is less than one month old and so not
overdue. This relates to a range of additional funding the CCG agreed to pay to SCC
and into Surrey’s Better Care Fund at year end. It is expected that the outstanding
invoices will be settled promptly by Surrey Heartlands CCG.
 Total combined overdue debt across all other debt categories reduced by £0.5m,
mostly relating to reduced debt for schools, colleges and nurseries that is over 1 year
old.
Table 1 – Age profile of the Council’s debt as at 31 March 2022
Account group
Care debt - unsecured
Care debt - secured
Total care debt
Schools, colleges & nurseries
Clinical commissioning groups
Other local authorities
General debt
Total non-care debt
Total debt
Q3 2021/22
Change

<1 month
£m
4.1
0.2
4.3
1.5
32.0
1.5
4.5
39.5
43.8
16.8
26.9

1-12
months
£m
10.2
3.2
13.3
-0.0
0.9
-0.4
5.2
5.8
19.1
22.9
-3.7

1 to 2
years
£m
3.6
2.1
5.7
-0.0
0.5
0.0
0.4
0.9
6.6
6.8
-0.3

over 2
years
£m
4.0
3.7
7.7
0.1
0.6
0.0
0.5
1.2
8.9
8.7
0.2

Total
Overdue
debt
debt
£m
£m
21.8
17.7
9.2
N/A*
31.0
17.7
1.6
0.1
34.0
2.0
1.1
-0.3
10.6
6.1
47.3
7.9
78.3
25.6
55.3
30.1
23.1
-4.5

* Secured care debt does not become due until either the property is sold or after 90 days following
the death of the resident, whichever is earlier.
Note: All numbers have been rounded - which might cause a casting difference

Borrowing
4. Surrey County Council borrows to finance its capital spending that exceeds receipts from
grants, third party contributions, capital receipts and reserves. The Council’s long-term
debt stands at £480.9m an increase of £47.3m from 31 March 2021, due to £50m of long
term PWLB debt, sourced in March 2022.
5. As at 31 March 2022, the weighted average interest rate of the Council’s long-term debt
portfolio was 3.70%. The Treasury Strategy, approved by County Council in February

Page 184

2021, continued the policy of internal borrowing and, where necessary, borrowing short
term to meet cash flow liquidity requirements. Table 2 shows a net £71.5m decrease in
the Council’s short-term borrowing activity since 1st April 2021.
Table 2 - Short-term borrowing as at 31 March 2022
£m
Debt outstanding as at 31 March 2021
271.5
Net movement since start of year
-71.5
st
Current balance as at 31 March 2022
200.0
Figures are for Surrey County Council only and do not include Surrey Police
6. The weighted average interest rate of the Council’s short-term external debt is 0.14% at
31st March 2022.
Cash Investments
7. The Council’s average daily level of cash investments was £59.6m during 2021/22,
compared to an average of £57.1m during 2020/21. The Council invests temporary cash
surplus exclusively through the use of money market funds (MMF). Other investment
facilities are available, including brokers, direct dealing with counterparties through the use
of call accounts or direct deal facilities, or with the government’s Debt Management Office
(DMO). No new fixed term deposits have been agreed during 2021/22 due to the low cash
balances held and the need to maintain high liquidity.
8.

Table 3 shows the weighted average return on all investments the Council received in the
quarter to 31st March 2022 is 0.28%. This compares to a 0.45% Bank of England Base
Rate for the same period. Base Rate during 2021/22 increased from 0.10% to 0.75%
between December 2021 and March 2022. MMF investment returns will lag behind a
revised base rate for a period of time as funds reinvest short dated instruments from a low
interest rate environment to a slightly higher one.

Table 3 – Weighted average return on investments compared to Bank of England Base
Rate

21/22 quarter 4
21/22 quarter 3
21/22 quarter 2
21/22 quarter 1
20/21 quarter 4
20/21 quarter 3
20/21 quarter 2
20/21 quarter 1

Average BoE Base
Rate
0.45%
0.12%
0.10%
0.10%
0.10%
0.10%
0.10%
0.10%

Page 185

Weighted return on
investments
0.28%
0.03%
0.02%
0.02%
0.01%
0.03%
0.14%
0.31%

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 13

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

13

Document is Restricted

Page 187

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

13

Document is Restricted

Page 191

This page is intentionally left blank

